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I. INFORMATION ON THE ISSUER 

1.1 Basic information on the Issuer 

Company name: 

Registered office: 

Place ofregistration: 

Business registration No. (IČO): 

Tax identification No. (DIČ): 

LEI: 

Bank information: 

Telephone: 

Fax: 

E-mail: 

Website: 

Date of incorporation: 

Date of founding: 

Lega] form: 

Period of operation: 

Registered capital: 

Governing law: 

1.2 Scope of business 

a. electricity generation; 
b. electricity trade; 
c. thermal energy production; 
d. thermal energy distribution; 
e. locksmithery, tooling; 

Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. 

Objízdná 1777, 765 02 Otrokovice, Czech Republic 

The Issuer is registered in the Commercial Register maintained 
by the Regional Court in Brno, File No. B 6437. 

292 90 171 

CZ29290171 

315700Z48OW9EH0GMN53 

10545354/6200 COMMERZBANG AG, 704921/0100 Komerční 

banka, a.s. 

+420 420 577 649 111 

+420 420 577 921 600 

info@tot.cz 

www.tot.cz 

The Issuer was incorporated as at the date of registration in the 
Commercial Register on 18 August 2011 

The Issuer was founded on 9 August 2011 

joint stock company 

indefinite 

CZK 10,000,000 

lega! system ofthe Czech Republic 

f. manufacture, installation, repair of electrical machinery and devices, electronic and telecommunication 
equipment; 

g. accounting advisory, bookkeeping, tax records management; 
h. production, trade and services not listed in Annexes 1 to 3 to the Trade Licensing Act, including 

in particular the following activities: 
1. manufacture ofmeasuring, testing, navigation, optical and photographic devices and equipment; 
ii. operation ofwater supply and sewerage networks and treatment and distribution ofwater; 
iii. waste management (except hazardous); 
iv. preparatory and finishing work, specialized construction activities; 
v. wholesale and retail; 
VI. accommodation services; 
VIL provision of software, information technology consultancy, data processing, hosting related 

activities and websites; 
vm. renta) and lease of movables; 
1x. advisory and consultancy, preparation ofprofessional studies and opinions; 
x. testing, measurement, analyses and inspections; 

3 



onsol idatcd Annual Report 20 18 Tep láma Otrokovice a.s. 

xi. administrative services and organizational and economic services; 
xii. after-school education and training, organizing of professional courses and training, including 

lecturing; 
xiii. provision oftechnical services; and 
xiv. repair and maintenance of household appliances, cultural items, fine mechanics products, optical 

instruments and gauges. 
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II. SEPARATE SECTION PURSUANT TO SECTION 118, PAR. 4, LETTER (J) OF ACT 
NO. 256/2004 COLL., ON CAPITAL MARKET UNDERTAKINGS 

Based on a CNB notice and pursuant to Section I 18 (4) (b), (c), (e), O) and 118 (5) of Act No. 256/2004 Col!., 
on Capital Market Undertakings, the Company presents al! information required by the foregoing provisions of the 
Act and other relevant information in this separate section of the Annu al Report. 

2.1 Code of Corporate Governance 

Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. does not have a binding code of corporate governance. Persons elected or appointed 
to positions in executive or supervisory bodies, management, business committees and commissions are individuals 
with sufficient qualifications and education, adequate work and persona) experience, honesty and integrity. 

Members of the Company bodies, management, executives and employees adhere to the generally accepted 
principles of business ethics. Effective management of the Company with regard to shareholders' interests 
is ensured, the shareholders' rights are in no way restricted, and emphasis is placed on fair treatrnent 
of shareholders. The Company takes into account the interests of all stakeholders and pays increased attention 
to informing these parties and to overall transparency of the management. Transparency is ensured primarily 
by posting all essential information about the Company's activities on the Company website and by meeting 
the requirements ofthe reporting obligation to relevant authorities. 

It may be noted that in the performance of their duties and the exercise of their powers, the executives de facto 
observe the overwhelming majority of the provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance based on the OECD 
Principles (2004). 

2.2 Information on approach to risks arising from the financial reporting process 

Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. and its Subsidiary maintain accounting records pursuant to the Accounting Act, and 
in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the EU ("IFRS"). In addition 
to the Accounting Act and IFRS, the Company's bookkeeping is also governed by other applicable legislation, 
notably the V AT Act, the lncome Tax Act, the Civil Code, etc. 

Accounting records of the Company and its Subsidiary are maintained on an ongoing basis. Bookkeeping 
and related processes are methodically described in the in-house directive on bookkeeping, on the circulation 
ofaccounting documents, and in the rules ofsignature and organizational rules, etc.). 

Monthly financial statements for both the parent and the subsidiary are always prepared by the chief accountant 
ofthe parent company by the 10th calendar day of the following month. The process of bookkeeping and taxation 
ofthe Company and the Subsidiary is overseen by the Economics and Sales Director of Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. 
In addition, the Company collaborates with an audit firm and a certified auditor. The auditor reviews the separate 
financial statements and the consolidated financial statements. The annual financial statements ofthe Subsidiary for 
20 I 8 are also subject to an audit. 

The name ofthe auditor who reviews the financial statements is included in the Consolidated Annual Report. 

The Company has also set up an interna! audit function as an interna! control. In line with an interna) audit pian 
approved by the Company's Board of Directors for the relevant calendar year, interna! audits are carried out 
at separate entities of the Company and the Subsidiary in respect of maintaining accounting records and documents 
for bookkeeping. Based on the interna! audits, audit reports are prepared for management describing identified 
shortcomings and proposing remedial measures. 

The Company has set up an audit committee which also oversees the accuracy of accounting. 

Ali aforementioned processes provide sufficient assurance that the Company and its Subsidiary use sufficient tools 
and expertise to maximize the prevention of risks arising from the financi al reporting process. 
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Note: More detailed iriformation on the risk exposure oj the Company in relation to its financial reporting 
is included in the Notes to the separate and consolidatedfinancial statements. 

2.3 Decision-making of the General Meeting, statutory and supervisory bodies and the Audit 
Committee. 

Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. has a Board of Directors and a Supervisory Board whose members are duly elected by the 
General Meeting of Shareholders. The positions and responsibilities of the members of the Board of Directors and 
the Supervisory Board are described in the Articles of Association and in this chapter ofthe Annual Report. 

Where not stipulated in the Articles of Association, the Company's decisions are govemed by applicable 
legislation, notably Act No. 89/2012 Col!., the Civil Code (hereinafter the "Civil Code"), and Act No. 90/2012 
Col!., on Business Corporations and Cooperatives (hereinafter the "Business Corporations Act"). 

2.3.1 Decision-making ofthe Board of Directors (from the Articles of Association) 

(a) The Board of Directors makes decisions at its meetings, unless otherwise specified in the Articles 
of Association. 

(b) The Chairman of the Board of Directors, or any other Board member if the Board of Directors does not 
have a chairman, is obligated to convene a meeting of the Board of Directors if warranted by the Company 
interests, or if a member of the Board of Directors or the Supervisory Board so requests in writing, within 
10 days ofthe receipt ofsuch request. The request must be substantiated and must include a draft agenda. 

(c) A meeting ofthe Board ofDirectors is chaired by its Chairman; in his absence or ifthe Board ofDirectors 
does not have a chairman, the meeting is chaired by the Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors. 
If the Board of Directors does not have a vice-chairman either, the Board of Directors is chaired 
by an authorized member ofthe Board ofDirectors. 

( d) If all members of the Board of Directors consent, any and all members of the Board of Directors may take 
part in a Board meeting and vote via telephone or another communication system that allows al! persons 
participating in the meeting to hear each other. Persons participating in the meeting and voting in such 
manner are deemed to be present at the meeting and have the right to vote. 

(e) Minutes of a meeting of the Board of Directors and resolutions passed at a meeting of the Board 
of Directors shall be recorded, signed by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, or by a member of the 
Board ofDirectors responsible for chairing the Board meeting if the Board of Directors does not have 
a chairman, and by a registrar appointed by the Board of Directors. The minutes of the Board of Directors 
meeting must list all members of the Board of Directors who have voted against specific motions 
or abstained; the non-listed members are deemed to have voted in favor ofthe motions. 

(t) The Board of Directors meets a quorum if more than a 50 percent majority of its members are present 
at the meeting. Each member ofthe Board ofDirectors has one vote. The majority ofthe members present 
shall be required to pass a resolution. 

(g) The Board of Directors may, upon the proposal of the Chairman, or the Vice-Chairman if the Board 
of Directors does not have a chairman, or another Board member if the Board of Directors does not have 
a vice-chairman, pass decisions outside of meetings by an absentee vote (per rollam) or by telephone 
or another communication system. The use of this method of voting is admissible only with the consent 
ofall members ofthe Board ofDirectors. Such voters are considered present. 

(h) In the event of per rollam voting it applies that if a member fails to delíver a vote to the Chairman within 
the timeframe set for passing the resolution, s/he is deemed to have voted against the motion. 
The Chairman of the Board of Directors organizing per rollam voting briefs the members of the Board 
of Directors after the deadline set for passing the resolution about the outcome of the voting. A resolution 
passed by per rollam voting shall be recorded in the minutes at the next meeting. 
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2.3.2 Decision-making ofthe Supervisory Board (from the Articles of Association) 

(a) The Supervísory Board is the oversight body of the Company. The Supervisory Board oversees 
the performance of the Board of Directors and Company business operations. 

(b) The Supervisory Board convenes a General Meeting if warranted by the Company's interests and 
proposes the necessary measures at the General Meeting. 

( c) Members of the Supervisory Board are authorized to review all documents and records relating 
to Company activíties and ensure that the accounting records are properly maíntaíned in accordance wíth 
the facts and that the business or other operatíons of the Company are carried out in complíance with 
applicable legislation, the Artícles of Association and guidelines ofthe General Meeting. 

(d) The Supervisory Board represents the Company through its appointed member in lega! disputes brought 
against members of the Board of Directors in proceedíngs before courts and other bodies. 

2.3.3 Audit Committee (from the Articles of Association) 

The Audit Committee, without prejudice to the responsibilitíes of the executive or supervísory bodíes or theír 
members, primaríly: 

(a) monitors the effectiveness of interna! control and the risk management system; 
(b) monitors the effectiveness of the internal audit and íts functional independence where the interna! audit 

function has been established; 
(c) monitors the preparation of the financial statements and the consolidated financial statements and 

submits recommendations to the executive or oversight body to ensure the integrity of the accounting 
and financial reporting systems; 

(d) assesses the independence of statutory auditors and audit firms and the provision of non-audit services 
to a public interest entity by a statutory auditor and an audit firm; 

( e) discusses with the auditor the risks to his independence and the safeguards adopted by the auditor 
to mitigate such risks; 

(f) monitors the mandatory audit process; this is based on a summary report on the quality assurance 
system; 

(g) performs other competencies ensuing from applicable legislation. 
(h) Members of the Audit Committee are required to exercise their powers with due diligence and 

to maintain confidentiality regarding confidential information and facts the disclosure of which to third 
parties may cause detriment to the Company. The confidentiality obligation persists even after 
the termination ofthe function. 

(i) The powers of the Audit Committee are without prejudice to the powers of other Company bodies 
pursuant to applicable legislation and the Articles of Association. 

2.3.4 Decísíon-making and scope ofpowers ofthe General Meeting (from the Articles of Association) 

The General Meeting is the Company's supreme body. If the company has a sole shareholder, the General Meeting 
is not convened and the powers ofthe General Meeting are exercised by the sole shareholder. 
The powers ofthe General Meeting include: 

a) Decision to change the Articles of Association unless such change is made as a result of an increase 
in registered capital effected by the Board of Directors, or as a result of other lega! matters; 

b) Deci si on to change the amount of registered capital and to authorize the Board of Directors to increase 
registered capital; 

c) Decision to offset a pecuniary receivable due from the Company against a liability to pay the issue price; 
d) Decision to convert shares issued as certificated securities to book-entry shares and vice versa; 
e) Decision to issue convertible or priority bonds; 
f) Election and recall of members of the Board of Director; 
g) Election and recall ofmembers ofthe Supervisory Board; 
h) Approval of the annual or separate financial statements and consolidated financial statements and in cases 

where their preparation is stipulated by other legislation; 
i) Decision on distribution of profits or other Company funds, or on loss compensation and determining 

the payment of royalties; 
j) Approval ofthe payment ofadvances for the dísbursement ofprofit shares and their amounts; 
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k) Decision on remuneration of members of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board; 
I) Decision to apply for listing of the Company securities for trading on the European regulated market 

or to cancel such listing of the Company securities for trading on the European regulated market; 
m) Decision to wind up the Company through liquidation, appoint and recall the liquidator, including 

determining the liquidator's fees, approval of the proposal for distribution of the liquidation balance 
proceeds; 

n) Decisions on mergers, transfer of assets to a sole shareholder, Company division or change in its lega! form; 
o) Approval of transferring or pledging of a business or any part thereof and approval of a lease of a business 

or any part thereof; 
p) Decision to assume the effects of actions taken on behalf of the Company prior to its establishment; 
q) Approval of a silent partnership agreement, including amendments thereto and termination; 
r) Determining an auditor ofthe Company; 
s) Provision of rules and guidelines for the Board of Directors outside of business management; and 
t) Decisions regarding other issues within the scope of powers of the General Meeting stipulated by the law 

or the Articles of Association. 

2.4 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 

2.4.1 Board of Directors 

The Board of Directors is a statutory body of the Issuer. The Issuer's Board of Directors has three members, 
of whom one is chairman and one vice-chairman of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors is seated at the 
registered office of the Issuer's headquarters: Objízdná 1777, Otrokovice, postal code 765 02. Two Board 
of Directors members always act jointly on behalf of the Issuer. 

The Board of Directors meets a quorum if more than a 50 percent majority of its members are present at its 
meeting. If all Board members consent, any and all members of the Board of Directors may take part in a Board 
meeting and vote via telephone or any other communication system that allows all persons participating in the 
meeting to hear each other. A majority ofvotes ofthe members present shall be required to pass a resolution. 

Members of the Board of Directors are elected and recalled by the General Meeting, or the sole shareholder 
exercising the powers of the General Meeting. The Board of Directors elects the chairman and the vice-chairman 
of the Board of Directors from among its members. 

The powers of the Board of Directors comprise decision-making regarding all matters related to the Issuer, except 
for the matters that are subject to the decision of General Meeting, or the sole shareholder exercising the powers 
ofthe General Meeting, or the Supervisory Board. The Board of Directors decides on the election and recall of the 
Company's procurators and on determining the rules oftheir conduct and the extent oftheir authorization. 

Members of the Issuer's Board of Directors include Petr Jeník, date of birth: 18 April 1962, residence: Tlustého 
2042/22, 193 00 Prague 9 - Horní Počernice; Patrik Brom, date of birth: 9 February 1975, residence: Hlavní 8, 
251 64 Mnichovice - Myšlín; and Jan Stuchlík, date of birth: 9 July 1988, residence: Malá 1175/7, 747 06 Opava -
Kylešovice. 

Below is an overview ofrelevant information conceming the members ofthe lssuer's Board ofDirectors. 

Petr Jeník 

2013-
2014-
2015 -
2015-

Chairman of the Board of Directors since 13 Novem ber 2013 

Issuer (Chairman ofthe Board ofDirectors) 
TO Servisní s.r.o. (Statutory Representative) 
Teplárna Kyjov, a.s. (Chairman ofthe Board ofDirectors) 
Energo Český Krumlov s.r.o. (Statutory Representative) 

Mr. Jeník worked at United Energy, a.s. (Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Technical 
and Operations Director), and served as a member ofthe Boards ofDirectors of EP ENERGY TRADING, a. s.; EP 
Sourcing, a.s.; ČEZ Teplárenská, a.s.; and Teplárna Liberec, a.s.; among others. 
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Patrik Brom 

2017-

Vice-chainnan ofthe Board ofDirectors since 1 Apríl 2017 

Issuer (Vice-chairman of the Board of Directors) 

Teplárna Otrokovice a .. . 

Mr. Brom worked at UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia, a.s. (Director ofCorporate Finance Advisory), 
UniCredit CAIB Czech Republic a.s. (Vice-president, member of the Board of Directors, Director and Chainnan 
ofthe Board ofDirectors). 

He worked, among other, in the following companies beside the Issuer: 4NET.TV solutions a.s. (member of the 
Board ofDirectors), PERIPHETUS, a.s. (member ofthe Supervisory Board), FOLANENSYS, a.s. (member ofthe 
Supervisory Board). 

Jan Stuchlík 

2013-
2015-
2016-
2017-

Member ofthe Board ofDirectors since I Apríl 2017 

LAMA energy a.s. (Finance Manager) 
DIGI CZ s.r.o. (Finance Director) 
Gas Intemational s.r.o. (Manager) 
Issuer (member ofthe Board ofDirectors) 

Mr. Stuchlík is currently involved in the following companies beside the lssuer: TO Servisní s.r.o. (Statutory 
Representative), DIGI CZ s.r.o. (Procurator), Gas Intemational s.r.o. (Statutory Representative), LAMA CZECH 
a.s. (member of the Supervisory Board), sCENTRE Bohemia a.s. (member of the Supervisory Board), 
PERIPHETUS, a.s. (member of the Supervisory Board), FOLANENSYS, a.s. (member of the Supervisory Board), 
LAMA MEDIA, a.s. (Procurator). 

2.4.2 Supervisory Board 

The Supervisory Board is the oversight body of the Issuer which oversees the exercise of the powers of the Board 
of Directors and the perfonnance of the Issuer's business operations, in particular whether the business activity 
is carried out in accordance with applicable legislation, the Articles of Association and resolutions of the General 
Meeting. 

The Issuer's Supervisory Board has seven members, one ofwhom is the chairman and two are vice-chairmen ofthe 
Supervisory Board. The Supervisory Board is seated at the registered office ofthe Issuer's headquarters: Objízdná 
1777, Otrokovice, postal code 765 02. 

Members of the Supervisory Board are elected and recalled by the General Meeting, or the sole shareholder 
exercising the powers ofthe General Meeting. The Supervisory Board elects the chairman and vice-chairmen ofthe 
Supervisory Board from among its members. 

Members of the lssuer's Supervisory Board include Petr Lamich, date of birth: 21 November 1962, residence: 
Gudrichova 762, 747 41 Hradec nad Moravicí; Miroslav Kopřiva, date of birth: 13. July 1953, residence: 
B. Němcové 334, 788 15 Velké Losiny; Karel Skopal, date of birth: 28 November 1943, residence: Kvasická 40, 
763 62 Tlumačov; Pavel Ondra, date of birth: IO September 1974, residence: Březinova 556/11, Žabovřesky, 
616 00 Brno; Pavla Gromusová, date of birth: 17 January 1969, residence: č.p. 193, 763 61 Žlutava; Bedřich 
Landsfeld, date ofbirth: 24 May 1959, residence: Masarykova 278, 763 02 Zlín - Malenovice; and Jiří Veselý, date 
ofbirth: 21 December 1974, residence: Na Uličce 1360, 765 02 Otrokovice. 

Below is an overview ofrelevant information conceming the members ofthe lssuer's Supervisory Board: 

Petr Lamich Chairman ofthe Supervisory Board since 4 November 2013 

Mr. Lamich is currently involved in the following companies beside the lssuer: LAMA GAS & OIL s.r.o. 
(Statutory Representative), NEWPORT PARK ONE a.s. (shareholder), LAMA TRADE a.s. (Chairman ofthe 
Board ofDirectors), LAMA energy a.s. (Chairman of the Board of Directors), LAMA POWER a.s. (Chairman 
ofthe Board of Directors), LAMA ENERGY GROUP a.s. (Chairman of the Board of Directors, shareholder), 
Epsomite Investment a.s. (Chairman of the Board of Directors), Almadyn Investment a.s. (Chairman of the Board 
ofDirectors), Nefrite Investment a.s. (Statutory Director and Chairman ofthe Management Board). 
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Miroslav Kopřiva 

1996-

Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. 

Vice-chairman ofthe Supervisory Board since 4 November 2013 

ENERGOTIS, s.r.o. (Statutory Representative) 

Mr. Kopřiva worked at ČEZ, a.s. (Construction Director at PV power plant Dlouhé Stráně), ČEZ-OKE (Technical 
Officer, Technology Department Head, Chief Engineer of Construction of PVE Dlouhé Stráně). 

He is currently involved in the following companies beside the Issuer: ENERGOTIS, s.r.o. Loučná nad Desnou 
(Director, Statutory Representative, shareholder), Hotel Dlouhé Stráně, s.r.o. Loučná n. D. (Statutory 
Representative), ComHotel s.r.o. Praha (Statutory Representative), Municipality of Velké Losiny (member of the 
town assembly), Olomouc Region (member ofthe regional assembly). 

Karel Skopal Member ofthe Supervisory Board since 1 October 2013 

In 1995 - 2010 he worked at Tehos s.r.o. Otrokovice (Director, Statutory Representative), Bytové hospodářství s.p. 
Otrokovice (Director). Mr. Skopal terminated the Supervisory Board membership as at 31 December 2018. 
Mr. Skopal is not involved in any other company. 

Pavla Gromusová Member of the Supervisory Board since 17 February 2014 

1994- Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. (Investment and Asset Management Officer) 

Ms. Gromusová is not involved in any other company. 

Pavel Ondra 

2008-
2017-
2015 -

Member ofthe Supervisory Board since 17 February 2014 

LAMA ENERGY GROUP a.s. (Investment Director, shareholder) 
LAMA ENERGY GROUP a.s . (member ofthe Board ofDirectors) 
DIGI CZ s.r.o. (Statutory Representative) 

He held various positions in companies included in the J&T Finance Group, Plzeňská energetika a.s. (Finance 
Director), Teplárna Liberec, a.s. (Chairman of the Board of Directors), United Energy Trading, a.s. (Chairman 
ofthe Board ofDirectors, Finance Director, Vice-chairman ofthe Board ofDirectors). 

Mr. Ondra is currently involved in the following companies beside the lssuer: DIGI CZ s.r.o. (Statutory 
Representative), TOLANO MANAGEMENT SE (Statutory Director and Chairman ofthe Management Board), TV 
PROGRAMMING & MEDIA SE (Statutory Director and Chairman of the Management Board), WTCO 
INVESTMENT s.r.o. (Statutory Representative), Czech Association of Satellite Operators z.s. (Chairman of the 
Board of Directors), PERIPHETUS, a.s. (member of the Board of Directors), FOLANENSYS, a.s . (member of the 
Board of Directors), Epsomite Investment a.s. (member of the Board of Directors), Almadyn Investment a.s. 
(member of the Board of Directors), Amethyst Investment a.s. (Statutory Director and member of the Management 
Board). 

Bedřich Landsfeld Member of the Supervisory Board since 7 December 2015 

2010 -
2010 -
1992-

City of Zlín (Councillor, Deputy Mayor) 
City of Zlín (city assembly member) 
ARIMEX Zlín, spol. s r.o. (Statutory Representative, shareholder) 

He worked at Technické služby Zlín, s.r.o. (Statutory Representative), Dekor Keramika Tupesy, s.r.o. (Statutory 
Representative, shareholder). 

Mr. Landsfeld is currently involved in the following companies beside the Issuer: ARIMEX Zlín, spol. s r.o. 
(Statutory Representative, shareholder), Berani Zlín, s.r.o. (mernber ofthe Supervisory Board). 

Jiří Veselý 

2018-
2018 -
2014 - 2018 

Member of the Supervisory Board since 26 August 2016 

ZLIN EST A TES s.r.o. 
Townhall of Otrokovice (Councilman) 
Townhall ofOtrokovice (Deputy Mayor) 
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Mr. Veselý is not involved in any other company. 

2.4.3 Audit Committee 

On 22 December 2017, the sole shareholder of the Issuer, exercising the powers of the General Meeting pursuant 
to Section 12(1) of the Business Corporations Act, set up the Audit Committee, defined its rights and duties and 
appointed members ofthe Committee as follows: 

Marek Janča, date ofbirth: 26 August 1973, residence: Froncova 734, Hostavice, 198 00 Prague 9; 
David Lamich, date ofbirth: 29 March 1988, residence: Boženy Němcové 1264/1, Předměstí, 746 01 Opava; 
Pavel Průdek, date ofbirth: 16 June 1949, residence: Hliníky 283, 664 59 Telnice 
Václav Moll, date ofbirth: 26 August 1975, residence: Havlíčkova 95, Řícmanice, 664 01 Bílovice nad Svitavou 

2.5 Conflict of interests and compliance statement 

The lssuer is not aware of any possible conflict of interests between the obligations of the members of the Board 
of Directors and the Supervisory Board in relation to the Issuer and their persona! or other obligations. The Issuer 
complies with all requirements pertaining to the business management of the Issuer as set out in generally binding 
regulations of the Czech Republic, in particular Act No. 89/2012 Col!., the Civil Code, as amended, and Act No. 
90/2012 Col!. 

2.6 Remuneration of statutory bodies' members 

2.6.1 Remuneration ofthe members ofthe Company's statutory bodies is exclusively govemed by executive 
service agreements, which fully comply with Section 59 et seq. of Act No. 90/2012 Col!., on Business 
Corporations and Cooperatives (the Business Corporations Act). Members ofthe statutory bodies 
decide collectively on Company matters pursuant to Section 156 (1) of Act No. 89/2012 Coll., the Civil 
Code, as amended. Executive service contracts, including their amendments, are always approved by 
the General Meeting of the Company. 

2.6.2 Members ofthe Board ofDirectors receive the following bonuses and benefits: 

(a) The monthly remuneratíon is paid regularly after the end of the calendar month. Members of the Board 
of Directors shall be excused from the performance of their obligations under this Agreement 
for a period not exceeding 25 business days in a calendar year (hereinafter the "Excused Absence"). 
The Company shall, in principie, allow members of the Board of Directors to apply Excused Absence 
for a period required by the relevant member of the Board of Dírectors, however, the Company reserves 
the right to alter the duration of the excused absence should the Company's critical requirements 
and operations need to be adequately ensured. The entitlement to excused absence not applied 
by 31 March of the following calendar year shall expire. Financial compensation for non-applied 
excused absence is prohibited. 

(b) The annual remuneration is due to members of the Board of Directors in addition to the monthly 
remuneration; the annual remuneration is derived from the Company' s financial results for the past 
reporting period and is calculated according to the fulfillment of the tasks assigned to the relevant 
member and meeting of the annual targets. The method of calculating the annual remuneration and 
determining the annual targets of members of the Board of Directors is set out for each calendar year and 
is decided by the supreme body ofthe Company. · 

(c) Non-competition clause: Each executive service agreement includes a non-competition clause that may 
be subject to a refund where applied. 

(d) Travel allowance: Members of the Board of Directors are entitled to travel allowances pursuant 
to applicable legislation. 

(e) Benefits: Members ofthe Board of Directors do not receive benefits corresponding to benefits provided 
to Company employees under the Company's interna( directives; members of the Board of Directors 
receive only a supplementary pension insurance contribution in the amount stipulated in the agreement 
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2.6.3 Members of the Supervisory Board receive regular monthly remuneration after the end ofthe calendar 
month. 

Tota! remuneration paid in 2018: 

Statutory body Number of Amount in CZK 
members thousand 

Board of Directors 3 6,890 

Supervisory Board 7 1,140 

Audit Committee 4 476 

Tota! 8,506 

2. 7 Diversity policy for members of the statutory bodies 

Although the Company has not formally implemented and approved diversity policy for its statutory bodies, 
the composition of these bodies does meet the diversity criteria. In the future, the Company expects to formalize 
the diversity policy rules. 
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III. ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE OF THE ISSUER 

TO Servisní s.r.o. 
lnvestment and Asset 

Management 
Services Outsourcing 

OHS, Fire and Environmental 
Protection 

Technical Development 
Human Resources, Payroll 

and IMS 
PR and Marketing 

Energy Trading 

3.1 Employee headcount 

Production 
Manager division 

Production 
Maintenance 

Heat Distribution 
Malenovice 
Operation 

Teplárna 0 1rokovicc a.s, 

Finance and Sales 
Manager division 
Logistics and Sales 

Accounting 

The average number of employees ofthe Issuer was 155 in 2018. The average number of employees ofthe Issuer's 
subsidiary was 9 in 2018. 

3.2 Subsidiary ofthe Issuer and its activities 

The Group consists ofthe Issuer and its Subsidiary. 

3 .2.1 Identification information 

Company name: 

Business registration No. (IČO): 

Tax identification No. (DIČ): 

Registered office: 

Date of incorporation: 

TO Servisní s.r.o. 

292 26 368 

CZ29226368 

Objízdná 1777, 765 02 Otrokovice, Czech Republic 

15 June 2010 
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3.2.2 Scope ofbusiness 

The scope ofbusiness ofthe Issuer's Subsidiary as listed in the Commercial Register is: 

(a) locksmithery and tooling; 
(b) manufacture, installation, repair of electrical machinery and devices, electronic and telecommunication 

equipment; and 
(c) production, trade and services not listed in Annexes l to 3 ofthe Trade Licensing Act. 

3.2.3 Statutory bodies ofthe Subsidiary 

The Statutory Representatives ofthe company as at 31 December 2018 were as follows: 

Ondřej Foltýn, date ofbírth: 18 June 1977, residence: č.p. 158, 767 01 Kostelany 
Date ofappointment: 15 June 2010 

Petr Jeník, date of birth: 18 April 1962, residence: Tlustého 2042/22, Horní Počernice, 193 00 Prague 9 
Date ofappointment: 26 February 2014 

Pavel Prejza, date ofbirth: 8 July 1966, residence: Chomutovská 2232/22, 434 01 Most 
Date of appointment: 26 February 2014 

Jan Stuchlík, date ofbírth: 9 July 1988, residence: Malá 1175/7, Kylešovice, 747 06 Opava 
Date of appointment: l Apríl 2017 

3.2.4 Key activities 

The Issuer's Subsidiary primaríly provides regular supplies of coal to the Issuer and carries out investment projects 
for the Issuer. In addition to these activities, the Issuer's Subsidiary also carríes out engineering work for the heat 
plant Teplárna Kyjov, a.s. 

3.2.5 Agreements entered into within the Group 

An overview of agreements entered into between the Issuer and its Subsidiary as at 31 December 2018: 

Contracting status of the 
Agreement In effect as of Issuer's Subsidiarv 

Seiler Purchase contract for lignite supply 30 May 2014 

Customer Service agreement 30 March 2014 

Seiler Purchase contract for coal supply l August 2014 

Provider Framework service agreement 30 September 2014 

Seller Framework purchase agreement 12 February 2015 

Lessor Agreement on lease of business premises 31 March 2016 

Lessee Contract for passenger car lease 13 Julv 2017 

Provider Reconstructíon of flue gas desulphurizatíon 21 October 2017 

Buyer Future electricity and heat supply for a back-up power 15 August 2017 
source with gas motors 

Provider Greening ofK3, K4 boilers 10 July 2017 

Lessor Lease of land for construction of a back-up power source 1 September 2017 

Buyer Preliminary purchase agreement on water supply for the 30 August 2017 
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back-up power source and wastewater drainage 

Lessee Contract for passenger car lease 31 August 2018 

Seller Framework purchase agreement 1 February 2018 

Debtor Loan agreement 15 February 2018 

Seller Purchase agreement 1 March 2018 

Builder Contract establishing the right to build 14 March 2018 

Controller Persona! data processing agreement 24 May2018 

Supplier Contract for work 29 June 2018 
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IV. STRUCTURE OF THE ISSUER'S GROUP 

4.1 Sole shareholder of the Issuer 

The Sole Shareholder ofthe Issuer is LAMA ENERGY GROUP a.s., with its registered office at Gudrichova 763 , 
747 41 Hradec nad Moravicí, business registration number 640 86 259, entered in the Commercial Register under 
file number B 10953, maintained by the Regional Court in Ostrava (the "Sole Shareholder"). The Company's 
shares are held by five natural persons; the majority shareholder is Petr Lamich, date ofbirth: 21 November 1962, 
residence: Gudrichova 762, 747 41 Hradec nad Moravicí, who holds an interest of 85% with an equal share in the 
registered capital and in the voting rights ofthe Sole Shareholder. 

The nature of the Sole Shareholder's control over the Issuer is governed by the rights and obligations of the Sole 
Shareholder associated with the interest in the Issuer where the Sole Shareholder exercises the powers of the 
lssuer's supreme body. The Issuer has not adopted any measures against the abuse of control by the majority 
shareholder. To prevent the control and controlling influence of the controlling entity, the Issuer applies the lega! 
instrument of Report on Related Parties. 

The Issuer is not aware of any actions that may lead to a change in its control. 

4.2 LAMA Group 

4.2.1 Organizational structure of LAMA Group 

The chart depicts all companies of LAMA Group 
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4.2.2 Briefdescription ofLAMA Group 
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According to an interna! analysis of the Issuer, the LAMA Group ranks second in production of crude oil and 
natural gas in the Czech market. The LAMA Group also focuses on trade in energy commodities, production, 
distribution and sale of heat and power generation. Other activities of the LAMA Group in the Czech market 
include the provision of mobile operator services, fixed internet connection, satellite and Internet television 
operation, and real estate business. 
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The LAMA Group is also active in the energy sector outside of its home region. The Group is engaged in gas trade 
in Slovakia and in oil trade in Canada. The LAMA Group also develops its operations in Mongolia where it focuses 
on geological exploration. 

4.2.3 History and development ofLAMA Group 

The history of the LAMA Group dates back to 1991, when its founder and majority owner Petr Lamich began 
to trade in energy commodities. From the very start, he has focused on the Centra! European region and the key 
activity was trade in heavy fuel oils. As LAMA Group's business and reputation grew, the company has expanded 
its operations to trade in oil, oil derivatives, coal, coal derivatives, natural gas, scrap metal and real estate. 

In 2002, Petr Lamich acquired an interest in LAMA GAS & OIL, s.r.o. (formerly Česká naftařská společnost -
Czech Petroleum Company), which specialized in providing advisory in the field of crude oil and natural gas 
extraction. As a result, the company was able to invest in its own prospection, exploration, and production of oil 
and natural gas in the Czech Republic. According to an interna! analysis performed by the Issuer, LAMA GAS & 
OIL is the only company which succeeded in finding new crude oil and natural gas deposits and in launching 
commercial extraction without any experience in extraction of these raw materials prior to 1989. 

In response to the liberalization of the Czech electricity and gas markets, Petr Lamich and his partners founded 
LAMA ENERGY a.s. (formerly LAMA INVESTMENTS a.s.), which initially specialized in supplying gas 
to wholesale customers. Over the years, LAMA ENERGY has acquired major industrial companies and heat plants 
in the Czech Republic as its customers. Since the liberalization ofthe household gas market in 2010, the company 
began to seli gas under the brand levnyplyn.cz for significantly lower rates than the former monopoly suppliers. 
In 2011, the company's service portfolio was expanded to include electricity supply. 
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In 2011, LAMA Group was restructured and separate ownership interests were transferred to parent company 
LAMA ENERGY GROUP a.s., which is responsible for coordination of specific operations and the strategie 
development ofthe Group. 

In 2013 , the [ssuer was included in the Group and this step has changed the position of the LAMA Group from 
energy supplier to energy producer. The lssuer supplies heat and power for the town of Otrokovice and to large 
companies seated in the nearby industrial zone. 

2013 also saw developments in the activities of PETROLAMA ENERGY CANADA INC., founded jointly with 
experienced Canadian experts and traders in petroleum products in 2011. It was incorporated into the LAMA Group 
in 2013. Aside from trade in petroleum products and running its own fleet of tank rail cars for railway transport 
ofthe products, in September 2013 PETROLAMA ENERGY CANADA launched a terminal for processing and 
refining of crude oil in the district of Alida (Saskatchewan province), which is connected to the Enbridge­
Saskatchewan pipeline. The LAMA Group sold the terminal in mid-2016. 

Another Canadian activity involves preparations for extraction from a new crude oil deposit in the Alberta province 
with production capacity of up to 300 million barrels. The site is operated by Petrolama Namur Oil Sands 
Exploration Inc., which is also included in the LAMA Group. 

In the fourth quarter of2013, the LAMA Group launched the LAMA MOBILE brand, which is now a full service 
mobile virtual network operator operated by DIGI CZ s.r.o. 

Since April 2015, DIGI CZ s.r.o. has been part ofthe Lama Group (or its lega! predecessor, DIG[ Czech Republic, 
s.r.o.). The company provides services of paid TV rebroadcasts across the Czech Republic and, in addition 
to satellite television DIGI TV, it also offers Internet television launched in September 2016. 

The LAMA Group is headquartered in Hradec nad Moravicí, where a modem administrative complex has been 
built. In addition, the Group has office facilities in Prague. 

4.2.4 Selected LAMA Group companies 

Below is a description of the LAMA Group companies (except the Issuer), which are the most important in terms 
oftheir impact on the LAMA Group's business. 

(a) LAMA GAS & OIL s.r.o. 

LAMA GAS & OIL s.r.o. (LGO) was incorporated into the Lama Group in 2011. LGO is one ofthree companies 
active in prospection, exploration and extraction of oil and natural gas deposits in the Czech Republic. LGO was 
founded in 1996. In 1996-2000, the company' s main activities comprised advisory in the field of petroleum 
geology, seeking investment opportunities in exploration and production of hydrocarbons, and business activities . 

In 2000, LGO launched prospection and exploration of hydrocarbons in an assigned exploration area near the town 
of Břeclav. This exploratory work resulted in the localization of oil and flammable natural gas deposits in the 
Poštorná area. Due to its consistent and professional work, the company has identified several hydrocarbon deposits 
in the area. With 14 active boreholes, the company currently extracts and supplies from five surface sites about 
80,000 cubic meters of natural gas a day to its customers. There has been parallel oil extraction in volumes ranging 
from 10 to 15 m3/day. 

Investments made in the previous years have provided a solid basis for sustaining the current volumes of production 
in the Jong run and for generating financial resources to invest in new projects within the LAMA Group. 

(b) LAMA energy a.s. 

LAMA energy a.s. (LE) was included into the Lama Group in 2011. LE is an experienced, traditional and reliable 
supplier of natural gas and electricity. Today its broad range of supplies meets the requirements of both small 
household consumers and the largest energy consumers in the Czech Republic. Since 2011 the company has also 
supplied gas to Slovakia. 
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Unlike single-purpose business companies reselling commodities, LE is part of the LAMA Group with its own gas 
extraction and power generation. The company's operations are based on a flexible pricing policy and a tailor-made 
customer approach. According to OTE's statistics, LE ranks among the leading energy suppliers in the Czech 
market. 

In 2018, the company supplied a total of3.48 TWh ofnatural gas and 0.70 TWh ofelectricity to over 75,000 points 
of delivery, ofwhich 0.94 TWh ofnatural gas and 0.19 TWh of electricity was supplied to the retail segment. 

(c) Teplárna Kyjov, a.s. 

Heat plant Teplárna Kyjov, a.s. (TKY) was included in the LAMA Group in 2015. TKY's principal business 
comprises production and distribution of heat, provision of ancillary energy services and power generation for the 
needs of the local region. In the production of beat TKY primarily utilizes waste beat from the neighboring glass 
production lines ofthe glassworks VETROPACK MORAVIA GLASS, as well as natural gas. 

(d) DIGI CZ s.r.o. 

DIGI CZ s.r.o. (DIGI) joined the LAMA Group in 2015 (or its then lega! predecessor, DIGI Czech Republic, 
s.r.o.). DIGI focuses on the provision of paid satellite and Internet TV rebroadcasts in the Czech market. The 
company's inclusion in the LAMA Group has initiated the modemization of the broadcast technology, expansion 
ofthe program offering, including exclusive rights to selected sports programs, provision of Internet connection 
services and online television broadcasting. 

(e) PETROLAMA ENERGY CANADA INC. 

PETROLAMA ENERGY CANADA INC. (PLEC) was included in the LAMA Group in 2013. It is the most 
important foreign company, in which LAMA Group holds an interest. The principal business of PLEC is the 
purchase, blending, storage, transport and sale of crude oil originating in Canada in the North American market. 
In May 2016, a substantial part of the company's assets, including the Alida crude oil terminal, was sold for 
the purchase price ofCAD 53 million. 

(f) PETRO LAMA NAMUR OIL SANDS EXPLORA TION INC. 

PETROLAMA NAMUR OIL SANDS EXPLORA TION INC. (PNOSE) joined the LAMA Group in 2013. PNOSE 
is the second largest owner of the Namur crude oil deposit in Alberta, Canada. The exploration work was 
completed and the mining approval process with the relevant state administration bodies is underway for the daily 
extraction volume of some 10,000 barrels. In 2018, the Alberta energy regulator issued approval of the project. 

4.2.5 Dependence ofthe Group on LAMA Group 

The Group is indirectly controlled by Mr. Petr Lamich, who is the majority shareholder of the Sole Shareholder. 
The Group's dependence on the LAMA Group is reflected in the extent to which the Group utilizes the stable 
support and synergy of the LAMA Group, and is also the result of the centra! management of the LAMA Group by 
the Sole Shareholder. The relations between the Group and the LAMA Group are also documented in the following 
agreements entered into by and between the Issuer, the Issuer's Subsidiary and other members of the LAMA 
Group. 

An overview of agreements entered into with other Group companies and the financial data as at 31 December 2018 
are included in the Report on Related Parties and in the Consolidated Financial Statements ofthe Issuer. 
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V. HISTORY AND DEVELOPMENT OF THE ISSUER 

5.1 Founding, incorporation and existence of the Issuer 

The Issuer was founded on 9 August 2011 by the deed of foundation (NZ 348/2011, N 423/2011) under the law 
ofthe Czech Republic as a joint-stock company named MARRITIMA ENERGY a.s. The Issuer was incorporated 
by registration in the Commercial Register maintained by the Regional Court in Brno under the file number B 6437 
on 18 August 2011 . 

On 21 June 2013, MARRITIMA ENERGY a.s., as at that date with its registered office at Optátova 708/37, 
637 00 Brno - Jundrov, business registration number (IČO) 292 90 171, as the successor company, and Teplárna 
Otrokovice, as at that date with its registered office at Objízdná 1777, 765 02 Otrokovice, business registration 
number (IČO) 463 47 089, as the acquired company approved a merger through consolidation of the foregoing 
companies pursuant to Act No. 125/2008 Col!., on Transformations of Business Companies and Cooperatives, 
as amended (the TBCC Act), and change in the name and registered office of the successor company to Teplárna 
Otrokovice a.s., with its registered office at Objízdná 1777, 765 02 Otrokovice, business registration number (IČO) 
292 90 171. The relevant date of the merger was determined 1 January 2013 and the merger was recorded in the 
Commercial Register on 1 November 2013. The revaluation effects were recorded in the closing financial 
statements and in the opening balance sheet of the Issuer as the successor company. A detailed description of the 
division in the form of a spin-offthrough merger is included in the Issuer's closing financial statements for the year 
ended 31 December 2012 and in the opening balance sheet prepared as at 1 J anuary 2013. 

On 15 June 2015, the Issuer, as the successor company, and BioSolar Otrokovice s.r.o., as at that date with its 
registered office at Objízdná 1777, 765 02 Otrokovice, business registration number (IČO) 276 36 798, as the 
acquired company, approved a merger through consolidation of the foregoing companies pursuant to the TBCC 
Act. The relevant date of the merger was determined 1 January 2015 and the merger was recorded in the 
Commercial Register on 1 September 2015. The effects of the merger were recorded in the closing financial 
statements and in the opening balance sheet ofthe successor company prepared as at 1 January 2015. 

5.2 Registered capital ofthe Issuer 

The Issuer's registered capital amounts to CZK 10,000,000 (in words: ten million Czech crowns) and has been fully 
paid up. The registered capital is divided into 100 shares with a nominal value of CZK 100,000 per share. Ail 
shares are book-entry registered shares. 

5.3 History and development of the Issuer 

5.3 . l History ofthe heat plant 

In the 1930s, the footwear company Baťa built a power plant that supplied electricity and heat not only to the Baťa 
factory in Otrokovice, but also to a housing estate, a hotel and a business center. The power plant was one ofthe 
pioneers of combined heat and power cogeneration. 

In the second half of the 20th century, demand for energy supplies increased and environmental requirements 
tightened. Two boilers were installed in the heat plant, and in 1976 three steam boilers and two backpressure 
turbines were put into operation. The heat plant ranked among the modem combined heat and power plants. 
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5.3.2 Modem history 

In 1992, the heat plant Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. was founded, the centra] heat distribution system was modernized 
and a hot water supply network was built to supply heat to customers in Otrokovice and Zlín - Malenovice. In 2012, 
the Issuer purchased a part of NBTH, s.r.o. in Napajedla, which provides heat distribution in the Nábřeží area. 
In 2013, the Issuer joined the LAMA Group. 

5.4 History and development of the Issuer's Subsidiary 

The Issuer's Subsidiary, TO Servisní s.r.o., was founded on 15 June 2010 as E-Eko Malenovice s.r.o. From the 
start, the company was established for the purpose of building a new biomass source in Zlín - Malenovice, but this 
project was terminated before construction started due to a change in the subsidy conditions for renewable energy 
sources. In 2014, already owned by the Issuer, the company resumed its operations comprising transport of fuel 
(coal) to the Issuer. ln addition to providing fuel and implementing investment projects for the Issuer, the company 
also carries out engineering work for the Teplárna Kyjov heat plant. On 25 March 2014, the company was renamed 
from E-Eko Malenovice s.r.o. to TO Servisní s.r.o. 
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VI. CORE OPERATIONS OF THE ISSUER 

The Issuer's core operations include production and distribution ofheat, generation and trading of electricity and 
provision of ancillary services. 

6.1 General information 

The Issuer produces electricity and heat through cogeneration, i.e. high efficiency combined heat and power 
generation. This production method guarantees the best possible efficiency of operations, is environmentally 
friendly and is subsidized in accordance with the Act on Supported Energy Sources. 

6.1.1 Production and distribution of heat and related services 

The Issuer produces heat by firing lignite and black coal and, with regard to the support for the use of renewable 
sources, also biomass. The total installed thermal capacity of the five boilers is 348.6 MW, of which three are 
in operation with an installed thermal capacity of 308.6 MW. The volume of heat supplies amounts 
to approximately 1.5 million GJ annually. 

A substantial portion ofthe heat produced by the Issuer is supplied as steam for the industrial sector; key customers 
comprise Continental Barum s.r.o., TOMA, a.s. and Fatra, a.s. Heat as hot water is supplied for residential 
buildings, schools, the service sector and other organizations in Otrokovice, Zlín - Malenovice and Napajedla. 

In total, the Issuer supplies heat, directly or indirectly, for more than 9,000 households. In Otrokovice, heat 
is supplied through the distribution company TEHOS s.r.o., and in other areas directly to final customers. The total 
length ofthe steam and hot water networks owned by the Issuer is 53 kilometers. 

6.1.2 Power generation and trading 

The installation used by the lssuer for electricity generation consists of one backpressure turbine with two 
controlled outlets and one condensing turbine, also with two controlled outlets. The total installed capacity of the 
installation is 50 MW. 

The principal final buyer of electricity generated in the Issuer's installation is Continental Barum s.r.o. The lssuer 
also supplies electricity to LAMA energy a.s., which resells it. 

6.1.3 Provision of ancillary services 

The Issuer also provides ancillary services to ČEPS, a.s. The type of ancillary services provided by the lssuer 
is referred to as secondary regulation and "Minute Backup (MZt) (t = 15 minutes)". As part of this service, 
the lssuer undertakes to either supply the vol ume of the missing power or increase consumption within "t" minutes 
ofthe ČEPS dispatching center's alert. 

Prices for the ancillary services provided are determined on the basis of a transparent market principie and the 
selection of ancillary services providers is based on an open and non-discriminatory approach to all entities that 
meet the qualification requirements for the provision of ancillary services in the relevant category. In most cases, 
ancillary services are provided under agreements concluded for a period exceeding one year. The agreements are 
concluded between ČEPS and the ancillary services providers according to the results oťtransparent tenders. 

6.2 Other activities of the Issuer 

Other activities carried out by the Issuer include the installation and financing of proportional meters, thermal 
imaging, operation ofthe water supply network on the premises ofTAJMAC-ZPS, a.s. and the sale oftechnological 
air. 
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6.3 Research and development activities 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1746 (2) of Act No. 89/2012 Col!., the Civil Code, as amended, and pursuant 
to the relevant provisions of Act No. 130/2002 Col!. on the Support for Research, Experimental Development and 
Innovation from Public Funds and on Amendments to Certain Related Acts (the Act on Support for Research and 
Development), as amended, the Issuer concluded a cooperation agreement on a research and development project 
with Tomáš Baťa University in Zlín, Nám. T.G. Masaryka 5555, 760 01 Zlín, business registration number (IČ): 
70883521, tax identification number (DIČ): CZ7088352. The project leader is the Faculty of Applied Informatics, 
the title of the project is "Distributed System of Management of the Regional Heat and Cool Supply System 
Designed as a Smart Energy Grid" (hereinafter the "Project"). The Project was approved by its funder, the 
Technology Agency ofthe Czech Republic, under a Grant Agreement No. 20 l6TH02020979. 

Work on the Project is scheduled to continue for several years: from January/2017 to June/2020, the costs of the 
Issuer for the entire project period are estimated at CZK 4,750 thousand. The costs incurred by the Issuer in 2018 
amounted to CZK 1,348,000; the amount ofthe subsidy in 2018 was CZK 245,000. 

6.4 Auditor's fees 

The supreme body of the Company determined on 5 September 2018 that the audit firm selected to perform 
a statutory audit ofTeplárna Otrokovice a.s. for the year ended 31 December 2018 is Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o. 

The supreme body ofthe Company deterrnined on 20 June 2018 that the auditor selected to carry out a statutory 
audit ofthe subsidiary, TO Servisní s.r.o., for the year ended 31 December 2018 is Ing. Ondřej Krátký, registered 
in the Chamber of Auditors ofthe Czech Republic under No. 2437. 

Auditor's fees are distributed as follows: 
The fees dueto Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o., for statutory audits performed in 2018 and 2017 totaled CZK 675,000 
and CZK 1,000,000, respectively. The cost ofother assurance services in 2018 and 2017 amounted to CZK O and 
CZK l, 166,000, respectively. Other assurance services received in 2017 related primarily to bond issues. 

6.5 Key customers of the Issuer 

For historical reasons, the Issuer supplies heat and electricity to large businesses in the proximity of the Issuer's 
location 

6.5. l Breakdown of2018 revenues by product 

ln CZK thousand 
Sale ofheat 566,656 

Sale of electricity and related services 678,233 

Other 13,192 

Total 1,258,081 

6.5.2 Sale of electricity and related services 

The principal buyer of electricity and related services is Continental Barum s.r.o., which accounts for 57% of total 
revenues generated in 2018. The contract for power supply to Continental Barum s.r.o. is concluded for a fixed 
period until 31 December 2019. 

In 2018, Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. succeeded in a tender organized by electricity transmission system operator 
ČEPS for the provision of ancillary services for the period of 2019 - 2021. In the ancillary services market, 
the share ofTepláma Otrokovice among all market participants will increase from 1.8% in 2018 to 3.2% in 2019. 

Ancillary services facilitate ensuring the quality and reliability of the electricity supply in the transmission system. 
Producers providing this service undertake to have the contracted capacity on standby and supply it to the grid 
when needed. 
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Breakdown of 2018 revenues from sale of electricity and related services by customer 

In CZK thousand 
Continental Barum s.r.o. 383,769 

LAMA energy a.s. 155,273 

CEPS, a.s. 123,695 

Other 15,496 

Tota) 678,233 

6.5.3 Sale ofheat 

Heat produced by the Issuer is supplied primarily to households and businesses. 

The principal buyer of heat is Continental Barum s.r.o., which accounts of 61 % of total revenues generated in 2018. 
The contract for heat supply to Continental Barum s.r.o. is concluded for a fixed period until 31 December 2019. 

Another significant heat buyer is TEHOS s.r.o., which then supplies the purchased heat to households in the 
Otrokovice area as final customers. The contract for heat supply to TEHOS s.r.o. is concluded for an indefinite 
period with a floating notice period of 12 months. The Issuer supplies heat directly to households in Napajedla and 
Zlín. 

Breakdown of 2018 revenues from sale of beat by customer 

In CZK thousand 
Continental Barum s.r.o. 343,370 

TEHOS s.r.o. 50,491 

Other 172,795 

Total 566,656 

6.6 Major suppliers of the Group 

The key fuel used by the Group for heat production is coal suppl ied by the Subsidiary to the Issuer. The lssuer also 
purchases electricity from LAMA energy a.s. ofthe LAMA Group. 

The Issuer purchases materials and services from reliable, proven and annually rated suppliers. The lssuer has 
concluded long-term contracts for purchases of essential commodities such as coal, water and lime. Likewise, the 
Issuer has signed long-term contracts for the recurring purchase of office supplies, chemicals, tools, diesel fuel and 
other materials. The Issuer regularly conducts tenders to ensure the best price for ordered materials, repairs and 
construction work. 

In 2018 the lssuer carried out large investment projects related to the greening of its installation. The Issuer's 
Subsidiary is in charge ofthese investment projects for the Issuer. 
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o verv1ew o f maior suno 1ers o t e r f h G roup 

Suoolier Buyer Suoolied commodity/service 

LAMA energy a.s. lssuer Electricity 

CARMEUSE CZECH REPUBLIC s.r.o. lssuer Lime for desulphurization technology 

Povodí Moravv, s.p. Issuer Water 

Sev.en Commodities AG, odštěpený TO Servisní s.r.o. Coal 
závod (formerly Severní energetická a.s.) 

Sokolovská uhelná, právní nástupce, a.s. TO Servisní s.r.o. Coal 

ST AG BET a.s. TO Servisní s.r.o. Coal 

EKOBAU INVEST a.s. TO Servisní s.r.o. Construction part of KS gas boiler 

INVELT SERVIS s.r.o TO Servisní s.r.o. Machine part of KS gas boiler 

TENZA, a.s. TO Servisní s.r.o. K4 boiler denitrification 

GE Power s.r.o TO Servisní s.r.o. L2 line desulphurization 
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6. 7 Key markets 

6.7.1 Description ofkey markets 

The Issuer operates in the energy market of the Czech Republic. Within this market, the Issuer participates in the 
electricity and thermal energy markets. 

(a) Electricity market 

Participants in the electricity market include the electricity producer (produces electricity and sells it to other 
market participants), the customer (consumes electricity from the grid under an electricity supply contract), 
the electricity trader, the energy exchange, the distribution system operator (ČEZ Distribuce, a.s., E.ON Distribuce, 
a.s. and PREdistribuce, a.s., which distribute electricity to final customers), the transmission system operator ČEPS, 
a.s., the electricity market operator OTE, a.s. (it operates the electricity market, in particular it registers market 
participants, processes business transactions, meters and evaluates imbalances and carries out their settlement) 
and the ERO as the regulator (inter alia, it issues licenses to all licensed participants pursuant to the Energy Act and 
determines the amount of subsidies for supported energy sources pursuant to the SES Act). The Issuer holds 
a license to generate and trade in electricity. 

The electricity market is divided into an organized market where participants trade with one centra! counterparty, 
primarily the energy exchange, and a non-organized market where the participants trade separately with each other 
and are not restricted in executing transactions by any special rules as in the organized market. 

Prices of electricity supplied to final customers are to a large extent unregulated and these rates are influenced by 
supply and demand in the market. The regulated component of the electricity price is comprised of a fee for 
reserved capacity, a fee for system services, a fee for renewable energy sources, and a fee paid to the market 
operator. 

(b) Thermal energy market 

Participants in the thermal energy market include the holder of a license for production or distribution of heat, 
the customer, and the ERO, which in addition to issuing licenses regulates mainly the prices ofthermal energy. 

Unlike the electricity market, the thermal energy market is wholly unorganized. In terms of the supplied heat 
pricing, this market is more regulated, as suppliers are required to calculate the prices of supplied heat 
in accordance with the relevant price decision issued by the ERO. The regulation of heat prices is based on factual 
pricing. The Issuer holds a license for heat production and distribution. 

( c) Ancillary services market 

As the transmission system operator, ČEPS is obligated to ensure a balance between electricity supply and offtake 
in the transmission system. In order to meet this obligation, ČEPS purchases regulating energy through its ancillary 
services, which is used for (i) missing capacity when consumption is higher than generation, or (ii) a reduction 
in generation or an increase in consumption in the event of excess generation. 

ČEPS purchases regulating energy in several categories of ancillary services under agreements on prov1s10n 
of ancillary services concluded with individua! power producers certified to provide the relevant type of ancillary 
services. Due to its exclusive position, ČEPS is the sole buyer of ancillary services. The Issuer provides ancillary 
services in the categories ofsecondary regulation and "Minute Backup (MZt) (t = 15 minutes)". 

(d) Market participation ofthe Issuer 

The Issuer participates in the aforementioned markets on the basis of the operation of its high-efficiency combined 
heat and power cogeneration installation. The Issuer participates in the electricity market and ancillary services 
market as the holder of a license for generation and trading of electricity; the Issuer participates in the thermal 
energy market as the holder of a license for heat production and distribution. 
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The Issuer holds the following licenses pursuant to the Energy Act: 

• electricity generation license - this license permits the Issuer to generate electricity under the conditions set 
out thereof. The electricity generation license is issued for a maximum of 25 years, whilst the current 
license held by the Issuer is valid until 17 October 2038; 

• electricity trading license - this license permits the Issuer to trade in electricity under the conditions set out 
thereof. The electricity trading license is always issued for a period of 5 years, whilst the current license 
held by the Issuer is valid until 15 October 2023; 

• thermal energy production license - this license permits the Issuer to produce thermal energy under the 
conditions set out thereof. The thermal energy production license is issued for a maximum of 25 years, 
whilst the current license held by the Issuer is valid until 17 October 2038; and 

• thermal energy distribution license - this license permits the Issuer to transmit, accumulate, convert heat­
transfer substances or their parameters and supply thermal energy to heat distribution facilities under 
the conditions set out thereof. The thermal energy distribution license has been granted to the Issuer for 
an indefinite period. 

To its knowledge, the Issuer is not aware of its dominant or significant market position. 

6.8 Regulation of the Issuer's activities 

6.8.1 General information 

The Issuer operates in the energy sector. In the Czech Republic, entities may pursue business in the energy sector 
solely under a license issued by the ERO. The licensing process is govemed by the Energy Act. The ERO may 
change the decision to grant a license or revoke the license ifthe conditions specified in the Energy Act are met. 

6.8.2 Support for electricity generation 

Since the Issuer generates electricity in a combined heat and power installation, the installation is eligible for 
subsidies as a supported energy source. In the Czech Republic, support in this area is govemed by the Act 
on Supported Energy Sources (ASES) and the related Decree of the Ministry of Industry and Trade No. 37/2016 
Coll., on electricity from combined heat and power cogeneration and electricity from secondary sources. 
Specifically, support is provided for electricity produced in combined heat and power cogeneration, which 
is deemed to be electricity generated in an installation: 
• with an installed capacity ofmore than 1 MW; 
• producing power and useful heat in a cogeneration process; 
• for which the Ministry of Industry and Trade has issued a certificate of origin of electricity from combined 

heat and power cogeneration; and 
• which in production of heat and power ach ieves primary energy savings of at least l 0% compared to separate 

production of electricity and heat. 

Support for combined heat and power cogeneration is provided in the form of green bonus. The green bonus for 
electricity is determined in CZK/MWh and for electricity from combined heat and power cogeneration and 
secondary sources is provided as an annual green bonus for electricity. The green bonus settlement is carried out 
by the market operator on the basis of metered or computed values of generated electricity recorded by the market 
operator, i.e. OTE, a.s. If the producer applies, the market operator is obligated to pay out the green bonus for 
electricity from combined heat and power cogeneration after the aforementioned settlement. 

The amount of the green bonus is determined annually by the ERO for the following calendar year based on price 
decisions. When determining the annual green bonus amount, the ERO takes into account the location of the 
installation, the installed capacity, the primary fuel used and the operating mode. The green bonus may change 
every year depending on market electricity prices, thermal energy prices, prices of the primary energy source, 
production efficiency and the period of operation of the power-generation installation. 

The green bonus for electricity from combined heat and power cogeneration consists of two rates - basic and 
supplementary. However, the supplementary rate applies only for the firing of certain types of fuels and does not 
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impact the Issuer. According to the ERO price decision No. 3/2017, in effect for 2018, the rate applicable for the 
Issuer ranges from CZK 60/MWh to CZK 140/MWh, but mostly stays at CZK 60/MWh. According to the ERO 
price decision No. 9/2018, in effect for 2019, the rate applicable for the lssuer has increased to CZK 188/MWh -
CZK 268/MWh, but the lower rate of CZK 188/MWh prevails. 

The lssuer also receives the green bonus for electricity produced by co-firing biomass and different energy sources, 
with tbe exception of municipal waste, in tbe process of combined beat and power cogeneration. Tbis support 
applies only for a portion of electricity produced in combined beat and power cogeneration, based on tbe proportion 
of used biomass. According to the ERO price decision No. 3/20 l 7, in effect for 2018, the rate applicable for the 
Issuer's production is CZK 2,460/MWh for the S 1 rate, and CZK 1,320/MWh for the S2 rate. According to tbe 
ERO price decision No. 3/2018, which is in force for 2019, these rates will be CZK 2,250 for the Sl rate and CZK 
1, 11 O for the S2 rate. The Issuer applies primarily the S 1 rate. 

6.8.3 Regulation ofheat prices 

As the beat supplier, the Issuer has an obligation to seli beat to its customers at regulated prices. The regulation 
ofbeat prices is based on factual pricing. Regulated prices are determined to cover "economically justifiable costs" 
ofproduction and distribution of beat, plus depreciation and a "reasonable profit" to ensure retum on investment 
and value added tax. 

In order to regulate prices of tbermal energy, the ERO issues price decisions providing guidelines for beat price 
regulation. At present, the ERO price decision No. 2/2013 of I November 2013 on the prices of thermal energy 
is in effect, as amended by the ERO price decision No. 4/2015 of 6 November 2015 (Price Decision). The Price 
Decision provides a formula for calculation of prices of thermal energy that suppliers must observe when 
calculating their rates, and also specifies the "economically justifiable costs" and "reasonable profit" used 
in calculating beat prices. 

The ERO is not authorized to determine prices ofthermal energy. These prices are determined by the beat supplier 
in compliance with the Price Decision. In addition, in accordance with the principie of non-discrimination, the heat 
supplier must set prices for all customers in the same pricing area (defined by the supplier in accordance with 
tbe mandatory rules) at tbe same Jeve! that is calculated according to the formula specified in the Price Decision. 

Prices of thermal energy calculated in compliance witb the Price Decision can be negotiated with customers either 
as a single-component rate based on the unit volume ofthermal energy, or as a two-component rate with a variable 
component related to tbe unit volume of thermal energy and a fixed component related to the unit volume 
ofthermal energy or a thermal output unit, which correspond to the Jong-term need of the distribution 
or consumption thermal installation. The application of a one-component or two-component rate is defined in the 
agreement concluded between the buyer and the supplier. 

Assuming that the price calculated in compliance with the Price Decision does not allow the beat supplier to cover 
its production costs, the supplier may ask the ERO for an exemption to set a higher rate to generate a "reasonable 
profit". However, if the supplier sets rates for its customers for the supply of beat that exceed the regulated prices 
determined in accordance with the Price Decision without being granted an exemption, the ERO may, pursuant 
to Act No. 526/1 990 Col!. , on Pricing, impose a fine on the supplier of up to five times the amount of the excessive 
financial benefit, which the supplier has generated by setting higher prices, and may order to retum the excessive 
financial benefit to the beat consumer. 

6.8.4 Decarbonization of the Issuer' s installation 

In response to the increasing regulatory pressure to reduce emissions and use best available technologies, which 
stems, inter alia, from Directive 20 l 0/75/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council on industrial emissions, 
the lssuer carries out a partial decarbonization of its installation by replacing one coal-firing boiler with 
the construction of a boiler firing natural gas (see Article 6.6.). 
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VII. BOND ISSUE 

7.1 Nominal value, type, total nominal value of the issue 

The bonds, issued by Teplárna Otrokovice a.s., with its registered office at Objízdná l 777, Otrokovice, postal code 
765 02, business registration number: 292 90 171, incorporated under the laws of the Czech Republic in the 
Commercial Register maintained by the Regional Court in Brno, Section B, File 6437 (the lssuer), with a total 
nominal value of the issue of up to CZK 1,251,000,000 (in words: one billion two hundred and fifty one million 
Czech crowns), bearing a floating interest rate, mature in 2023 (the Issue and separate bonds issued within the 
Bond lssue), are governed by the issue terms and conditions (lssue Terms and Conditions) and Act No. 190/2004 
Coll., on Bonds, as amended (the Bonds Act). The Issue was approved by the decision of the Issuer's Board 
of Directors of 4 December 2017. The ISIN of the Bonds assigned by the Centra! Depository (as defined below) 
is CZ00035 l 7732. The title ofthe Bonds is "Dluhopisy TEPL. OTR. VAR/23". 

The Bonds have been issued as book-entry securities pursuant to the Bonds Act. Each bond has a nominal value 
ofCZK 3,000,000 (in words: three million Czech crowns). 

Pursuant to Act No. 256/2004 Coll., on Capital Market Undertakings, as amended, and Commission Regulation 
(EC) No. 809/2004, implementing Directive 2003/71/EC ofthe European Parliament and ofthe Council as regards 
information contained in prospectuses as well as the format, incorporation by reference and publication of such 
prospectuses and dissemination of advertisements, as amended (the Regulation), the Issuer has drawn up a Bond 
prospectus (the Prospectus), which comprises the Issue Terms and Conditions. The Prospectus was approved by 
the ČNB decision, ref no. 2017/165380/CNB/570, file no. S-Sp-2017/00045/CNB/572 of 13 December 2017, 
which came into force on 14 December 2017. The Prospectus was published in accordance with the relevant 
legislation. The lssue Terms and Conditions were published as part ofthe Prospectus and are posted on the Issuer's 
website www.tot.cz, in the section "About the Company" - "Investor Relations". 

The Issuer has applied for an admission of the Bonds to trading on the Regulated Market of the Prague 
Stock Exchange, a.s. (BCPP) and the Bonds were listed on the regulated market as at the Issue Date, i.e. 
21 December 2017. 

Under a mandate agreement for the procurement of a bond issue of 9 October 2017, as amended by later 
amendments, (Mandate Agreement), the Issuer has appointed Česká spořitelna, a.s., with its registered office 
at Olbrachtova 1929/62, Prague 4, postal code 140 00, business registration number: 452 44 782, registered in the 
Commercial Register maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague, File number B 1171, the manager for activities 
related to the Issue preparation and to public offering and placement ofthe Bonds with final investors. 

Ali activities of the administrator in connection with the payment of interest income and redemption of the Bonds 
are performed by Česká spořitelna, a.s., with its registered office at Olbrachtova 1929/62, Prague 4, postal code 
140 00, business registration number: 452 44 782, registered in the Commercial Register maintained by the 
Municipal Court in Prague, Section B, File 1171. 

In 2018, the Issuer made payments to bondholders on the bas i s of the first and second yield period s. 

The first yield period was from 21 December 2017 (inclusive) to 21 June 2018 (exclusive), and the date 
of determining the reference rate was 19 December 2017. The reference rate is 0.85% p.a., the margin is 2.80% p.a. 
(280 bps), and the total interest rate in the first yield period is 3.65% p.a. , which represents interest income per bond 
ofCZK 55,358.33 . The payment was made on 21 June 2018. 

The second yield period was from 21 June 2018 (inclusive) to 21 December 2018 (exclusive), and the date 
ofdetermining the reference rate was 19 June 2018. The reference rate is 1.01% p.a., the margin is 2.80% p.a. 
(280 bps), and the total interest rate in the second yield period is 3.81 % p.a., which represents interest income per 
bond of CZK 58, I 02.50. The payment was made on 21 December 2018. 

A third yield period was set for bondholders from 21 December 2018 (inclusive) to 21 June 2019 (exclusive) and 
the date of determining the reference rate was 19 December 2018. The reference rate is 2.08% p.a., the margin 
is 2.80% p.a. (280 bps), and the total interest rate in the third yield period is 4.88% p.a., which represents interest 
income per bond ofCZK 74,013 .33. 
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7.2 Use ofthe Bonds 

The Issuer has used the funds received through the Bond Issue to finance its operating needs in the ordinary course 
of business, in particular to repay its debts to: Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft, acting through Commerzbank 
Aktiengesellschaft, Prague Branch, under a syndicated loan agreement of 4 January 2013 , as amended, and 
to LAMA ENERGY GROUP a.s., under a loan agreement of2 January 2013. 

7.3 Status of the Bonds 

The Bonds constitute direct, general, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated liabilities of the Issuer, which 
are and will rank pari passu among themselves and at least pari passu with any present and future unsecured and 
unsubordinated liabilities of the lssuer, with the exception of liabilities treated preferentially under applicable 
mandatory laws. The Issuer is required to treat all bond holders equally under the same terms. 

Neither the shareholders ofthe lssuer nor any other person have any pre-emptive and exchange rights to the Bonds, 
nor any preferential subscription right. 

7.4 Obligations of the Issuer 

The Issuer shall not, until the full repayment of all of its liabilities arising from the Bonds, establish or permit the 
establishment of any Securing of Indebtedness that would fully or partially restrict its rights to current or future 
assets or income unless, at the !atest concurrently with the establishment of such Securing, the Issuer ensures that 
all liabilities arising from the Bonds are secured equally with the Securing of Indebtedness or secured using another 
method approved by a resolution ofthe Meeting. 

The provisions ofthe preceding paragraph do not apply to any Security (current or future): 
• established for shares, interests or similar direct shareholder contributions of the Issuer in its Subsidiary 

as a security for any debt financing ( except financing related to issuance of bonds, bills of exchange and other 
securities) provided by any third party outside ofthe Lama Group to the Issuer or to its Subsidiary; 

• attached to or arising from the Issuer's assets in the course of ordinary business; 
• attached to or arising from the Issuer's assets in connection with hedging derivatives closed on by the lssuer 

or its Subsidiary to hedge against fluctuations of interest rates or exchange rates (for the avoidance of doubt, 
with the exception of any derivative used for speculative purposes ); 

• arising from indebtedness under the contractual arrangements of the lssuer or its Subsidiary and existing 
as at the Issue Date, including refinancing of debts arising from such arrangements, secured by the lssuer 
up to the amount ofthe original Security; or 

• established to secure any indebtedness of the Issuer or its Subsidiary arising from Project Financing, assuming 
that the assets or revenues, for which the Security has been established, constitute the assets which are used 
or will be used in connection with a project to which the Project Financing is attached, or revenues 
or receivables arising from the operations, non-compliance with the agreed parameters or other conditions 
of expropriation, sale, destruction of or damage to said assets; or 

• arising out ofthe law or dueto a court or administrative decision. 

The Issuer is required to ensure that the aforementioned obligation to not establish a security for current and future 
assets and revenues is met by the Subsidiary under the same conditions. 

The Issuer is required to ensure that until the full repayment of all of its liabilities arising out of the Bonds, it will 
not execute any transaction that would directly or indirectly lead to an increase in the Group's Indebtedness if, 
as a result of such transaction, the Consolidated Net Indebtedness Ratio would exceed the Permitted Value 
or a Case of Breach would occur or was impending or persisting. The Consolidated Net Indebtedness Ratio 
is calculated on a pro forma basis from the !atest Net Indebtedness data available as at the date of the intended 
increase in Indebtedness, taking into account the relevant transaction. This restriction does not apply for: 

• Indebtedness in the form of any guarantee or a guarantee as a guarantor's statement, financial guarantee 
or warranty, or assumption of the joint and indivisible liability of the lssuer or its Subsidiary to third parties 
outside ofthe Lama Group; 

• Indebtedness arising from the law or by virtue of a court or administrative decision to the detriment of the 
Issuer or its Subsidiary; 
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• Indebtedness arising in the course of ordinary business of the Issuer or its Subsidiary (including documentary 
letters of credit and bank guarantees issued in connection with the performance of certain obligations of the 
Issuer or its Subsidiary); 

• Indebtedness related to hedging derivatives closed on by the Issuer or its Subsidiary to hedge against 
fluctuations of interest rates or exchange rates (for the avoidance of doubt, with the exception of any 
derivative used for speculative purposes); 

• Indebtedness related to Project Financing ofthe Issuer or its Subsidiary; 
• Indebtedness related to refinancing of any debts of the Issuer or its Subsidiary existing as at the Issue Date 

(up to the amount ofthe refinanced debt); 
• Indebtedness in the form of a subordinated loan from the parent company of the Issuer and until the maturity 

ofthe Bonds, at no time exceeding the amount ofCZK 100,000,000; and 
• Any other Group indebtedness than mentioned above under Articles (a) to (g), ofup to CZK 50,000,000. 

The lssuer is required to ensure that the aforementioned obligation to not execute any transaction that would 
directly or indirectly lead to an increase in the Group's Indebtedness if, as a result of such transaction, the 
Consolidated Net Indebtedness Ratio would exceed the Permitted Value or a Case of Breach would occur or was 
impending or persisting is met by the Subsidiary under the same conditions. 

The lssuer is not authorized to execute any transaction with any Lama Group entity other than on an arm's-length 
basis. 

The Issuer is required to ensure that the Subsidiary does not execute any similar transaction. 

The lssuer is not authorized to seli, lease, transfer, pledge or otherwise dispose of, in one or more transactions, 
any of its assets the value of which exceeds CZK 50,000,000 (Limited Disposition) or the equivalent of the 
amount in other currencies if, as a result of such transaction, the Consolidated Net Indebtedness Ratio would exceed 
the Permitted Value, or a Case ofBreach would occur or is impending or persisting. 

The lssuer is authorized to carry out a Limited Disposition of assets if the transaction is executed at fair market 
value and more than 75% of the received consideration is paid in cash or Cash Equivalents, unless it involves 
a transfer of assets to a business undertaking of the Issuer' s Subsidiary, or if a non-pecuniary consideration received 
by the Issuer is valued by an independent expert, an auditor or a financial institution as an objective equivalent 
ofthe asset subject to the Limited Disposition, including the assessment of a possible offset of receivables, 
in particular in relation to the amount, maturity and objective existence of the relevant receivables, there 
is no impending or persisting Case of Breach, when executing a transaction in the amount of or exceeding 
CZK 50,000,000 the Issuer obtains a pre-valuation of the subject of the transaction from an independent expert, 
an auditor or a financial institution and (iv) uses the proceeds for operating purposes or for redemption ofthe 
Bonds. 

The Consolidated Net Indebtedness Ratio is calculated from the !atest Net Indebtedness data available as at the date 
ofthe intended Limited Disposition of Assets, taking into account the execution ofthe relevant Limited Disposition 
on a pro forma basis. 

The Issuer is required to ensure that the above authorization to execute the Limited Disposition applies for the 
Subsidiary under the same conditions. 

Until the full repayment of all liabilities arising from the Bonds, the Issuer is not authorized to propose the payment 
of any dividends, other profit shares, equity interests or similar amounts (such as advances for dividends or interest 
on unpaid dividends) (Payment) and make any direct or indirect payment to repay subordinated debts (including 
payment of interest) (Prohibited Payment) if, as a result of such Payments or Prohibited Payments, 
the Consolidated Net Indebtedness Ratio would exceed the Permitted Value or if a Case of Breach would 
be impending or persisting. The Consolidated Net Indebtedness Ratio is calculated from the ]atest Net Indebtedness 
data available as at the date of Payment or Prohibited Payment, taking into account such Payment or Prohibited 
Payment on a pro forma basis. 

7.5 Definitions 

For the purposes of Article 7.4 (Obligations of the Issuer), the following terms have the following meaning (if any 
term used in this Article is not defined, it has a meaning assigned to it in IFRS). 
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Net lndebtedness is calculated from the consolidated statement of financial position and is the result ofthe 
following formula: 
Long-term loans and borrowings + Short-term loans and borrowings - Cash and cash equivalents. The Net 
Indebtedness Indicator is included for the calculation ofthe Consolidated Net Indebtedness Ratio. 

EBITDA is a financial performance indicator ofthe enterprise's operating performance because it does not include 
interest and tax payments, depreciation and amortization. The EBITDA indicator is inc\uded for the calculation 
ofthe Consolidated Net Indebtedness Ratio. 

The Issuer's EBITDA is calculated from data based on the Consolidated profit and loss statement and the Notes 
to the consolidated financial statements. For the Relevant Period it is calculated as follows: 
Profit before taxes (Consolidated statement of comprehensive income) 
• increased by depreciation of fixed assets (Consolidated statement of comprehensive income ); 
• increased by interest expense and the loss on revaluation of derivatives (Notes to the consolidated financial 

statements - Artic\e Financial revenues and expenses -Item Interest expense - Other financial items - Gain 
(loss) on revaluation ofprofit/loss from financial instruments to fair value; 

• reduced by the gain on revaluation of derivatives (Notes to the consolidated financial statements - Artic\e 
Financial revenues and expenses - Item Interest expense - Other financial items - Gain (loss) on revaluation 
ofprofit/loss from financial instruments to fair value; 

• reduced by interest income (Notes to the consolidated financial statements - Article financial revenues and 
expenses - Item Interest income ); and 

• reduced by the profit share (increased by the share of the loss) of affiliates and joint ventures after taxes 
(Consolidated statement of comprehensive income ). 

Consolidated Net lndebtedness Ratio means the Group's Net Indebtedness Ratio to the Group's EBITDA for the 
last ended Relevant Period, for which interna) financial statements are available immediately before the Relevant 
Date. 

Permitted Value means 4.5. 
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VIII. INFORMATION ON PROJECTED DEVELOPMENT OF THE ENTITY AND 
EXPECTED ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL POSITION IN 2019 

In 2019, the Company will continue to make scheduled investments in the Company's assets in accordance with the 
approved investment and repair pian. The Iargest investment projects are related to greening measures at the heating 
plant aimed to reduce emissions. These measures will ensure the Company's readiness to meet tighter 
environmental limits that come into effect as of I July 2020. Ali investment projects are carefully evaluated 
in terms of economics to ensure a positive financial benefit for the Company. 

In addition, a financial pian for 2019 has been drawn up which, with regard to the current economic conditions, sets 
the target profit for the Company and its subsidiary. The Company does not anticipate any major changes in its 
economic or financial conditions 

Ali relevant information is and will be posted on the Company's website. 

33 



Consolidatcd Annual Report 20 18 TePl ťlmu 0 1rokovicc a.s. 

IX. REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON BUSINESS OPERA TIONS AND 
ASSETS 

9.1 Company operations 

The core operations of Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. (the "Company") include production and distribution ofheat and 
the related services, generation and trading of electricity and provision of ancillary services. The Company 
produces electricity and heat through cogeneration, i.e. high efficiency combined heat and power generation. This 
production method guarantees the best possible efficiency of operations and is environmentally friendly. 

Thermal energy is supplied to industrial customers as steam and to households as hot water to ensure heating and 
hot water for household use. 

A substantial portion of the produced heat is supplied for the industrial sector; key customers comprise Continental 
Barum s.r.o., Fatra, a.s. and TEHOS s.r.o. 

Heat as hot water is supplied for residential buildings, schools, shopping centers and other organizations 
in Otrokovice, Zlín - Malenovice and Napajedla. 

In Otrokovice, heat is supplied through the distribution company TEHOS s.r.o., and in other areas directly to final 
customers. The Company supplies heat for more than 9,200 households. 

The Company' s subsidiary, TO Servisní s.r.o., ensures transport of fuel and provision of services related 
to investment activities for the Company. 

On 21 December 2017, the Company issued bonds that have been admitted to trading on the Prague Stock 
Exchange regulated market. Since the Company became publicly listed in 2017 and the Company's reporting 
is based primarily on IFRS, the General Meeting of Shareholders has decided that as of I January 2017 
the Company prepares financial statements only in accordance with IFRS. 

The financial and economic situation of the Company has been stable. In 20 I 8, the Company recorded solid results 
in terms ofrevenue. Even though sales of heat were lower than in 20 I 7, this deci i ne was offset by incorne from the 
sale of electricity and the provision of related services which boosted overall revenues. The Company and the 
Group posted a loss for 2018. 

In 2018, the Company succeeded in ČEPS's tender for the provision of ancillary services for the period of 2019 -
2021 . The Company will provide positive secondary regulation in the next three years. In the ancillary services 
market, the share of Teplárna Otrokovice among all market participants will increase to 3 .2% in 2019. 

Revenues generated in 2018 amounted to CZK 1,258,081 thousand, representing an increase of CZK 29,084 
thousand year-on-year. Of the total, heat sales totaled CZK 566,656 thousand, representing a decrease of CZK 
19,593 thousand year-on-year, and sales of electricity and related services totaled CZK 678,233 thousand, which 
constitutes an increase of CZK 49, 118 thousand compared to 2017 . 

Heat supplies in 2018 fell by 93,481 GJ year-on-year to a total of 1,528,377 GJ. The drop in heat supply was 
primarily due to unseasonally warm weather. Temperatures stayed above the five-year average throughout the year 
except for February and March. As a result, heat supply in 2018 fell by 6% compared to 2017. 

The Company posted a loss before taxes of CZK 25 . 1 million for 2018 according to IFRS, and loss after taxes 
in the arnount ofCZK 20.6 million . 

The Group reported a consolidated loss before taxes of CZK 31.2 mi li ion for 2018 according to IFRS, loss after 
taxe s of CZK 25 .6 million. 

The negative economic result ofthe Company and ofthe Group stems in particular from operating costs which rose 
by CZK 90 million compared to 2017. The operating costs represent predominantly the consumption of emission 
rights that the Company has to purchase in addition to the allocated rights. Retween the end of 2017 and the end 
of 2018, the price of the emission rights increased from EUR 8.09/t to EUR 24.63/t. 
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In 2018, total assets of the Group and of the Company increased by 1.0% each and totaled CZK 2,376 million 
(Group) and CZK 2,373 million (Company) as at 31 December 2018. Even though neither the Group nor the 
Company generated net profit, their assets recorded a moderate increase, primarily as a result of a long-term 
increase in fixed assets dueto the investments carried out by the Group and the Company in 2018. Spending ofthe 
Group and the Company on investments in amounted to CZK 276 million and CZK 256 million, respectively. 
Conversely, the volume of cash of the Group and the Company fell by CZK 141 million and CZK 161 million, 
respectively, compared to 2017. 

9 .2 Investments and repairs 

The Company focuses on upgrades and reliability of the technological equipment while minimizing 
the environmental impact and increasing occupational safety. 

The Company's major investment projects in 2018 comprised environmental measures to reduce nitrogen oxide 
emissions of the K4 boiler, and reconstruction of one of the flue gas desulphurization lines. Furthermore, 
construction of a new gas boiler K8 was commenced. 

The Company also invested in expansion and reconstruction of the distribution network and the connection of new 
customers. In 2018, the company Lual - Lunga in Zlín - Malenovice, among others, was connected to centra! heat 
supply. Reconstruction of the exchanger station was completed and heating of the buildings in the Elektrosystem 
premises in Zlín - Malenovice began. 

A CNG station was built in 2018 to provide CNG supplies to Continental Barum. In addition, the Company 
invested in energy efficiency measures. Another investment project carried out by the Company in 2018 was 
reconstruction of the office building, window replacement and facade insulation. 

9 .3 Environmental protection 

No significant failure or accident occurred in 2018 that would result in an uncontrolled discharge ofemissions and 
the need to deal with emergency situations. The K3, K4 and K5 boilers are equipped with a continuous emission 
monitoring device installed at the flue. A one-time measurement of emissions by a certified measurement 
laboratory confinned the proper operation of the continuous monitoring equipment for emissions discharged into 
the atmosphere. 

The emission limits set out in the integrated permit for solid pollutants, sulfur dioxide and oxides of nitrogen were 
not exceeded in 2018. 

The Company was included in the Transitional National Emission Reduction Pian. 

The Company has been gradually implementing greening measures (e.g. the project for recirculation offlue gas was 
already finalized) ; projects carried out in 2018 include the construction ofDeNOx emission reduction technology 
in the K4 boiler and reconstruction of the desulphurization line 2 (2019 - DeNOx in K4, reconstruction 
ofthe desulphurization line 1). 

The construction ofthe K8 gas boiler was commenced in parallel with the foregoing projects. The gas boiler will be 
used as an operating substitute for the K5 boiler, which will be decommissioned after 30 June 2020. 

These measures will ensure the Company's readiness to comply with more stringent environmental limits that will 
come into effect as of 1 July 2020. 

9.4 Homan resources 

The Company had I 54 employees as at 31 December 20 I 8, of whom 45 held administrative jobs and l 09 were 
blue-collar workers. 

In December 2018, the Company and the local organization of the ECHO trade union at Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. 
signed a collective agreement for 2019, which govems the relations between the two parties, their rights and 
obligations, and provides for increased or additional labor, payroll, social and other requirements ofthe employees. 
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The employer provides preventive medical care for all employees, contributes to supplementary pension insurance, 
ensures catering on site and pays 55% ofthe value ofmeal vouchers. Employees may also obtain interest-free loans 
for housing purposes. In addition, employees receive another benefit - a contribution to their sports activities, 
cultural events, health and recreation. 

9.5 Occupational health and safety 

Two light occupational injuries requiring medical interventi on were reported in 2018. The contributing factors 
to the low rate of work-related accidents in the area of occupational health and safety (OSH) were, in addition 
to ongoing refurbishment and modemization of some sections of the Company operations and regular 
inspections and maintenance, ongoing identification and evaluation of potential risks to life and health of the 
employees and adoption ofmeasures to eliminate them. 

9.6 Research and development 

The Company supports R&D activities and in 2017 signed a Cooperation Agreement for a R&D Project with 
Tomáš Baťa University in Zlín. Within the scope of mutual collaboration, the Company participates in the project 
"Distributed Management System ofthe Regional Heat and Cooling Supply Network", designed as a Smart Energy 
Grid. The project was launched in January 2017 and is slated for completion in June 2020. 

9.7 Corporate social responsibility 

Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. is aware of its social responsibility. The Company actively participates in the development 
of the region, supports projects of nearby municipalities, organizations and associations, primarily in the areas 
of healthcare, educational, cultural, social and leisure activities for children and youth. Most of the funds 
earmarked for donations or sponsorships are disbursed in Otrokovice, Napajedla and Zlín. 

In 2018, the Company supported the non-profit organizations Charita Zlín, Nadace Křižovatka, Senior Otrokovice, 
DDM Sluníčko Otrokovice and the preschool in Zlín - Malenovice. 

9.8 Projected development 

The Company wants to continue to be a reliable and stable supplier of heat and electricity, to behave responsibly 
towards the environment and participate in the regional development. In the coming period, the Company will 
make every effort to ensure stable, cost effective and environmentally fi-iendly supply of heat and electricity 
to customers and to expand and improve the range of services provided. 

The Company's priorities in 2019 include investments in the greening ofthe heat plant and in the development and 
upgrade of networks. 

Investments scheduled for 2019 total CZK 285 million, of which CZK 235 million will be spent on enhancing 
the environmentally fi-iendly performance ofthe heat generation source. 

9.9 Other disclosures 

The Company has no foreign branch or part of a business company. 
The Company has not acquired or held treasury shares. 
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X. STATEMENT OF PERSONS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL 
REPORT 

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for the preparation and contents of the Consolidated Annual 
Report ofTepláma Otrokovice a.s. 

The Consolidated Annual Report gives a true and fair view of the financial position, business activities and 
financial performance ofthe Issuer and ofthe consolidated group for the past reporting period and ofthe projected 
developments regarding the financial position, business activities and financial performance. 

The Consolidated Annual Report has been prepared with due professional care and to the best of our knowledge. 
Information included in this Consolidated Annual Report is correct and is consistent with the facts. No information 
has been omitted that may alter the meaning of the Consolidated Annual Report or affect the accurate and correct 
assessment ofthe Issuer or the consolidated group. 

ln Otrokovice, 16 April 2019 

( 

~ ' 
Ch, nnan ofthe Board ofDirectors 

Ing. Patrik Brom 
Vice-chainnan of the Board of Directors Member ofthe Board o· Di rectors 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Shareholder of Teplárna Otrokovice a.s.: 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Teplárna Otrokovice, a.s. and its 
controlled undertaking ("the Company"; together with controlled undertaking "the Group") prepared 
in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union ("IFRS 
EU"), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the 
consolidated statement of profit and loss, consol idated statement of other comprehensive income, 
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. For details of the Company and the Group, see Note 1 to the 
consolidated financial statements. 

ln our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the 
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial 
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS EU. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors, Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 
of the European Parliament and the Council, and Auditing Standards of the Chamber of Auditors 
of the Czech Republic, which are lnternational Standards on Auditing ( ISAs), as amended by the related 
application clauses. Our responsibilities under this law and regulation are furt her described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group in accordance with the Act on Auditors and the Code of Ethics adopted 
by the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our 
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. 

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. 
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit 
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our 
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

A member íirm or Ernst & Young Global Limited 
Ernst & Young Audit, s. r.o. with its registered o ff ice at Na Florenci 2 116/15, 110 00 Prague 1 - Nove Mesto, 
has been incorporated in lhe Commercial Register administered by the Municipal Court in Prague, 
Sec t ion C, entry no. 88504, under ldentiíication No 26704153 , 
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lmpairment of assets 

The Group conducts annual impairment tests 
of assets' balances. The impairment test involves 
determining the recoverable amount of the cash­
generating unit as a whole or individua! assets 
as practicable, which corresponds to the value 
in use or selling price less cost to seli. Value in use 
is the present value of the future cash flows 
expected to be derived from a cash-generating 
unit. 

These calculations of potential impairment 
amounts are a key audit matter as there is 
a significant uncertainty in relation to regulatory 
matters, which are, together with other signif icant 
assumptions included in the estimated future cash 
flows, main inputs to the calculations. Main 
assumptions that are subject to significant 
estimation uncertainty are projected future coal 
prices, prices of em1ss1on allowances, 
development of the regulatory environment 
and discount rates, volume of deliveries to key 
customers as well as the strategy of the Group and 
LAMA ENERGY GROUP. Future cash flows relate 
to events and actions that have not yet occurred 
and may not occur. 

Other lnformation 

Our procedures included assessing the assumptions 
and methodologies used by the Group in their value 
in use model and assessment of the fair value less 
cost to sell. We involved valuation specialists 
in assessing the adequacy of the Group's model used 
for the calculation of weighted average cost 
of capital and we also evaluated mathematical 
accuracy, underlying data and assumptions used 
in the calculation. We evaluated main assumptions 
that are subject to significant estimates, such 
as future coal prices, prices of emission allowances, 
development of the regulatory environment and 
compared them to those observable on the market. 
We compared coal prices as well as the prices 
of emission allowances to the contracts, which are 
actively traded on the market, and we assessed 
reasonableness of the Group's projections of these 
future prices for periods, for which the market data 
are not available. We also discussed the assumptions 
with the transaction specialists. 

We analyzed the budgets and future cash flows. We 
compared the expected developments in budgeted 
cash flows to the expectations presented by the 
management while assessing the main assumptions 
of the model and discussing alternatives. We also 
assessed the adequacy of the model used for the 
impairment test calculation together with the 
mathematical accuracy of the calculations. 

Finally, we also focused on whether the Group's 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements 
in relation to the impairment of assets, as presented 
and disclosed in Note 7 Property, Plant and 
Equipment, are compliant with the IFRS EU. 

ln compliance with Section 2(b) of the Act on Auditors, the other information comprises the information 
included in the Consolidated Annual Report other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor's 
report thereon. The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information. ln connection 
with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. ln addition, we assess whether the other information has been prepared, in all material respects, 
in accordance with applicable law or regulation, in particular, whether the other information complies with 
law or regulation in terms of formal requirements and procedure for preparing the other information in the 
context of materiality, i.e. whether any non-compliance with these requirements could influence judgments 
made on the basis of the other information. 

Based on the procedures performed, to the extent we are able to assess it, we report that: 
• The other information describing the facts that are also presented in the consolidated financial 

statements is, in all material respects, consistent with the consolidated financial statements; and 
• The other information is prepared in compliance with applicable law or regulation. 

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited 
Ernst & Young Audit. s.r.o. with ils registered office at Na Florenci 2116/15, 110 oo Prague 1 - Nove Mesto, 
has been incorporated in the Commercial Register administered by the Municipal Court in Prague, 
Section c, entry no. 88504, under ldentif ication No. 26704 153. 
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ln addition, our responsibility is to report. based on the knowledge and understanding of the Group obtained 
in the audit, on whether the other information contains any material misstatement. Based on the 
procedures we have performed on the other information obtained, we have not identified any material 
misstatement. 

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and Audit Committee for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accord ance with IFRS EU and for such interna! control as the Board of Directors determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

ln preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the 
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate 
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Audit Committee is respons ible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibili ties for the Audit of the Conso/idated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole are free from mate rial misstatement, whether dueto fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with above regulations will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if , individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the above law or regulation, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identity and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether dueto fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of interna! control. 

• Obtain an understanding of interna! control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's interna! control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and , based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue 
as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify aur opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of aur auditor's report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern . 

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited 
Ernst & Young Audit , s.r.o. with its registered off ice at Na Florenci 2116/15, 110 00 Prague 1 · Nove Mesle, 
has been incorporated in the Commercial Register administered by the Municipal Court in Prague, 
Section C, entry no. 88504, under ldentification No. 26704153. 
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation . 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities 
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. 
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in interna! control that we identify du ring our audit. 

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless 
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication . 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

ln compliance with Article 10(2) of Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 of the European Parliament 
and the Council, we provide the following information in our independent auditor's report, which is required 
in addition to the requirements of lnternational Standards on Auditing: 

Appointment of Auditor and Period of Engagement 

We were appointed as the auditors of the Company by the General Meeting of Shareholder on 5 September 
2018 and our uninterrupted engagement has lasted for 6 years. 

Consistence with Additional Report to Audit Committee 

We confirm that our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements expressed herein is consistent 
with the additional report to the Audit Committee of the Company, which we issued on 15 Apríl 2019 
in accordance with Article 11 of Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 of the European Parliament 
and the Council. 

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Llmited 
Ernst & Young Audit , s,r.o, with its reglstered office at Na Florenci 2116/15, 110 00 Prague 1- Nove Mesto, 
has been incorporated in the Cornrnerclal Register adrninistered by the Municipal Court in Prague, 
Section C, entry no. 88504, under ldent ification No. 26704153. 
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Provision of Non-audit Services 

We declare that no prohibited non-audit services referred to in Article 5(1) of Regulation (EU) 
No. 537 /2014 of the European Parliament and the Council were provided by us to the Group. ln addition, 
there are no other non-audit services which were provided by us to the Company and its controlled 
undertaking and which have not been disclosed in the consolidated financial statements. 

Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o. 
Li cense No. 401 

~ (7'~7 /~ 
Roman Hauptfleisch, Auditor 
License No. 2009 

16 April 2019 
Prague, Czech Republic 

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited 
Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o. with its registered office at Na Florenci 2116/15, 110 00 Prague 1- Nove Mesto, 
has been incorporated in lhe Commercial Register administered by the Municipal Court in Prague, 
Section C, entry no. 88504, under ldentification No. 26704153. 
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Consolidated Flnancial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

for the year ended 31 December 2018 

2018 2017 
Note CZKOOO CZKOOO 

Revenue 4 1,258,081 1,228,997 
Consumption of material and energy (715,155) (628,867) 
Services (134,037) (165,423) 
Personnel expenses 5.5 (113,420) (127,999) 
Depreciation and amortization (144,456) (121,824) 
Other ope rating income 5.1 40,092 20,804 
Other operating expenses 5.2 (164,785) (75,153) 
Profit or loss on operatlng activities 26,319 130,535 
lnterest expense, net 5.3 (51,043) (65,339) 
Other financial items, net 5.4 (6,429) 20,231 
Financial profit/loss (57,472) (45,108) 
Pre-tax profit (31,153) 85,427 
lncome tax 6 5,576 (16,695) 
Net profit for the year (25,577) 68,732 
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Consofídated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 Teplárna Ot rokovice a.s. 

Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive lncome 

for the year ended 31 December 2018 

Net profit for the year 
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year, net of tax 

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 

Note 
2018 

CZKOOO 
(25,577) 

(25,577) 

2017 
CZKOOO 
68,732 

68,732 
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Consolidated Financlal Statements forthe year ended 31 December 2018 Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 

as at 31 December 2018 

Note 2018 2017 
CZKOOO CZKOOO 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

lntangible assets 8 83,436 64,387 
Tangible assets 7 1,909,962 1,761,597 

Land 159,823 159,823 
Structures 899,867 943,911 
Movab/e assets and sets of movab/e assets 632,524 619,630 
Tangible fixed assets in progress 190,099 38,204 
Advances granted for tangible fixed assets 27,649 29 

Long-term receivables 890 1,023 

Total non-current assets 1,994,288 1,827,007 

CURRENT ASSETS 
lnventories 10 88,913 98,098 
Trade receivables and other assets 11 162,013 159,848 
Current income tax receivable 8,010 

Cash 12 122,411 263,023 
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 69 242 

Total current assets 381,416 521,211 

TOTAL ASSETS 2,375,704 2,348,218 

EQUITY 

Basic capital 13 10,000 10,000 
Reserves from profit 2,000 2,000 
Retained earnings of previous years 472,503 538,771 
Net profit for the year (25,577) 68,732 

Total equity 458,926 619,503 

LIABILITIES 

Non-current liabilities 
lnterest bearing loans from related parties 9.2 
lnterest bearing loans from credit institutions 9.2 16,174 19,507 
Bonds 9.2 1,238,287 1,235,744 
Provisions 15 6,706 3,425 
Deferred tax liability 6 232,908 259,778 

Total non-current liabilities 1,494,075 1,518,454 

Current liabilities 
Provisions 15 157,976 62,735 
Trade payables 17 232,296 98,259 

lnterest bearing loans from related parties 9.2 
lnterest bearing loans from credit institutions 9.2 3,156 3,094 
Liabilities to employees 17 13,121 20,937 
Current income tax liabilities 87 6,996 
Other liabilities 17 10,895 12,696 
Accruals and deferred income 16 5,172 5,544 

Total current liabilities 422,703 210,261 
Total liabilities 1,916,778 1,728,715 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,375,704 2,348,218 
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Consolldated Flnancia l Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 

for the year ended 31 December 2018 

Retained 
Reserves from earnings of Net profit for 

Basic capital profit previous years the year Tatai 

CZK000 CZK000 CZK000 CZK000 CZK000 

As at 31 December 2016 10,000 2,000 514,316 24,455 550,771 
Profit allocation to retained 24,455 {24,455} 
earnings 

Profit for the year 68,732 68,732 

Other comprehensive income 

Tota I comprehensive income 68,732 68,732 

As at 31 December 2017 10,000 2,000 538,771 68,732 619,503 

Profit al/ocation to retained 68,732 {68,732} 
earnings 

Profit for the year {25,577) {25,577) 

Cash dividend {135,000) (135,000} 

Other comprehensive income 

Tatai comprehensive income (25,577) (25,577) 

As at 31 December 2018 10,000 2,000 472,503 (25,577) 458,926 
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Consolidated Financia l Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 

Consolidated Statement of Cash-Flows 

for the year ended 31 December 2018 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Profit or loss on ordinary activities before taxation (+/-) 

Adjustments to reconcile profit ar loss to net cash provided by ar used in operating activities 

Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets and write-off of receivables 

Change in allowances 

Change in provisions 

Foreign exchange differences 

(Gain)/Loss on disposal offixed assets 

lnterest expense and interest income 

Other non-cash movements (e.g. revaluation at fair value to profit or /oss) 

Net cash from operating activities before taxation, changes in working capital and 
extraordinary items 

Change in non-cash components of working capital 

Change in inventory 

Change in trade receivables 

Change in other receivables and in prepaid ex pense s and unbil/ed revenue 

Change in trade payables 

Change in other payables, and in accrua/s and deferred income 

Net cash from operating activities before taxation, interest paid and extraordinary items 

Interes! paid 

lncome tax paid 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Purchase of fixed assets 

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 

Loans granted 

Interes! received 

Dividends received 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Repayments of long-term and short-term loans and borrowings 

Proceeds from bond issue 

Transaction costs on issue of bonds 

Effect of changes in own capital on cash 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Teplárna Ot rokovice a.s. 

2018 
CZKOOO 

(31,153) 

260,476 

144,456 

1,435 

98,522 

(1 ,665) 

51,043 

(33,315) 

229,323 

127,709 

9,077 

{3,492} 

173 

134,037 

(12,086} 

357,032 

(48,501) 

(36,213} 

272,318 

(276,457) 

1,665 

133 

(274,659) 

{3,271) 

(135,000) 

(138,271) 

(140,612) 

263,023 

122,411 

2017 
CZKOOO 

85,427 

233,706 

121,824 

125 

3,487 

4,739 

65,339 

38,192 

319,133 

(36,040) 

{9,990) 

(16,840} 

{165} 

(8,846} 

(199} 

283,093 

(99,696} 

(32,725) 

150,672 

(109,194) 

891 

(405) 

(108,708) 

(1,120,863} 

1,251,000 

(15,256) 

114,881 

156,845 

106,178 

263,023 
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1. Corporate ínformatíon 

The consolidated financial statements of Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. and its subsidiary (collectively, the Group) for the year 

ended 31 December 2018 were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors 
on 16 April 2019. 

Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. (the Company) is a joint-stock company incorporated and domiciled in the Czech Republic whose 

shares are not publicly traded. The Company is an issuer of bonds admitted to trading on a regulated market of Prague Stock 

Exchange. The registered office is located at Objízdná 1777, 765 02 Otrokovice. The Group is principally engaged 

in production and distribution of heat and generation and trading of electricity. 

The Group's parent and ultimate parent company is LAMA ENERGY GROUP a.s., with its registered office at Hradec nad 

Moravicí 747 41, Gudrichova 763, holding 100% interest in the Company. 

lnformation on other related party relationships of the Group is provided in Note 20. 

Members of statutory, supervisory and control bodies as at 31 December 2018 were as follows: 

Board of Directors 

Chair: 

Vice-chair: 

Member: 

Petr Jeník 

Patrik Brom 

Jan Stuchlík 

Supervisory Board 

Chair: 

Vice-chair: 

Member: 

Member: 

Member: 

Member: 

Member: 

Audit committee 

Chair: 

Member: 

Member: 

Member: 

Petr Lamich 

Miroslav Kopřiva 

Jiří Veselý 

Karel Skopal 

Pavel Ondra 

Pavla Gromusová 

Bedřich Landsfeld 

Václav Moll 

Marek Janča 

David Lamich 

Pavel Průdek 

2. Sígnífícant accounting policies 

2.1. Basis of preparation 

The consolidated financial statements ofthe Group have been prepared in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS) issued by the lnternational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as endorsed by the European Union 

(hereinafter 'IFRS as endorsed by the EU', ar 'IFRS'). 

As the Company became a public interest entity in 2017 and IFRS is the Company's primary reporting framework, the General 

Meeting of Shareholders adopted the decision to prepare solely IFRS financial statements from 1 January 2017. 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under going concern assumption on a historical cost basis, except 

when IFRS requires other measurement basis as disclosed in the accounting policies below. 

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Czech crowns (CZK), which had been determined the Group's 

functional currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (CZK 000), except when otherwise indicated. 
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2.2. Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary 
as at 31 December 2018. 

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, ar has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and 

has the ability to affect those returns through its power overthe investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and 
only if, the Group has: 

• 
Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee) 

Exposure, ar rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee 

The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns 

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this presumption and when 

the Group has less than a majority of the voting ar similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and 

circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including: 

• The contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote holders of the investee 

• Rights arising from other contractual arrangements 

• The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights 

The Group re-assesses whether ar not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes 

to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over 

the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses 

of a subsidiary acquired ar disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date 

the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary. 

Profit ar loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the pa rent 

of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. 

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line 

with the Group's accounting policies. Ali intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating 

to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. 

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction . lf the 

Group loses control over a subsidiary, it: 

• Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary; 
• Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest; 
• Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity; 
• Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received; 
• Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained; 
• Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit ar loss; 
• Reclassifies the parenťs share of components previously recognized in other comprehensive income to profit ar loss 

or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets 
or liabilities. 

2.3. Summary of significant accounting policies 
The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Group in preparing its consolidated financial statements: 

2.3.1. Business combinations and goodwill 
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the 

aggregate of the consideration transferred, which is measured at the acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non­

controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whetherto measure the non-controlling 

interest in the acquiree at fair value orat the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related 

costs are expensed as incurred and included in administrative expenses. 

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and 

designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition 

date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree. 
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Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. 

Ali contingent consideration (except that which is classified as equity) is measured at fair value with the changes in fair value 

in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement 

is accounted for within equity. 

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the a mou nt 

recognized for non-controlling interests and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities 

assumed. lf the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re­

assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews 

the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognized at the acquisition date. lf the reassessment still results 

in an excess ofthe fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognized 

in profit or loss. 

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment 

testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash­

generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the 

acquiree are assigned to those units. 

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (CGU) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, 

the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying a mou nt of the operation when determining 

the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative 

values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash generating unit retained. 

2.3.2. Current versus non-current classification 
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-current classification. 

An asset is current when it is: 

• Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the norma I operating cycle; 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
• Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months 

after the reporting period. 

Ali other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 

• lt is expected to be settled in the norma I operating cycle; 

• lt is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

• lt is dueto be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 

period. 

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

2.3 .3. Fair value measurement 
The Group measures financial instruments, such as derivatives, and non-financial assets such as investment properties, at fair 

value at each balance sheet date. Fa ir value related disclosures for financial instruments and non-financial assets that are 

measured at fair value or where fair values are disclosed, are summarized in the following notes: 

Accounting policy disclosures 
Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions 
Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy 
Financial instruments (including those carried at amortized cost) 

Note 2.3.3 
Notes 3, 9 
Note 9 
Note 9 

Fair value is the price that would be received to seli an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 

market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 

to seli the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

• ln the princi pal market for the asset or liability 
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Or 

• ln the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabil ity 

The princi pal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing 

the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participanťs ability to generate economic 

benefits from the asseťs highest and best use orby selling it to another market participant that would utilize the asset in its 

highest and best use. 

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are ava ilable 

to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

Ali assets and liabilities for which fairvalue is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair 

value hierarchy. This is described, as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 

as a whole: 

• Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 

is directly or indirectly observable 

• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 

is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group 

determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the 

lowest leve l input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

The Group's management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such 

as investment properties and unquoted available-for-sale financial assets, and for nonrecurring measurement, such as assets 

held for distribution in discontinued operations. 

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and AFS financial assets, and significant 

liabilities, such as contingent consideration. 

Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. 

The Company's management decides, after discussions with the Group's external valuers, which valuation techniques and 

inputs to use for each case. 

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are requ ired 

to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group's accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major 

inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other 

relevant documents. 

The management, in conjunction with the Group's external valuers, also compares the change in the fair value of each asset 

and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable . 

On an interim basis, the management and the Group's external valuers present the valuation results to the Group's 

independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in the valuations. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, 

characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above. 
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2.3.4. Revenue recognition 

Application oj IFRS 15 

Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. 

The core principie of IFRS 15 is that an entity recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services 

to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those 

goods or services. Management has assessed that in relation to the products and services of the Group, revenue will 

be recognized for each performance obligations when control over the corresponding goods or services is transferred 

to customer. This is similar to the identification of separate revenue components under IAS 18. 

Requirements to identify a contract with a customer 

A contract with a customer meets its definition when all of the following criteria are met: the parties of the contract have 

approved the contract and are committed to perform their obligations; the Group can identify each party's rights regarding 

goods or services to be transferred; the Group can identity the payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred; 

the contract has commercial substance and it is probable that the Group will collect the consideration to which it will be 

entitled in exchange for the goods or services that will be transferred to the customer. 

ldentification of performance obligation 

At contract inception the Group assesses the goods or services promised in the contract with a customer and identifies 

as a performance obligation each premise to transfer to the customer: goods or services (or a bundle of goods or services) 

that can be separated or groups of separate goods or services which are basically the same and for which the transfer to the 

customer is of the same nature. 

Determination of transaction price 

The Group considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. 

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring 

promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, some sales 

taxes). The consideration promised in the contract with a customer may include fixed amounts, variable amounts or both. 

Allocating the transaction price to individua/ performance obligations 

The Group allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation (or distinct good or service) at an amount that 

reflects the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised 

goods or services to the customer. 

Recognition of revenue when performance obligations are satisfied 

The Group recognizes revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies performance obligations by transferring a promised good 

or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer (the customer obtains control of that asset). Revenue is recognized as amounts equal 

to the transaction price that has been allocated to a given performance obligation. 

The Group transfers control of good or service over time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes 

revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met: 

- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits from performance as the Group performs; 

- The asset is created or enhanced as a result of the performance, and the customer controls the asset as it is created 

or enhanced; 

- As a result of the performance of the service, an alternative component for the Group is not created, and the Group has 

an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. 

Specific revenue categories are treated by the Group as follows: 

Revenue jrom sole oj thermal energy and electricity 

Revenue from the sate of thermal energy and electricity (hereinafter referred as 'the energies') is recognized upon their 

delivery. Tota I revenue from the sale of energies consists of billed a mou nt of the energies supplied based on the reading 

of the measuring device as at the balance sheet date in the case of thermal and etectrical energy or through unbilled revenue 

if the reading is not available as at the balance sheet date); the sates revenue is presented net of discounts and value added 

tax. 
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Sole of goods 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recogn ized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed 

to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value ofthe 

consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. 

lnterest income 

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest bearing financial assets classified as ava ilable-for-sale, 

interest income or expense is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the 

estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, 

to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. lnterest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit 

or loss. 

2.3 .5. Foreign currencies 
The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented in Czech crowns (CZK), which is also the parent company's 

functional currency. For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the financial 

statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The Group uses the direct method of consolidation 

and on disposal of a foreign operation, the gain or loss that is reclassified to profit or loss reflects the a mou nt that arises 

from using this method. 

Transactions and balances 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group entities at their respective functional currency spot rate 

at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranstated at the functional currency spot rate 

of exchange ruling at the reporting date. 

Differences arising on settlement ar translation of monetary items are recognized in profit ar loss with the exception 

of monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group's net investment of a foreign operation. These are 

recognized in OCI until the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the cumulative amount is classified to profit or loss. 

Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCI. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 

rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fa ir value in a foreign currency are 

translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain ar loss arising on translation 

of non-monetary measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value in the 

item (i.e., the translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also 

recognized in OCI or profit ar loss, respectively). 

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation subsequent to 1 January 2015 and any fair value adjustments 

to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign 

operation and translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date. 

Graup companies 

The Company's subsidiary is incorporated in the Czech Republic and its functional currency is CZK. Consequently, 

no exchange differences arise on translation of its operations. 

2.3 .6. Government grants 
Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached 

conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis 

over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to an asset, 

it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset. 

When the Group receives non-monetary grants, the asset and the grant are recorded gross at fair value and released to profit 

or loss over the expected useful life of the asset, ba sed on the pattern of consumption of the benefits of the underlying asset 

by equal annual instalments. When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions with 

an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favorable interest is regarded as a government 

grant. 

For more details on accounting policy related to emission rights refer to Note 2.3.11. 
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2.3.7 . Taxes 

Current income tax 

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from 

or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, 

or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income. 

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit 

or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable 

tax regulations are subject to interpretation, and it establishes provisions where appropriate. 

Oeferred tax 
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 

and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

• When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that 

is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit 

or loss 

• ln respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint 

arrangements, when the timing of the reversa l of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that 

the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for: i) all deductible temporary differences and ii) the carry forward of unused tax credits 

and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 

temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except: 

• When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition 

of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects 

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss 

• ln respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests 

in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary 

differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary 

differences can be utilized 

The carrying a mou nt of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 

probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. 

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become 

probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered . 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset 

is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted 

at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are 

recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 

against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date, 

are recognized subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances change. The adjustment is either be treated 

as a reduction to goodwill (as long as it does not exceed goodwill) if it is incurred during the measurement period 

or recognized in profit or loss. 

Value added tax 
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of value added tax, except: 

• Where the value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, 

in which case, the value added tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense 

item, as applicable 
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• Receivables and payables are stated with the a mou nt of value added tax included 

The net amount of value added tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables 
or payables in the statement of financial position. 

2.3 .8. Property, plant and equipment 
Construction in progress, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated 

impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equ ipment and borrowing 

costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of property, plant and 

equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognizes such parts as individua I assets with specific useful 

lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying 

a mou nt of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Ali other repair and maintenance 

costs are recognized in the profit ar loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the 

asset after its use, is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. 

Depreciation is calculated based on the acquisition costs and the estimated useful life of the related asset. The useful 

economic lives are as follows : 

Construction 
Machinery 
Vehicles 
Furniture and fixtures 

Years 
30-45 
15-30 
8-15 
4-8 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal ar when no future economic benefits are expected 

from its use ar disposal. Any gain ar loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net 

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit ar loss when the asset 

is derecognized. 

The residua I values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial 

year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

2.3 .9. Leases 
The determination of whether an arrangement is, ar contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the 

inception date. The arrangement is assessed for whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific 

asset ar assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset ar assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified 

in an arrangement. 

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 January 2015, the date of inception is deemed to be 1 January 2015 in accordance 

with IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of lnternational Reporting Standards. 

Group os a lessee 

Finance leases that transfer to the Group substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, 

are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value 

of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and a reduction in the lease 

liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized 

in finance costs in the statement of profit ar loss. 

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will 

obta in ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the 

asset and the lease term. 

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense 

in the statement of profit ar loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

2.3 .10. Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction ar production of an asset that necessarily takes 

a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use ar sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. 

Ali other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs 

that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 
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Borrowing costs incurred on or after the date of transition (1 January 2015) for all eligible qualifying assets are capitalized. 

The borrowing costs capitalized under Local GAAP on qualifying assets prior to the date of transition to IFRS are included 

in the carrying amount of assets at that date. 

2.3.11 . lntangible assets 
lntangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired 

in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are 

carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. lnternally generated intangible 

assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is recognized in the statement of profit 

or loss when it is incurred. 

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. 

lntangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever 

there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for 

an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected 

useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted 

for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. 

The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the expense 

category consistent with the function of the intangible assets. 

lntangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or 

at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite 

life continues to be supportable. lf not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal 

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the asset 
is derecognized. 

The Group assessed all intangibles having finite useful lives and are amortized over period not exceeding five years. 

Emission rights (emission allowances) 

Emission rights held under national and international emission-rights systems for the settlement of obligations are reported 

as intangible assets. Because emission rights are not depleted as part of the production process, they are reported 

as intangible assets not subject to amortization. Emission rights are capitalized at cost at the time of acquisition orat fair 

value in case of emission rights provided for free. 

A provision is recognized for emissions produced. The provision is measured at the carrying a mou nt of the emission rights 

held or, in the case of a shortfall, at the current fair value of the emission rights needed: The expenses incurred for the 

recognition of the provision, if any, are reported under other operating expenses. 

2.3.12. Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 

instrument of another entity. 

i) Financiol assets 

lnitial recognition and measurement 

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies financial assets into one of the following categories: 

- Measured at amortized cost; 

- Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income; 

- Measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

Debt financial assets are classified into the appropriate category based on the business model used for the management 

of financial assets and on the characteristics of contractual cash flows for a given financial asset. 

Ali financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of assets not at fair value through profit or loss, 

transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
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The table below presents the effects of the implementation of IFRS 9 on the classification and measurement of the Group's 

financial assets as at 1 January 2018: 

Financial instrument by type 

Loans 

Trade and other receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Classification under IAS 39 

Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables 

Classification under IFRS 9 

Assets measured at amortized cost 

Assets measured at amortized cost 

Assets measured at amortized cost 

Purchases ar sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation 

ar convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date on which the Group 

commits to purchase ar seli the asset 

Subsequent measurement 

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as described below: 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with net 

changes in fair value presented as finance income (positive net changes in fair value) ar finance costs (negative net changes 

in fair value) in the statement of profit ar loss. 

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives if their economic characteristics and risks 

are not dosely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held-for-trading or designated at fair 

value though profit ar loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized 

in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly 

modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required ar a reclassification of a financial asset aut of the fair value through 

profit or loss. 

Assets measured at amortized cost 

This category is the most relevant to the Group. Assets measured at amortized cost include loans and trade receivables. 

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After 

initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) 

method, less impairment, if any. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition 

and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the statement 

of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit ar loss in finance costs for loans 

and in cost of sales or other operating expenses for receivables. This category generally applies to trade and other 

receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 11. 

Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized 

when : 

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

• The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay 

the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through arrangement, and either 

(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred 

nor retained substantially al! the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through 

arrangement, it evaluates if and, to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither 

transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of it, the asset 

is recognized to the extent of its continuing involvement in it. ln that case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability. 

The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that 

the Group has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original 

carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay. 
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ii) lmpairment of financial assets 

Disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets are summarized in the following notes: 

• Accounting policy disclosures Note 2.3.12 
• Disclosures for significant assumptions Note 3 
• Financial assets Note 9 
• Trade receivables Note 11 

IFRS 9 introduces a new approach to estimating the impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost orat fair 

value through other comprehensive income (with the exception of investments in capital assets and contract assets). 

The impairment model is based on the expected loss calculation as opposed to the currently applied model resulting from 
IAS 39, which was based on the concept of incurred loss. The most important items offinancial assets in the Group's financial 

statements, which are subject to the new principles of calculating expected credit losses, are trade receivables. 

The Group uses the simplified model for determining impairment allowances of trade receivables. ln the model, the Group 

does not monitor changes in the credit risk level du ring the life of the instrument and estimates the expected credit loss 
in the horizon up to maturity of the instrument. For the purpose of estimating the expected credit loss, the Group uses 

a provision matrix estimated on the basis of historical levels of repayment and recoveries of receivables from customers. 
The Group includes prospective information in the parameters used in the expected loss estimation model, through 

the management adjustment of the basic insolvency probability parameters. To calculate the expected credit loss, the Group 
determines the probability parameter of receivables defaults estimated on the basis of the analysis of the number of unpaid 

invoices in the last five years, and the liabilities default rate estimated on the ba sis of the value of unpaid invoices in the last 

five years. The expected credit loss is calculated when the receivable is recognized in the statement of financial position and 
is updated at the end of every subsequent reporting period, depending on the number of days to maturity. 

iii) Financial /iabilities 

lnitial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit ar loss, financial 

liabilities measured at amortized cost, ar as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, 
as appropriate. 

Ali financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value, in the case of financial liabilities measured at amortized cost, 

net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, bonds, bank overdrafts, financial 

guarantee contracts, and derivative financial instruments. 

Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows: 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit ar loss include financial liabilities held-for-trading and financial liabilities 

designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit ar loss. 

Financial liabilities are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. This 
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments 

in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held-for-trading unless 

they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held-for-trading are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit ar loss are designated at the initial date 
of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Group has not designated any financial liabilities as at fair 

value through profit ar loss. 
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Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, financial liabilities measured at amortized cost are 

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in the 

statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate method (EIR) 

amortization process. 

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acqu isition and fees or costs that are 

an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. 

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings and bonds. 

Financial guarantee contracts 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse 

the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms 

of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction 

costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher 

of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date and the a mou nt 

recognized less cumulative amortization . 

Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms 

of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original 

liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement 

of profit or loss. 

iv) Offsetting of finoncial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset with the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial 

position only if there is a current enforceable lega I right to offset the recognized amounts and an intent to settle on a net 

basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

2.3.13 . Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting 
lnitial recognition and subsequent measurement 

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps and forward 

commodity contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and commodity price risks, respectively. Such 

derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered 

into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is posit ive 

and as financial liabil ities when the fair value is negative. 

The fair value of commodity contracts that meet the definition of a derivative as defined by IFRS 9 are recognized in the 

statement of profit or loss as cost of sales. Commodity contracts that are entered into and continue to be held for the purpose 

of the receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in accordance with the Group's expected purchase, sale or usage 

requirements are held at cost. 

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss, 

except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognized in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when 

the hedged item affects profit or loss. 

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as: 

• Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability 

or an unrecognized firm commitment (except for foreign currency risk) 

• Cash flow hedges when hedging exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk 

associated with a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk 

in an unrecognized firm commitment 

• Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation 
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At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which 

the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. 

The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk 

being hedged and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrumenťs fair value in offsetting 

the exposure to changes in the hedged item's fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are 

expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing 

basisto determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they 

were designated. 

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as described below: 

Fair value hedges 

The change in the fair value of an interest rate hedging derivative is recognized in the statement of profit or loss in finance 

costs. The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying 

value of the hedged item and is also recognized in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs. 

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortized cost, the adjustment to carrying value is amortized through the 

statement of profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge using the EIR method. Effective interest rate amortization 

may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its 

fair value attributable to the risk being hedged. 

lf the hedge item is derecognized, the unamortized fair value is recognized immediately in the statement of profit or loss. 

When an unrecognized firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value 

of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognized as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss 

recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Cash flow hedges 

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognized in OCI in the cash flow hedge reserve, while 

any ineffective portion is recognized immediately in the statement of profit or loss as other operating expenses. 

Amounts recognized as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when 

the hedged financial income or financial expense is recognized or when a forecast sale occurs. When the hedged item is the 

cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts recognized as other comprehensive income are transferred 

to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability. 

lf the forecast transaction or firm commitment is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss previously 

recognized in equity is transferred to profit or loss. lf the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised 

without replacement or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the 

hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other 

comprehensive income remains separately in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm 

commitment affects profit or loss. 

Hedges o/ a net investment 

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation, including a hedge of a monetary item that is accounted for as part of the 

net investment, are accounted similarto cash flow hedges. Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective 

portion of the hedge are recognized as other comprehensive income while any gains or losses relating to the ineffective 

portion are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. On disposal of the foreign operation, the cumulative value of any 

such gains or losses recorded in equity is transferred to the statement of profit or loss. 

2.3.14. lnventories 
lnventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The inventories are stated at actual costs being 

determined using the weighted average method. Costs of purchased inventory include acquisition-related costs (mainly 

freight, customs, etc.). Coal and biomass inventories are stated at actual costs being determined using the standard casting 

and price variances; price variances, including the related costs, are calculated on a monthly basis. 

lnitial cost of raw materials includes the transfer of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges, recognized in other 

comprehensive income, if any. 
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Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and 

the estimated costs to seli. 

2.3.15. lmpairment of non-financial assets 
Disclosures relating to impairment of non-financial assets are summarized in the following notes : 

• Accounting policy disclosures Note 2.3.15 

• Disclosures for significant assumptions Note 3 

• Property, plant and equipment Note 7 

• lntangible assets Note 8 

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. lf any indication 

exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asseťs recoverable amount. 

An asseťs recove rable amount is the higher of an asseťs or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. 

lt is determined for an individua I asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of these 

from ether assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset ar CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, 

the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

ln assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 

that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. ln determining fair 

value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. lf no such transactions can be identified, 

an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for 

publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators. 

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are prepared separately for each 

of the Group's CGU to which the individua! assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally 

covering a period of five years. A long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth 

year. 

lmpairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the statement of profit ar loss in these expense categories 

consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for a property previously revalued where the revaluation was 

taken to OCI. ln this case, the impairment is also recognized in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation. 

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that 

previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. lf such indication exists, the Group 

estimates the asseťs ar CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has 

been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asseťs recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was 

recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying a mou nt of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor 

exceed the carrying a mou nt that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized 

for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit ar loss unless the asset is carried 

at a revalued a mou nt, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. 

The following criteria are also applied in assessing impairment of specific assets: 

Goodwill 

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31 December and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may 

be impaired. 

lmpairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (ar group of CGUs) to which 

the goodwill relates . Where the recoverable a mou nt of the cash-generating unit is less than their carrying a mou nt, 

an impairment loss is recognized . lmpairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods. 

lntangible assets 

lntangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at 31 December either individually 

ar at the CGU level, as appropriate and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. 

2.3.16. Cash and short-term deposits 
Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term 

deposits with a maturity of three months ar less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
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For the purpose of the consol idated statement cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits 

as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group's cash 

management. 

2.3.17. Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to owners of equity 
The Group recognizes a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to owners of equity when the distribution 

is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group. As per the business corporation law applicable 

in the Czech Republic, a distribution is authorized when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount 

is recognized directly in equity. 

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measurement 

recognized directly in equity. 

Upon settlement of the distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying a mou nt of the liability and the 

carrying a mou nt of the assets distributed is recognized in profit or loss. 

2.3.18. Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (lega! or constructive) as a result of a past event, 

it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and 

a reliable estimate can be made of the a mou nt of the obligation. Where the Group expects some oral! of a provision to be 

reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when 

the reimbursement is virtually certain . The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net 

of any reimbursement. 

lf the effect of the time value of money is mate rial, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when 

appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage 

of time is recognized as a finance cest. 

Greenhouse gas emissions (emission rights) 

The Group receives free emission rights in the Czech Republic as a result of the European Emission Trading Schemes. 

The rights are received on an annual basis and in return the Group is required to remit rights equal to its actual emissions. 

A provision is recognized for emissions produced. The provision is measured at the carrying amount of the emission rights 

held or, in the case of a shortfall, at the current fair value of the emission rights needed. The expenses incurred for the 

recognition of the provision, if any, are reported under ether ope rating expenses. 

2.3.19. Pensions and other long-term employment benefits 
The Group provides long-term employment benefits, where employees are entitled to benefits dependent on the number 

of years of employment, jubilee bonuses and bonu ses paid upon retirement of an employee. There is no liability to the Group 

after the employee is retired or employment ceased. 

The cest of providing the benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method and the long-term employment 

benefit costs are recognized in the profit and loss as a personnel expense. 

2.3.20. New standards adopted in 2018 

IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments 

ln July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments that replaces IAS 39 Financial lnstruments: 

Recognition and Measurement and al! previous versions of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 brings together all three aspects of the accounting 

for financial instruments project: classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for 

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Except for hedge accounting, retrospective application is required but 

providing comparative information is not compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requirements are generally applied 

prospectively, with some limited exceptions. 

The Group adopted the new standard on the required effective date, i.e. on 1 January 2018. Considering the nature 

of the Group's business, its customer mix and means of financing, no significant effects on the Group's consolidated balance 

sheet and equity are expected. 
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IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with 

customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an a mou nt that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects 

to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. 

The new revenue standard supersedes all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. The standard is effective 

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Either a full retrospective application or a modified retrospective 

application is required. Early adoption is permitted. The Group adopted the new standard on the required effective date 

using the full retrospective method. The Group performed a detailed impact assessment and concluded that IFRS 15 would 

not have a material effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements. This is because the Group is engaged 

in the production and sale of heat and electricity, with sales effected on the basis of separate identified contracts with 

customers. The Group recognizes revenues based on the energy actually delivered, i.e. over time, and therefore the new 

standard does not have a significant impact on its consolidated balance sheet, reported revenue and profit or loss. 

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying 

disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result 

in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of asset or liability affected in future periods. 

Judgements 

ln the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have 

the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements: 

Products 

The management monitors the Group's performance in two princi pal products: 

• Thermal energy 

• Electricity 

Dueto the nature of the production the costs (comprising na mely fixed assets depreciation and raw materials consumption) 

used to produce the energies are shared and largely indistinguishable and any allocation of the costs related to the two main 

products would be arbitrary and unreliable. Due to this fact the management concluded that there are no separate 

reportable segments. 

Deemed costs 

The Group applied certain exemptions from IFRS. The exemption that has the most significant impact on the consolidated 

financial statements is the usage of deemed costs for property, plant and equipment ba sed on fairvalues established in 2013. 

Embedded derivatives in purchase contracts 

The Group entered into long-term contracts to purchase of coal it uses in production. The Group analysed the contracts and 

concluded they are not in scope of IFRS 9 and has not separated the embedded derivatives as the embedded derivative 

is clearly and dosely related to the host commodity contract. 

Estimates and assumptions 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have 

a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 

year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated 

financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may 

change dueto market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the 

assumptions when they occur. 
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lmpairment of non-financía/ assets 

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable a mou nt, which is the higher of its 

fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data 

from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental 

costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the 

budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant 

future investments that will enhance the asseťs performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is most 

sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used 

for extrapolation purposes. The Group performs impairment tests at least annually or if indicators of impairment exists. 

Long-term employment benefíts 

The cost of long-term employment benefits and the present value of the related obligation are determined using actuarial 

valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions which may differ from actual developments 

in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate and attrition rates. Dueto the complexity of the valuation, 

the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, an obligation from the long-term employment benefits is sensitive 

to changes in these assumptions. Ali assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter most subjectto change 

is the discount rate. ln determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of corporate 

bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the benefit obligation with at least an 'AA' rating or above, as set by an 

internationally acknowledged rating agency, and extrapolated as needed along the yield curve to correspond with the 

expected term of the long-term employment benefits. The attrition rate is based on historical figures. Further details about 

long-term employment benefit obligations are provided in Note 15. 

4. Revenue and segment information 

As discussed in Note 3, dueto the nature of the production the Group has no separate reportable segments i.e. the whole 
Group is one segment. 

Revenue from external customers by product and services 

Sales of thermal energy 

Sales of electricity and related services 

Other 

Tota! Revenue 

2018 
CZKOOO 

566,656 

678,233 

13,192 

1,258,081 

Geographical information about non-current assets and revenues 

2017 
CZKOOO 

586,249 

629,115 

13,633 

1,228,997 

Ali Group' s non-current assets are located in the Czech Republic. Ali revenues are from customers based in the Czech 

Republic. 

lnformation about major customers 

The revenue from each of the two largest customers amount to more than 10% individually. The revenue in the respective 
years from these customers were as follows: 

2018 2017 2018 2017 
Revenue Revenue Share on total 

Group's revenue 

CZKOOO CZKOOO % % 

Customer 1 738,075 678,473 59% 55% 

Customer 2 155,273 162,094 12% 13% 
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5. Other income and expenses 

5.1. Other operating income 
2018 

CZKOOO 

Granted emission rights 35,414 

Other income 4,678 

Total Other operating income 40,092 

2017 
CZKOOO 

19,584 

1,220 

20,804 

Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. 

For more details on the Groups accounting policy on accounting for emission rights please refer to Note 2.3.11. 

5.2. Other operating expenses 
2018 2017 

CZKOOO CZKOOO 

Provision for emission allowances 153,371 62,452 

Other expenses 11,414 12,701 

Total Other operating expenses 164,785 75,153 

5.3 . lnterest expense 
2018 2017 

CZKOOO CZKOOO 

lnterest income (S) 

lnterest expense 51,048 65,339 

lnterest expense, net 51,043 65,339 

5.4 . Other financial items 
2018 2017 

CZKOOO CZKOOO 

Foreign exchange gains (losses), net (8) (40) 

Fair value gain (loss) on financial 
instruments at fair value through 
profit or loss, net (6,433) 20,868 

Bank and similar fees (211) (597) 

Other 223 

Total Other financial items, net -6,429 20,231 

5.5. Personnel expenses 
2018 2017 

CZKOOO CZKOOO 

Wages and salaries including 80,610 
management remuneration 93,515 

Social security costs 27,037 29,967 

Other personnel expenses 3,020 4,187 

Employment benefits 2,753 330 

TotalPersonnelexpenses 113,420 127,999 
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Bonuses to members of statutory and supervisory bodies in CZK 000: 

Body 2018 2017 

Board of Directors 6,890 7,580 

Supervisory Board 1,140 1,140 

Audit Committee 476 -
Total 8,506 8,720 

6. lncome tax 

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 are: 

Consolidated statement of profit or loss 

Current income tax: 
Current income tax charge 

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year 

Deferred tax: 
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 

lncome tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 

Consolidated statement of other comprehensive income 

Deferred tax related to items recognized in other 
comprehensive income du ring the year: 

lncome tax recognized in other comprehensive income 

2018 
CZKOOO 

22,191 

(7) 

(27,760) 

(5,576) 

2018 
CZKOOO 

2017 
CZKOOO 

31,853 

(2) 

(15,156) 

16,695 

2017 
CZKOOO 
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A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by Czech domestic tax rate for the 
years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 is as follows: 

Accounting profit before income tax 

At Czech statutory income tax rate of 19% 
Adjustments in respect to current income tax of previous 
years 
Non-deductible expense, non-taxable income for tax 
purposes 
lncome tax expense reported in the consolidated 
statement of profit or loss 

Effective tax rate 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax relates to the following: 

2018 

CZK000 
(31,153) 

(5,919) 

7 

336 

(5,576) 
17.9% 

Consolidated Statement 
of Financial Position 

Difference in net book value of non-current 
assets for tax purposes 
Provisions and valuation allowances 

Unrealized profit on intercompany transactions 
Financials leases 
Amortization of loans using effective interest 
rate 
Employment benefits 
Deferred tax (expense)/income 

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 

Reflected in the statement of financial 
position as follows : 

Deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax liabilities 

Deferred tax liabilities net 

Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities, net 

Opening balance as of 1 January 

2018 
CZK000 

{266,298) 

32,653 
1,728 

(2,397) 

1,406 

(232,908) 

(232,908) 

(232,908) 

Tax income/(expense) du ring the period recognized in profit or loss 
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognized in other 
comprehensive income 

Closing balance as at 31 December 

2017 
CZK000 

(273,774) 

15,726 

444 
1 

(2,880) 
705 

(259,778) 

(259,778) 

(259,778) 

2018 

CZK000 
(259,778) 

26,870 

(232,908) 

2017 

CZK000 
85,427 

16,231 

(2) 

466 

16,695 
19.5% 

Consolidated Statement 
of Profit or Loss 

2018 2017 
CZK000 CZK000 

7,476 15,405 

16,927 2,004 
1,284 (68) 

(1) (3) 
483 (2,200) 

701 18 
26,870 15,156 

2017 

CZK000 
(274,934) 

15,156 

(259,778) 

The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and 

current tax lia bilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxe s levied by the same tax 

authority. 
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7. Property, plant and equipment 

Advances 
Movable assets Leased Tangible granted for 

and sets of movable fixed assets tangible 
Land Structures movable assets assets in progress fixed assets Total 

Cost CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO 

At 31 December 2016 159,823 1,144,325 1,035,224 1,638 57,653 1,135 2,399,798 

Additions 73,292 73,292 

Transfers 49,510 44,337 (92,741) (1,106) 

Disposals (85) (12,046) (12,131) 

At 31 December 2017 159,823 1,193,750 1,067,515 1,638 38,204 29 2,460,959 
Additions 264,588 27,620 292,208 

Transfers 16,840 95,853 (112,693) 

Disposals (110) (21,775) (21,885) 

At 31 December 2018 159,823 1,210,480 1,141,593 1,638 190,099 27,649 2,731,282 

Accumulated Depreciation 

At 31 December 2016 199,977 384,837 1,387 586,201 
Depreciation charge for the year 49,947 70,444 214 120,605 

Disposals (85) (7,359) (7,444) 

At 31 December 2017 249,839 447,922 1,601 699,362 

Depreciation charge for the year 60,884 82,922 37 143,843 

Disposals (110) (21,775) (21,885) 

At 31 December 2018 310,613 509,069 1,638 821,320 

Net baak value 

At 31 December 2017 159,823 943,911 619,593 37 38,204 29 1,761,597 

At 31 December 2018 159,823 899,867 633,524 190,099 27,649 1,909,962 

Capitalized borrowing costs 

The amount of borrowing costs capitalized during the year ended 31 December 2018 was CZK O thousand (2017: 

CZK O thousand). 

Finance leases 

The net book value of plant and equipment held under finance leases at 31 December 2018 was CZK O thousand 
(2017: CZK 37 thousand) . 

Land and buildings 

Land and buildings are subject to a first charge to secure the Group's bank loans (Note 9.2) . The Group refinanced and fully 

repaid its long-term bank loans by issuing bonds in December 2017 and the pledge was removed in January 2018. 

Assets under construction 

The balance as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 included, in particular, expenditures on enhancing efficiency and 

environmental compliance of existing boilers and on building infrastructure to connect customers . 

lmpairment 

ln 2018 and 2017 the Group performed impairment test of Property, Plant and Equipment. The impairment test involves 
determining the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU. An asseťs recoverable amount is the higher of an asseťs or CGU's 
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected 
to be derived from an asset or a cash-generating unit. Value in use is determined on the basis of an enterprise valuation model and 
is assessed from a Group interna! perspective. 
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Values in use are determined ba sed on the medium-term budget for a period of S years and on the anticipated development of the 
expected cash flows in the long-term, which is valid when the impairment test is performed. These budgets are based on the past 
experience, as well as on the anticipated future market trends and on the macroeconomic development. 

The development of commodity prices, namely coal prices, the development of emission right prices and the anticipated demand 
from key customers are the key assumptions used for the valuation model. 

The calculations of value in use are most sensitive to the following assumptions: 

Prices of key inputs - Overal! profitability is affected especially by the coal prices and prices of emission rights. Forecast figures are 
used if data is available, otherwise past actual raw material price movements have been used as an indicator of future price 
movements. 

Discount rate - Discount rate reflects the managemenťs estimate of the risk specific to the business. The basis used to determine 
the value assigned is weighted average cost of ca pita I (WACC) of the business. 

Estimated growth rate - The basis used to determine the value assigned to estimated growth rate is the anticipated future 
development ofthe market and interest rates, changes in strategy ofthe Group and LAMA Group, and the forecast ofthe regulatory 
environment, where the Group conduct the business. 

As a results of impairment tests performed, no impairment has been recognized in 2018 and 2017 financial statements. 

8. lntangible assets 

Software 
CZK0O0 

Cost 

At 31 December 2016 8,468 
Additions 

Transfers 374 

Disposals (44) 

At 31 December 2017 8,798 

Additions 

Transfers 388 

Disposals {298) 

At 31 December 2018 8,888 

Accumulated Depreciation 

At 31 December 2016 6,412 
Amortization charge for the year 1,219 

Disposals (43) 

At 31 December 2017 7,588 

Amortization charge for the year 613 

Disposals (298) 

At 31 December 2018 7,903 

Net baok va/ue 

At 31 December 2016 2,056 

At 31 December 2017 1,210 

At 31 December 2018 985 

lntangible assets 
Other intangible in progress and 

assets advances granted 
CZK 000 CZK 000 

87,664 

19,584 

(59,060) 

48,188 

92,814 

(58,540) 

82,462 

13 

(2) 

11 

11 

87,651 
48,177 

82,451 

34,958 

{19,958) 

15,000 
78,202 

{93,202) 

15,000 

Tatai 
CZK000 

96,132 
34,958 

(59,104) 

71,986 
78,202 

(58,838) 

91,350 

6,425 
1,219 

(45) 

7,599 
613 

(298) 

7,914 

89,707 
64,387 
83,436 
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Other intangible assets 

lncluded in the other intangible assets are emission rights. The balances measured at cost were as follows: 

At 31 December 2016 

At 31 December 2017 

At 31 December 2018 

Purchased 
emission rights 

CZKOOO 
87,651 

48,177 

82,450 

For details on the accounting pol icy adopted by the Group for measuring the emission rights please refer to Note 2.3.11. 

9. Financial assets and financial liabilities 

9.1. Financial assets 
2018 2017 

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments: 

lnterest rate swaps 
Total financial instruments at fair value 
Financial assets at amortized cest: 

Trade receivables and other assets 
Total financial assets 

Ofwhich: 
Total current 
Total non-current 

CZKOOO 

162,903 
162,903 

162,013 
890 

CZKOOO 

10,328 
10,328 

132,696 
143,024 

142,001 
1,023 

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments reflect the positive change in fair value of interest rate swap contracts 

that are not designated in hedge relationships, but are nevertheless intended to reduce the level of interest rate risk 

of floating interest-bearing loans and bonds. 

9.2. Financial liabilities 

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments: 

lnterest rate swaps 

Total financial liabilities at fair value 
Other financi al liabilities at amortized cest, ether than 
interest-bearing loans, borrowings and bonds: 

Trade and ether payables 
Total ether financial liabilities 

Ofwhich: 
Total current 
Total non-current 

2018 2017 
CZKOOO CZKOOO 
2,097 271 
2,097 271 

235,597 101,792 
237,694 102,063 

233,694 101,1S8 
4,000 90S 

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments reflect the positive change in fair value of interest rate swap contracts 

that are not designated in hedge relationships, but are nevertheless intended to reduce the level of interest rate risk 

of floating interest-bearing loans and bonds. 
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lnterest-bearing loans and borrowings, including bonds 

I nterest rate Maturity 2018 2017 

CZKOOO CZKOOO 

Current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 

Obligations under finance leases 3.5% 2018 40 
Bank loan 
Other loans for financing non-current assets (short-
term portion) 3.1 %-3.6% 2024 3,156 3,054 
Loan from shareholders PRIBOR +9% 2020 

Tatai current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 3,156 3,094 

Non-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 

Obligations under finance leases 3.5% 2018 
Bank loan 

PRIBOR + 1,238,287 1,235,744 
Bonds 2.8% 2023 
Other loans for financing non-current assets 3.1%-3.6% 2024 16,174 19,507 

Loan from shareholders 
Tatai non-current interest-bearing loans and 1,254,461 1,255,251 
borrowings 

Tatai interest-bearing loans and borrowings 1,257,617 1,258,345 

The loan agreement with a financing bank included certain covenants, including Net Debt/EBITDA ratio. The Group was 

in compliance with the covenants in 2017. As at 31 December 2018, the Group was no longer required to monitor 
the covenants as the loan had been redeemed. 

On 15 December 2018, the Group entered into a revolving loan agreement up to the limit of CZK 200,000 thousand with 

the parent company LAMA ENERGY GROUP a. s. The agreement has the following covenants: The Group, as a borrower, 

is entitled to a partial and repeated drawdown up to the above limit, provided the restrictions stipulated by Art. 4.2. 

ofthe issuing conditions of bonds maintained under ISIN CZ0003517732 and title "TEPL. OTR. VAR/23 Bonds" are met. 

The interest rate is set at 3.20% p. a. The loan will mature on 15 December 2020. lnterest on the outstanding amount will 

be calculated annually at the end of a calendar year and will be due on 15 January of the subsequent year. The revolving loan 

has been granted for the period of two years from the date the agreement is entered into. The Group did not use the loan 
in 2018. 

Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities 

Amount presented on balance sheet 
at 1 January 2018 

Cash flows 
Foreign exchange movement 
Changes in fair values 
Other 

Amount presented on balance sheet 
at 31 December 2018 

Bank loans and 
bonds 

CZKOOO 

1,235,744 

2,543 

1,238,287 

Other long­
term liabilities 

CZKOOO 

22,601 

(3,271) 

19,330 

Tatai liabilities from 
financing activities 

CZKOOO 

1,258,345 

(3,271) 

2,543 

1,257,617 
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Bonds 

On 21 December 2017 the Group íssued bonds TEPL. OTR. VAR/23 (ISIN CZ0003517732) that were accepted for tradíng 

on Prague Stock Exchange. Nomínal a mou nt of one bond is CZK 3,000 thousand. The bonds were subscribed in total nominal 

amount of CZK 1,251,000 thousand. The bonds VAR/23 bear interest of 6M PRIBOR + 2.8%, which is payable semi-annually 

on 21 June and 21 December each year. The ultimate maturity of the bonds is 21 December 2023. The bonds could be repaid 

up to one year before its ultimate maturity, subject to meeting certain conditions. The proceeds from the bonds were 

predominantly used to repay bank loans and borrowings. 

Assets pledged as a security for bank loans 

The liabilitíes to credit institutions were secured by a right of pledge established on the real estate (constructions, land), 

recorded in the Land Register for the Zlín region, which was in possession of the Group as at 31 December 2017. ln additíon, 

the loan was secured by a pledge agreement for certain movable items and groups of movable items possessed by the Group 

and also by receivables. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the total value of pledged assets (buildings, constructions, 

movable items and land) was CZK 1,568,979 thousand and CZK 1,569,840 thousand, respectively, at cost. Following 

the redemption of the bank loan, no real estate of the Group was secured by a right of pledge as at 31 December 2018. 

As at 31 December 2017, pledged receivables amounted to CZK 131,501 thousand. As at 31 December 2018, no movable 

items or groups of movable items held by the Group or receivables were secured by a right of pledge. The above pledges 

related to the bank loan that was repaid in full as at 31 December 2017 by the proceeds from the issued publicly traded 
bonds. 

9.3. Hedging activities and derivatives 

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments 

The Group uses interest rate swaps to manage interest rate risk. These contracts are not designated as cash flow, fair value 

or net investment hedges and are entered into for periods broadly consistent with the maturity of the underlying interest­
bearing borrowings. 

The Group has not designated any other derivative as a hedging instrument. 

9.4. Fair values 

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments, other 

than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values: 

Carrying amount Fairvalue 

2018 2017 2018 2017 
Financial assets CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO 

I nterest rate swa ps 10,328 10,328 

Loans and receivables 645 748 571 678 

Total financial assets 645 11,076 571 11,006 

Financial liabilities 
Obligations under finance leases 40 41 

Bank loan 

Bonds 1,238,287 1,235,744 1,251,000 1,251,000 

Other loans for financing non-current 
assets 19,330 22,561 18,568 22,246 

Loan from shareholders 

I nterest rate swa ps 2,097 271 2,097 271 

Total financial liabilities 1,259,714 1,258,616 1,271,665 1,273,558 

The management assessed that cash and short-term deposits, tra de receivables, trade payables and other current liabilities 

approximate their carrying amounts largely dueto the short-term maturities of these instruments. 
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The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged 

in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced ar liquidation sale . The following methods and 

assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 

• Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Group based on parameters such 

as interest rates, specific country risk factors, individua I creditworthiness of the customer and the risk characterist ics 

of the financed item. 

• The fair values of the quoted notes and bonds are based on price quotations at the reporting date. The fair value 

of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities, obligations under finance leases, as well 

as other non-current financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for 

debt on similarterms, credit risk and remaining maturities. ln addition to being sensitive to a reasonably possible change 

in the forecast cash flows or the discount rate, the fair value of the equity instruments is also sensitive to a reasonably 

possible change in the growth rates. The valuation requires management to use unobservable inputs in the model, 

of which the significant unobservable inputs are disclosed in the tables below. Management regularly assesses a range 

of reasonably possible alternatives for those significant unobservable inputs and determines their impact on the total 
fair value. 

• The Group enters into derivative f inancial instruments principally with financial institutions with investment grade credit 

ratings. lnterest rate swaps are valued using valuation techniques, which employ the use of market observable· inputs. 

The most frequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing and swap models, using present value 

calculations. The models incorporate various inputs including the credit quality of counterparties, yield curves of the 

respective currencies and interest rate curves. As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 the marked-to market 

values of derivative asset positions are net of a credit valuation adjustment attributable to derivative counterparty 

default risk. The changes in counterparty credit risk had no material effect on the financial instruments recognized at fair 
value. 

• The fair values of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using DCF method using 

discount rate that reflects the issuer's borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance 

risk as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 was assessed to be insignificant. 

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation 
technique: 

Leve! 1: 

Level 2: 

Leve! 3: 

quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, 

either directly or indirectly 

techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based 

on observable market data 
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The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy and quantitative disclosures of the Group's financial 

assets and liabilities 31 December 2018: 

Financial assets measured atfair value: 
I nterest rate swa ps 

Financial assets for which fair values are disc/osed: 
Loans and receivables 

Financial liabilities measured at fair value: 
lnterest rate swaps 

Financia/ liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: 

Obligations under finance leases 

Bonds 

Other loans for financing non-current assets 

Date of valuation 

31 December 2018 

31 December 2018 

31 December 2018 

31 December 2018 

31 December 2018 

31 December 2018 

Total 

CZKOOO 

571 

2,097 

1,251,000 

18,568 

Level 1 

CZKOOO 

Level2 

CZKOOO 

2,097 

1,251,000 

18,568 

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy and quantitative disclosures of the Group's financial 

assets and liabilities 31 December 2017: 

Financial assets measured at fair value: 
lnterest rate swaps 

Financial assets for which fair values are disclosed: 
Loans and receivables 

Financial liabilities measured atfair value: 
lnterest rate swaps 

Financial liabilities for which fair values are disc/osed: 
Obligations under finance leases 

Bank loan 

Other loans for financing non-current assets 

Date of valuation 

31 December 2017 

31 December 2017 

31 December 2017 

31 December 2017 

31 December 2017 

31 December 2017 

There were no transfers between the levels du ring 2018 and 2017. 

Total 

CZKOOO 

10,328 

678 

271 

41 

1,251,000 

22,246 

Levell 

CZKOOO 

9.5. Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies 

Level2 

CZKOOO 

10,328 

271 

41 

1,251,000 

22,246 

The Group's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, including bonds, trade and 

other payables, and financial guarantee contracts. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group's 

operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Group's principal financial assets include loan and other 

receivables, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that arrive directly from its operations. The Group 

also enters into derivative transactions. 

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's senior management oversees the management 

of these risks. The Group's senior management is supported by senior management team of the ultimate pa rent that advises 

on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Group. The involvement of the ultimate 

parenťs senior management provides additional assurance to the Group's senior management that the Group's financial 

risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and 

managed in accordance with group policies and group risk appetite. Ali derivative activities for risk management purposes 

are carried out by specialist teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. lt is the Group's policy that 

no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies 

for managing each of these risks, which are summarized below. 
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Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 

in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equity 

price risk and commodity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include: loans and borrowings, including 

bonds, deposits and derivative financial instruments. 

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 December in 2018 and 31 Oecember 2017. 

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the a mou nt of net debt, the ratio of fixed-to floating interest 

rates of the debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant and 

on the basis ofthe hedge designations in place at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017. 

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying value of employment long-term benefit 

obligations and provisions. 

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses: 

• The sensitivity of the relevant statement of profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market 

risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 December 2018 and 31 Oecember 2017 

including the effect of hedge accounting. 

lnterest rate risk 

lnterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 

in market interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's 

long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

The Group manages its interest rate risk by having a portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans. The Group enters into interest 

rate swaps, in which it agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and variable rate interest 

amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal amount. At 31 Oecember 2018, after taking into 

account the effect of interest rate swaps, approximately 44% of the Group's borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest 
(2017: 59%). 

lnterest rate sensitivity 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on loans and borrowings, 

including bonds, after the impact of interest rate swaps. With all other variables held constant, the Group's profit before tax 
is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows: 

lncrease/ decrease Effect on profit 
in basis points before tax 

CZKOOO 

2018 50 (3,503) 

(25) 1,752 

2017 50 (2,607) 

(25) 1,304 

Ali loans and bonds are denominated in CZK. 

Foreign currency risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates is nominal 

as vast majority of activities are denominated in Group's functional currency CZK. The Group's management uses economic 

hedging - concluding purchase contracts in the same currency as the sales contracts - i.e. CZK. The Group is exposed 

indirectly to fluctuations in foreign currencies as the CZK price of purchased fuel and emission allowances is broadly 

responsive to development on prices on international markets, denominated in USD and EUR. 
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Foreign currency sensitivity 

With all other variables held constant, the Group's profit before tax is not sensitive to reasonably possible changes in foreign 
exchange rates as the Group's exposure to foreign currency changes is not material as at 31 December 2018 and 
31 December 2017. 

Commodity price risk ond emission right risk 

The Group is affected by the volatility of certain commodities and em1ss1on rights. lts operating activities involve 

predominantly the ongoing purchase of coal used in production, and purchase and sale of electricity and emission rights. 

The Group manages the commodity price risk by deploying economic hedging, where the purchase prices of commodities 

are set for a period of time that is responsive to the duration of sales contracts and also the changes of commodity prices 

are to certain extent passed to the customers, which reduces the Group's profit sensitivity to changes in commodity prices. 

The risk of changes in the price of emission rights is managed by purchasing emission rights for electricity generation when 

selling the energy; emission rights for heat production are managed by monitoring the price on the stock exchange and 

buying by instalments when the price goes down. The price of emission rights is partly borne by end customers. 

Commodity price sensitivity 

As the group has no financial assets and liabilities linked to commodity prices, with all other variables held constant, 
the Group's profit before tax is not sensitive to reasonably possible changes in their prices. 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, 

leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade receivables) 

and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, loans and other financial 
instruments. 

Trade receivab/es 

Customer credit risk is managed by the Group's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk 

management. Credit quality of the customer requesting product or services above a defined threshold is assessed based 

on a credit rating analysis and individua I credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer 

receivables and exposure to credit risk are regularly monitored and the Group limits credit risk by credibility analysis 

and monitoring of repayment morale of existing customers. At 31 December 2018, the Group had 9 customers (2017: 

9 customers) that owed more than CZK 1 million each and accounted for approximately 89% (2017: 89%) of all outstanding 
receivables. 

The requirement for an impairment is analysed at each reporting date on an individua! basis for major clients. Additionally, 

a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed 

in Note 9.1. The Group does not hold collateral as security. The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect 

to trade receivables as adequate given the nature of business it operates as its princi pal customers are located in one 
geographical area. 

Financial instruments and cash deposits 

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group in accordance with the Group's policy. 

lnvestments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each 

counterparty. The limits are set to minimize the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through potential 

counterparty's fa i Iure to make payments. The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement 

of financial position is the carrying amounts as illustrated in 9.1. except for derivative financial instruments. The Group's 

maximum exposure for financial derivative instruments are noted in the liquidity table below, respectively. 

Liquidity risk 

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tools. 

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of long-term 

bank loans or bonds, finance leases and hire purchase contracts. The Group assessed the concentration of risk with respect 

to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. Access to sources of funding is sufficiently available and debt matu ring 

within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders. 
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The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted 

payments: 

Year ended 31 December 2018 <1 year 2-5 years Over 5 years Total 

CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO 

Obligations under finance leases 

Bank loans 

Bonds 61,727 1,488,520 1,550,247 

Other loans for financing non-current assets 3,741 14,969 2,496 21,206 

Loan from shareholders 

Trade payables and ether liabilities 237,694 237,694 

Derivatives (interest rate swaps) 6,036 18,108 24,144 

Total 309,198 1,521,597 2,496 1,833,291 

Year ended 31 December 2017 <1 year 2-5 years Over 5 years Total 

CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO 

Obligations under finance leases 41 41 

Bankloans 

Bonds 45,662 221,177 1,306,294 1,573,133 

Other loans for financing non-current assets 3,921 28,204 14,146 46,271 

Loan from shareholders 

Trade payables and ether liabilities 131,892 131,892 

Derivatives (interest rate swaps) 4,753 5,280 10,033 

Total 186,269 254,661 1,320,440 1,761,370 

The disclosed financial derivative instruments in the above table are the gross undiscounted cash flows. However, these 

amounts may be settled gross or net. The following table shows the corresponding reconciliation of these amounts to their 

carrying amounts: 

Over 5 
Year ended 31 December 2018 <1 year 2-5 years years Total 

CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO 

lnflows 12,619 33,433 46,052 

Outflows (12,073) (36,218) (48,291) 

Net 546 (2,785) (2,239) 

Discounted at the applicable interbank rates 538 (2,635) (2,097) 

Over5 
Year ended 31 December 2017 <1 year 2-5 years years Total 

CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO 

lnflows 5,716 14,816 20,532 

Outflows (4,753) (5,280) (10,033) 

Net 963 9,536 10,499 

Discounted at the applicable interbank rates 958 9,099 10,057 

Capital management 

Ca pita I includes equity attributable to the equity holders of the pa rent. 

The primary objective of the Group's ca pita I management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy 

capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value. 

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the 

requirements of the financial covenants. The Group monitors ca pita I using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total 

ca pita I plus net debt. 
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The Group's policy is to keep the gearing ratio around 70%. The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and 

borrowings, trade and ether payables, less cash and cash deposits, excluding discontinued operations, if any. 

2018 2017 

CZKOOO CZKOOO 

lnterest-bearing loans and borrowings, including bonds 1,257,617 1,258,345 

Trade payables and other liabilities 256,312 131,892 

Less : cash and short-term deposits (122,411) (263,023) 

Net debt 1,391,518 1,127,214 

Equity 458,927 619,503 

Capital and net debt 1,850,445 1,746,717 

Gearing ratio 75% 65% 

ln order to achieve this overal! objective, the Group's capital management, amongst ether things, aims to ensure that 

it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure 

requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. 

There have been no breaches of the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period. 

ln December 2018 the Group issued bonds, which were used to repay existing bank loans. No significant changes were made 

in the overal! objectives, policies or processes for managing ca pita I du ring the years ended 31 December 2018 and 

31 December 2017. 

Excessive risk concentration 

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same 

geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly 

affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group's 

performance to developments affecting a particular industry. ln order to avoid unnecessary concentrations of risk, 

the Group's policies and procedures include guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio, despite 

the inherent limitations given the business the Company is involved in. ldentified concentrations of credit risks are controlled 
and managed accordingly. 

10. lnventories 

Fossil fuel and other materials 

Goods 

Work in progress 

Advances provided for inventories 

Total inventories at the lower of cost and net realizable value 

2018 
CZKOOO 

86,905 

14 

1,994 

88,913 

2017 
CZKOOO 

93,730 

2,302 

2,066 

98,098 

During 2018, CZK 339,194 thousand {2017: CZK 310,066 thousand) was recognized as an expense for inventories 

and recorded as Consumption of material and energy. lnventories are measured at costs reduced by valuation allowances 

to their net realizable value, if lower. The valuation allowance as at 31 December 2018 amounted to CZK 4,673 thousand 

{2017: CZK 4,565 thousand). 
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11. Trade receivables and other assets 

2018 2017 

CZK000 CZK000 

Short-term trade receivables 154,361 131,039 

Short-term advances granted 5,211 13,080 

Unbilled revenue 644 634 

VAT receivable 3,947 

Derivative s 10,328 

Other receivables 1,797 820 

Tatai Trade receivables and other assets 162,013 159,848 

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 14-30 days. 

As at 31 December 2018, trade receivables with an initial carrying value of CZK 1,604 thousand (2017: CZK 276 thousand) 

were impaired and fully provided for. See below for the movements in the allowance for impairment of receivables: 

At 31 December 2017 
At 31 December 2018 

lndividually 
impaired 

CZK000 

276 

1,604 

As at 31 December, the ageing analysis of tra de receivables is as follows : 

Neither past Past due but 
due nor not impaired: 

Total 

CZK000 

276 

1,604 

Tatai impaired <30 days 30-60 days 60-120 days 
CZK000 CZK000 CZK000 CZK000 CZK000 

2018 154,361 152,203 2,141 17 

2017 131,039 128,161 2,817 50 5 

12. Cash and deposits 

2018 2017 

CZK000 CZK000 

Cash in hand 39 37 

Cash at bank 122,372 262,986 

Tatai Cash 122,411 263,023 

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. 

13. lssued capital and reserves 

> 120 days 
CZK000 

6 

The basic ca pita I of the Group consists of 100 registered shares in a certificate form fully subscribed and paid, with a nominal 

value of CZK 100 thousand 

At 31 December 2017 

At 31 December 2018 

units CZK 000 

100 

100 

10,000 

10,000 
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The Group recognized a separate reserve from profit that may be u sed to cover the future losses. The balance of the reserve 

as at 31 December 2018 amounted to CZK 2,000 thousand (2017: CZK 2,000 thousand). 

14. Distributions made and proposed 

The Group paid dividends of CZK 135,000 thousand and CZK O thousand in 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

15. Provisions 

At 31 December 2016 

Arising during the year 

Utilized 

At 31 December 2017 

Arising during the year 

Utilized 

At 31 December 2018 

Long-term employment benefits 

Employment 
benefits 

CZKOOO 

3,615 
378 

(285) 

3,708 

4,131 

(440) 

7,399 

Emission 
rights Total provisions 

CZKOOO CZKOOO 
59,058 62,673 
62,452 62,830 

(59,058) (59,343) 

62,452 66,160 

157,283 161,414 

(62,452) (62,892) 

157,283 164,682 

The Group provides long-term employment benefits, where employees are entitled to benefits dependent on the number 

of years of employment, jubilee bonuses and bonuses paid upon retirement of an employee. The provision represents 

the obligation from the benefits calculated using the projected unit credit method. The costs of providing the long-term 

employment benefits are recorded in the profit or loss. 

Emission rights 

A provision is recognized for emissions produced; the significant increase recognized in 2018 can be attributed to the year­

on-year hike of the prices of emission allowances. For details on the accounting policy adopted by the Group for measuring 

the emission rights provision please refer to Note 2.3.11. 

16. Accruals and deferred income 

Accruals 

Deferred income 

Accruals and deferred income 

2018 

CZKOOO 

4,989 

182 

5,171 

2017 

CZKOOO 
5,347 

197 

5,544 
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17. Trade payables and other liabilities 

2018 2017 
CZKOOO CZKOOO 

Trade payables 232,296 98,259 

Liabilities to employees 13,121 20,937 

Other liabilities 
Liabilities arising from social security and health 5,497 

insurance 8,892 

Short-term advances received 919 42 

VAT payable 1,295 778 

Liabilities from derivative instruments 2,097 271 

Other 1,087 2,713 

Subtotal Other liabilities 10,895 12,696 

Total trade payables and other liabilities 256,312 131,892 

Trade payables and other liabilities are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-60 days basis. 

18. Commitments and contingencies 

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessee 

The Group has entered into commercial leases for technological equipment, office premises and several motor vehicles. 

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: 

2018 2017 
CZKOOO CZKOOO 

Within one year 7,790 7,748 

After one year but not more than five years 9,487 6,897 

More than five years 25 

17,277 14,670 

Finance lease - Group as lessee 

The Group has finance leases for cars. The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's title to the 

leased assets. Future minimum lease payments under finance leases together with the present value of the net minimum 

lease payments are as follows: 

Within one year 

After one year but not more than five years 

More than five years 

Total minimum lease payments 

Less amounts representing finance charges 

Present value of minimum lease payments 

2018 

Minimum Present 
lease value of 

payments payments 

CZKOOO CZKOOO 

2017 

Minimum Present 
lease value of 

payments payments 

CZKOOO CZKOOO 

41 40 

41 40 

(1) 

40 40 
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19. Government grants 

Grants received du ring the year: 

Emisslon rights 

Grants for purchase of property, plant and equipment 

Grants received during the year related to income 

2018 
CZKOOO 

35,414 

6,082 

2017 
CZKOOO 

19,584 

5,290 

Grants are initially measured at fair value. Grants related to income and emission rights are reported under Other income 

in the lncome statement. Grants related to purchase of property, plant and equipment decrease its cost. 

There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to these grants at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017. 

20. Related party disclosures 

The financial statements include the financial statements of the Group and the subsidiaries listed in the following table: 

% equity interest 

Name Principal activities 

TO Servisní s.r.o. Service organization to the Group 

Holding company 

Country of 
incorporatlon 

Czech Republic 

2018 
100% 

2017 
100% 

The next senior and the ultimate holding company of Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. is LAMA ENERGY GROUP a.s., a privately 

owned joint-stock company based the Czech Republic, holding 100% interest in the Group. 
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The following tahle provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties 
for the relevant financial year: 

Other entities controlled by the pa rent company 
{members of LAMA ENERGY GROUP a.s.): 

LAMA energy a.s. 

MANLOMKA s.r.o . 

Teplárna Kyjov, a.s. 

Energo Český Krumlov s.r.o. 

DIGI CZ s.r.o. 

LAMA eco s.r.o. 

Key management personnel: 

Members of statutory and supervisory bodies 

Loans from related parties 

LAMA ENERGY GROUP a.s. 
(Note 9.2) 

2018 
2017 

2018 
2017 

2018 
2017 

2018 
2017 

2018 
2017 

2018 
2017 

2018 
2017 

2018 
2017 

lnterest 
expense 
CZKOOO 

36,817 

Salesto 
related 
parties 

CZKOOO 

155,298 
162,115 

51 

96 

21 

22 

Principal owed to 
related parties 

CZKOOO 

Purchases 
from related 

parties 
CZKOOO 

380,854 
279,841 

1,834 
1,939 

19,986 

20,666 

10 

7 

537 

474 

11 

434 

2,487 
2,487 

Accrued interest 
owed to related 

parties 
CZKOOO 

Amounts 
owed by 
related 
parties 

CZKOOO 

16,685 
29,635 

243 
4 

10 

5 

Amounts 
owed to 

related parties 
CZKOOO 

42 

64,246 
17,458 

118 
158 

2,125 

2,125 

46 

42 

653 
653 
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Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 

The Group sells electricity and renders services to related parties in the ordinary course of business. The Group receives 

services, purchases electricity, and emission allowances from related parties in the ordina ry course of business. 

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on the basis of contracts entered into by and between a Group 

company and a related party; for the list of the contracts, refer to the Report on Related Parties. Outstanding balances 

at the year-end are unsecured, interest free (except loans) and settled in cash. There have been no guarantees provided 

or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended 31 Oecember 2018, the Group has not recorded 

any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (2017: CZK O thousand) . This assessment 

is undertaken each financial year by examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related 
party operates. 

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group 

Short-term employment benefits, including payroll 

Long-term employment benefits 

Tota! compensation paid to key management personnel 

2018 
CZKOOO 

21,644 

21,644 

2017 
CZKOOO 

28,880 

28,880 

The amounts disclosed in the table above represent the remuneration of the members of statutory and supervisory bodies 

and of key management personnel (i.e. of executives who receive contractual salaries), and excludes mandatory social and 

health insurance paid by the Group companies. 

The members of statutory and supervisory bodies, directors and executive officers were granted no loans, guarantees, 

advances or other similar benefits in 2018 and 2017 and they do not hold any shares in the Group. 

21. Standards issued but not yet effective 
The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Group's financial 

statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective. 

IFRS 16 Leases 

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains 

a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-lncentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions lnvolving the Lega I Form 

of a Lease. IFRS 16 sets out the princi ples for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and 

requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases 

under IAS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of ' low-value' assets (e.g., persona! 

computers) and short-term leases (i.e ., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) . At the commencement date of a lease, 

a lessee will recognize a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use 

the underlying asset du ring the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset) . Lessees will be required to separately recognize the 

interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. 

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the 

lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments). 

The lessee will generally recognize the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of­
use asset. 

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today's accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue 

to classify all leases using the same classification principie as in IAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating 
and finance leases. 

IFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17. 

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early appl ication is permitted, but not before 

an entity applies IFRS 15. A lessee can chaose to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified 
retrospective approach. The standarďs transition provisions permit certain reliefs. 
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The Group performed an assessment of the impact that the standard would have on the Group's consolidated financial 

statements as at 1 January 2019. Based on the preliminary analysis, property, plant and equipment and lease liabilities would 

increase by CZK 17,277 thousand and CZK 17,277 thousand, respectively, because of the adoption of IFRS 16 as at 

1 January 2019. ln addition, the Group expects the reclassification of the following profit and loss items in 2019, following 

the adoption of IFRS 16: a portion of approximately CZK 7,800 thousand of annual rent will be reclassified from services and 

presented as depreciation of CZK 7,200 thousand and interest expense of CZK 850 thousand. The Group believes that the 

effects of the adoption of the new standard on profit or loss both before and after taxation will not be significant. 

The effects of the adoption of IFRS 16 will be described in detail in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 

2019. 

IFRS 17 lnsurance Contracts 

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 with earlier application permitted if both 

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and IFRS 9 Financia/ lnstruments have also been applied. IFRS 17 lnsurance 

Contracts establishes princi ples forthe recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts issued. 

lt also requires similar principles to be applied to reinsurance contracts held and investment contracts with discretionary 

participation features issued. The objective is to ensure that entities provide relevant information in a way that faithfully 

represents those contracts. This information gives a bas i s for users of financial statements to assess the effect that contracts 

within the scope of IFRS 17 have on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of an entity. The standard 

has not been yet endorsed by the EU. IFRS 17 is not applicable to the Group. 

Amendments of IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and /AS 28 lnvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures: Sole 

or Contribution of Assets between on Investor and its Associate or Joint Ven ture 

The amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in IAS 28, 

in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The main 

consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves a business (whether 

it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute 

a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. ln December 2015 the IASB postponed the effective date of this 

amendment indefinitely pending the outcome of its research project on t~e equity method of accounting. The amendments 

have not yet been endorsed by the EU . The Group has assessed the impact of the amendments and expects that the 

amendments, when applied, will not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. 

IFRS 9: Prepaymentfeatures with negative compensation (Amendments) 

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with earlier application 

permitted. The amendments allow financial assets with prepayment features that permit or require a party to a contract 

either to pay or receive reasonable compensation for the early termination of the contract (so that, from the perspective 

of the holder of the asset there may be 'negative compensation' ), to be measured at amortized cost orat fair value through 

other comprehensive income. The Group does not intend to early adopt the amendments and does not expects that 

the amendments will have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. 

/AS 28: Long-term lnterests in Associates and Joint Ventures {Amendments) 

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with earlier application 

permitted. The amendments relate to whether the measurement, in particular impairment requirements, of long term 

interests in associates and joint ventures that, in substance, form part of the 'net investmenť in the associate or joint venture 

should be governed by IFRS 9, IAS 28 or a combination of both. The amendments cla rify that an entity applies IFRS 9 Financial 

lnstruments, before it applies IAS 28, to such long-term interests for which the equity method is not applied. ln applying IFRS 

9, the entity does not take account of any adjustments to the carrying a mou nt of long-term interests that arise from applying 

IAS 28. These amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Group has assessed the impact of the amendments 

and expects that the amendments, when applied, will not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. 

/FRIC lnterpretation 23 Uncertainty over /ncome Tax Treatment 

The lnterpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the 

application of IAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include 

requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The lnterpretation specifically 

addresses the following: 

• Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately 
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• The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities 
• How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates 
• How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances 

An entity must determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other 

uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty should be followed . 

The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, but certain transition reliefs 

are available. The Group will apply interpretation from its effective date and expects it will have no significant impact on the 

consolidated reported tax position. 

JAS 19: Pian Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments) 

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with earlier application permitted. 

The amendments require entities to use updated actuarial assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest 

for the remainder of the annual reporting period after a pian amendment, curtailment or settlement has occurred. The 

amendments also clarify how the accounting for a pian amendment, curtailment or settlement affects applying the asset 

ceiling requirements. These amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Group has assessed the impact of the 

amendments and expects that the amendments, when applied, will not have a significant impact on the consolidated 

financial statements. 

IFRS 3: Business Combinations {Amendments) 

The IASB issued amendments in Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3) aimed at resolving the difficulties that arise 

when an entity determines whether it has acquired a business or a group of assets. The amendments are effective for 

business combinations for which the acquisition date is in the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 

2020 and to asset acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that period, with earlier application permitted. 

The amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Group has assessed the impact of the amendments and expects 

that the amendments, when applied, will not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. 

JAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and JAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: 

Definition of 'materiať (Amendments) 

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 with earlier application permitted. 

The amendments clarify the definition of "material" and how it should be applied. The new definition states that, 

"lnformation is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the 

primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of these financial statements, which provide 

financial information about a specific reporting entity". ln addition, the explanations accompanying the definition have been 

improved. The amendments also ensure that the definition of "material" is consistent across all IFRS Standards. These 

amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Group has assessed the impact of the amendments and expects 

that the amendments, when applied, will not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. 

Annual lmprovements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cyc/e 

The IASB has issued the Annual lmprovements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which is a collection of amendments to IFRSs. 

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with earlier application permitted. 

These annual improvements have not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Group has assessed the impact of the annual 

improvements and expects that the annual improvements will not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial 

statements: 

IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements : The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that when 

an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, it remeasures previously held interests in that 

business. The amendments to IFRS 11 cla rify that when an entity obtains joint control of a business that is a joint 

operation, the entity does not remeasure previously held interests in that business. 

IAS 12 lncome Taxes: The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of payments on financial 

instruments classified as equ ity should be recognized according to where the past transactions or events that 

generated distributable profits has been recognized . 

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs: The amendments cla rify paragraph 14 of the standard that, when a qualifying asset is ready 

for its intended use or sale, and some ofthe specific borrowing related to that qualifying asset remains outstanding 

at that point, that borrowing is to be included in the funds that an entity borrows generally. 
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22. Other information for disclosure 
The fees due to Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o., for statutory audits performed in 2018 and 2017 totaled CZK 675,000 and 

CZK 1,000,000, respectively. Out-of-pocket expenses relating to the statutory audit performed in 2018 and 2017 totaled 

CZK 65,000 and CZK 60,000, respectively. The cost of other assurance services in 2018 and 2017 amounted to CZK O and 

CZK 1,166,000, respectively. Other assurance services received in 2017 related primarily to bond issues. 

The costs of non-audit services in 2018 and 2017 amounted to CZK 69,000 and CZK 161,000, respectively. Non-audit services 

received related to lega) advisory. Non-audit services for 2017 and 2016 were not disclosed in the consolidated financial 

statements for the year ended 31 December 2017. 

23. Events after the reporting period 
No events occurred after the balance sheet date that would have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2018. 

Otrokovice, 16 Apríl 2019 

Ing. Pe r en ík 
Chairmal of the Board of Directors Member of the Board o 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Shareholder of Teplárna Otrokovice a.s.: 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Teplárna otrokovice a.s. (hereinafter also the 
"Company") prepared in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the 
European Union ("IFRS EU"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, 
and the statement of profit and loss, statement of other comprehensive income, statement of changes 
in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. For details 
of the Company, see Note 1 to the financial statements. 

ln our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position 
of Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. as at 31 December 2018, and of its financial performance and its cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS EU. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors, Regulation (EU) No. 537 /2014 
of the European Parliament and the Council, and Auditing Standards of the Chamber of Auditors 
of the Czech Republic, which are lnternational Standards on Auditing (ISAs), as amended by the related 
application clauses. Our responsibilities under this law and regulation are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Act on Auditors and the Code of Ethics adopted by the Chamber 
of Auditors of the Czech Republic and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide 
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed 
the matter is provided in that context. 

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included 
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures 
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying 
financial statements. 

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited 
Ernst & Young Audit, s,r.o. with its registered office at Na Florenci 2116/15, 110 00 Prague 1- Nove Mesto, 
has been incorporated in the Commercial Register administered by the Municipal Court in Prague, 
Section C, entry no. 88504, under ldentification No~ 26704153. 
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lmpairment of assets 

The Company conducts annual impairment tests 
of assets' balances. The impairment test involves 
determining the recoverable amount of the cash­
generating unit as a whole or individua! assets 
as practicable, which corresponds to the value 
in use or selling price less cost to seli. Value in use 
is the present value of the future cash flows 
expected to be derived from a cash-generating 
unit. 

These calculations of potential impairment 
amounts are a key audit matter as there 
is a significant uncertainty in relation to 
regulatory matters, which are, together with 
other significant assumptions included in the 
estimated future cash flows, main inputs to the 
calculations. Main assumptions that are subject to 
significant estimation uncertainty are projected 
future coal prices, prices of emission allowances, 
development of the regulatory environment 
and discount rates, volume of deliveries to key 
customers as well as the strategy of the Company 
and LAMA ENERGY GROUP. Future cash flows 
relate to events and actions that have not yet 
occurred and may not occur. 

Our procedures included assessing the assumptions 
and methodologies used by the Company in their 
value in use model and assessment of the fair value 
less cost to seli. We involved valuation specialists 
in assessing the adequacy of the Company's model 
used for the calculation of weighted average cost 
of capital and we also evaluated mathematical 
accuracy, underlying data and assumptions used 
in the calculation. We evaluated main assumptions 
that are subject to significant estimates, such 
as future coal prices, prices of emission allowances, 
development of the regulatory environment and 
compared them to those observable on the market. 
We compared coal prices as well as the prices 
of emission allowances to the contracts, which are 
actively traded on the market, and we assessed 
reasonableness of the Company's projections 
of these future prices for periods, for which 
the market data are not available. We also discussed 
the assumptions with the transaction specialists. 

We analyzed the budgets and future cash flows. We 
compared the expected developments in budgeted 
cash flows to the expectations presented by the 
management while assessing the main assumptions 
of the model and discussing alternatives. We also 
assessed the adequacy of the model used for the 
impairment test calculation together with the 
mathematical accuracy of the calculations. 

Finally, we also focused on whether the Company's 
disclosures in the financial statements in relation 
to the impairment of assets, as presented 
and disclosed in Note 7 Property, Plant and 
Equipment, are compliant with the IFRS EU. 

Responsibilities of the Company's Board of Directors and Audit Committee for the Financial Statements 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with IFRS EU and for such interna! control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

ln preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Umited 
Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o. with its registered office at Na Florenci 2116/15, 110 00 Prague 1- Nove Mesto, 
has been incorporated in the Cornrnercial Register administered by the Municipal Court in Prague, 
Section C, entry no, 88504, under ldentification No. 26704153. 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion . Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with above regulations will always detect a material misstatement when it exists . 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the above law or regulation, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identity and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion . The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of interna! control. 

• Obtain an understanding of interna! control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's interna! control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue 
as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structu re and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in interna! control that we identity during our audit. 

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication . 

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited 
Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o. with its registered office at Na Florenci 2 116/ 15, 110 00 Prague 1 - Nove Mesto, 
has been incorporated in the Commercial Reqister administered by the Municipal Court in Prague, 
Sec tion C, entry no. 88 504, under ldentifica tion No. 26704 153. 

3 



EV 
Building a better 
working world 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

ln compliance with Article 10(2) of Reg u lat ion (EU) No. 537 /2014 of the European Parliament 
and the Council, we provide the following information in our independent auditor's report, which is required 
in addition to the requirements of lnternational Standards on Auditing : 

Appointment of Auditor and Period of Engagement 

We were appointed as the auditors of the Company by the General Meeting of Shareholder 
on 5 September 2018 and our uninterrupted engagement has lasted for 6 years. 

Consistence with Additional Report to Audit Committee 

We confirm that our audit opinion on the financial statements expressed herein is consistent 
with the additional report to the Audit Committee of the Company, which we issued on 15 Apríl 2019 
in accordance with Art icle 11 of Regulation (EU) No. 537 /2014 of the European Parliament 
and the Council. 

Provision of Non-audit Services 

We declare that no prohibited non-audit services referred to in Article 5(1) of Regulation (EU) 
No. 537 /2014 of the European Parliament and the Council were provided by us to the Company. 
ln addition, there are no other non-audit services which were provided by us to the Company and its 
controlled undertaking and which have not been disclosed in the financial statements. 

Ernst & Young Audit. s.r .o. 
License No. 401 

Roman Hauptfleisch, Auditor 
License No. 2009 

16 Apríl 2019 
Prague, Czech Republic 

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Umited 
Ernst & Young Audit. s. r.o. with its registered oífíce at Na Florenci 2116/15, 110 00 Prague 1 - Nove Mesto, 
has been incorporated in the Commercial Regisler administered by the Municipal Courl in Prague, 
Section C, entry no. 88504, under ldentification No 26704153. 
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Flnanclal Statements forthe year ended 31 December 2018 Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. 

Statement of Profit and Loss 

for the year ended 31 December 2018 

2018 2017 
Note CZKOOO CZKOOO 

Revenue 4 1,258,971 1,230,876 
Consumption of material and energy (718,732) (644,639) 
Services (131,755) (158,237) 
Personnel expenses 5.5 (108,389) (122,756) 
Depreciation and amortization (144,480) (121,824) 
Other operating income 5.1 40,069 20,804 
Other operating expenses 5.2 (164,096) (74,368) 
Profit or loss on operating activities 31,588 129,856 
lnterest expense, net 5.3 (50,318) (65,339) 
Other financial items, net 5.4 (6,418) 20,241 
Financial profit/loss (56,736) (45,098) 
Pre-tax profit (25,148) 84,758 
lncome tax 6 4,500 (16,475) 
Net profit for the year (20,648) 68,283 

1 



Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 

Statement of Other Comprehensive lncome 

for the year ended 31 December 2018 

Net profit for the year 
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year, net of tax 

Tota I comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 

Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. 

2018 
CZKOOO 
(20,648) 

(20,648) 

2017 
CZKOOO 

68,283 

68,283 
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Statement of Financial Position 

as at 31 December 2018 

Note 2018 2017 

CZKOOO CZKOOO 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
lntangible assets 8 83,436 64,387 

Tangible assets 7 1,903,567 1,775,544 
Land 159,823 159,823 

Structures 899,867 943,911 

Movable assets and sets of movab/e assets 633,979 619,630 
Tangib/e fixed assets in progress 192,720 35,643 
Advances granted for tangib/e fixed assets 17,178 16,537 

lnvestments 9.6 2,700 2,700 
Long-term receivables 28,317 1,023 

Total non-current assets 2,018,020 1,843,654 

CURRENT ASSETS 
lnventories 10 89,781 98,131 
Trade receivables and other assets 11 156,082 143,877 
Current income tax receivable 8,010 
Cash 12 100,704 261,627 
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 796 242 

Tatai current assets 355,373 503,877 

TOTAL ASSETS 2,373,393 2,347,531 

EQUITY 
Basic capital 13 10,000 10,000 
Reserves from profit 2,000 2,000 
Retained earnings of previous years 476,565 543,282 
Net profit for the yea r (20,648) 68,283 

Total equity 467,917 623,565 

LIABILITIES 
Non-current liabilities 

lnterest bearing loans from related parties 9.2 
lnterest bearing loans from credit institutions 9.2 16,174 19,507 
Bonds 9.2 1,238,287 1,235,744 
Provisions 15 6,706 3,425 
Deferred tax liability 6 234,636 260,222 

Tota! non-current liabilities 1,495,803 1,518,898 

Current liabilities 
Provisions 15 157,976 62,735 

Trade payables 17 220,705 94,520 
lnterest bearing loans from related parties 9.2 
lnterest bearing loans trom credit institutions 9.2 3,156 3,094 

Liabilitics to employees 17 12,170 20,059 
Current income tax liabilities 6,971 
Other liabilities 17 10,503 12,151 

Accruals and deferred income 16 5,163 5,538 

Tota! current liabilities 409,673 205,068 
Tota! liabilities 1,905,476 1,723,966 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,373,393 2,347,531 
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Statement of Changes in Equity 

for the year ended 31 December 2018 

Retained 
Reserves from earnings of Net profit for 

Basic capital profit previous years the year Tatai 
CZK000 CZK000 CZK000 CZK000 CZK000 

As at 31 December 2016 10,000 2,000 521,371 21,911 555,282 
Profit allocation to retained 21,911 (21,911) 
earnings 

Profit for the year 68,283 68,283 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income 68,283 68,283 

As at 31 December 2017 10,000 2,000 543,282 68,283 623,565 
Profit al/ocation to retained 68,283 {68,283} 
earnings 

Profit for the year {20,648} {20,648} 

Cash dividends (135,000} (135,000} 

Other comprehensive income 

Tota I comprehensive income (20,648) (20,648) 

As at 31 December 2018 10,000 2,000 476,565 (20,648) 467,917 
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Statement of Cash-Flows 

for the year ended 31 December 2018 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Profit or loss on ordinary activities before taxation (+/-) 

Adjustments to reconcile profit or loss to net cash provided by or used in operating 
activilies 

Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets and write-off of receivables 
Change in allowances 
Change in provisions 
Foreign exchange differences 

(Gain)/Loss on disposa/ of fixed assets 
lnterest expense and interest income 
Other non-cash movements (e.g. revaluation at fair value to profit or loss) 

Net cash from operating activities before taxation, changes in working 
capital and extraordinary items 

Change in non-cash components of working capital 

Change in inventory 
Change in trade receivables 
Change in other receivables and in prepaid expenses and unbilled revenue 
Change in trade payables 
Change in other payables, and in accrua/s and deferred income 

Net cash from operating activities before taxation, interest paid and 
extraordinary items 

Interes! paid 

lncome tax paid 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Purchase of fixed assets 

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 

Loans granted 

Interes! received 

Dividends received 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Repayments of long-term and short-term loans and borrowings 

Proceeds from bond issue 

Transaction costs on issue of bonds 

Effect of changes in own capital on cash - dividends 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

2018 
CZKOOO 

(25,148) 

259,781 

144,482 
1,435 

98,522 

(1,665} 

50,322 
(33,315) 

234,633 

108,330 

8,242 
(13,532) 

(554) 
126,183 
(12,009) 

342,963 

(48,508) 

(36,067) 

258,388 

(256,140} 

1,665 

(27,294) 

729 

(281,040) 

(3,271) 

(135,000) 
(138,271) 

(160,923) 

261,627 

100,704 

Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. 

2017 
CZKOOO 

84,758 

229,934 

121,824 
674 

3,487 

418 
65,339 
38,192 

314,692 

(5,102) 

(7,879) 
{3,876) 

(165) 
7,382 
(564) 

309,590 

(99,696) 

(32,461} 

177,433 

(118,400) 

471 

(405} 

(118,334) 

(1,120,863) 

1,251,000 

(15,256) 

114,881 

173,980 

87,647 

261,627 
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1. Corporate information 

These separate financial statements of Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. ('the Company') for the year ended 31 December 2018 were 

authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 16 Apríl 2019. 

Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. is a joint-stock company incorporated and domiciled in the Czech Republic whose shares are not 

publicly traded. The Company is an issuer of bonds admitted to trading on a regulated market of Prague Stock Exchange. 

The registered office is located at Objízdná 1777, 765 02 Otrokovice. The Company is principally engaged in production and 
distribution of heat and generation and trading of electricity. 

The Company's parent company is LAMA ENERGY GROUP a.s., with its registered office at Hradec nad Moravicí 747 41, 

Gudrichova 763, holding 100% interest in the Company. 

lnformation on related party relationships of the Company is provided in Note 20. 

Members of statutory, supervisory and control bodies as at 31 December 2018 were as follows: 

Board of Directors 

Chair: 

Vice-chair: 

Member: 

Petr Jeník 

Patrik Brom 

Jan Stuchlík 

Supervisory Board 

Chair: 

Vice-chair: 

Member: 

Member: 

Member: 

Member: 

Member: 

Audit committee 

Chair: 

Member: 

Member: 

Member: 

Petr Lamich 

Miroslav Kopřiva 

Jiří Veselý 

Karel Skopal 

Pavel Ondra 

Pavla Gromusová 

Bedřich Landsfeld 

Václav Moll 

Marek Janča 

David Lamich 

Pavel Průdek 

2. Significant accounting policies 

2.1. Basis of preparation 

The separate financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting 

Standards issued by the lnternational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as endorsed by the European Union (hereinafter 

'IFRS as endorsed by EU' ar 'IFRS'). 

As the Company became a publlc lnterest entity in 2017, IFRS is the Company's primary reporting framework and 

the Company has been preparing solely IFRS financial statements since 1 January 2017. For all periods up to and including 

the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company prepared its separate financial statements in accordance with local 

generally accepted accounting principles (Czech GAAP). 

The Company also prepares conso\idated financial statements in accordance with IFRS as endorsed by EU . The consolidated 

financial statements of Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. and its subsidiary for the year ended 31 December 2018 were authorized 
for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 16 April 2019. 

The financial statements have been prepared under going concern assumption on a historical cost basis, except when IFRS 

requires ether measurement basis as disclosed in the accounting policies below. 
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The financial statements are presented in Czech crowns (CZK), which is the Company's functional currency, and all values are 

rounded to the nearest thousand (CZK 000), except when otherwise indicated. 

2.2. Summary of significant accounting policies 
The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing its financial statements: 

2.2 .1. Current versus non-current classification 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement offinancial position based on current/non-current classification. 

An asset is current when it is: 

• Expected to be realized ar intended to be sald ar consumed in the norma I operating cycle 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

• Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, ar 
• Cash ar cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged ar used to settle a liability for at least twelve months 

after the reporting period 

Ali other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 

• 
• 

lt is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle 

lt is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

lt is dueto be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, ar 

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 

period 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

2.2.2. Fair value measurement 
The Company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives, and non-financial assets such as investment properties, 

at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value related disclosures for financial instruments and non-financial assets that 

are measured at fair value ar where fair values are disclosed, are summarized in the following notes: 

Accounting policy disclosures 
Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions 
Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy 
Financial instruments (including those carried at amortized cost) 

Note 2.2.2 
Notes 3, 9 
Note 9 
Note 9 

Fair value is the price that would be received to seli an asset ar paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 

market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 

to seli the asset ar transfer the liability takes place either: 

• ln the princi pal market for the asset ar liability 

Or 

• ln the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset ar liability 

The princi pal ar the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fa ir value of an asset ar a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing 

the asset or llablllty, assuming that market participants act in their economlc best interest. 

A fa ir value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participanťs ability to generate economic 

benefits from the asseťs highest and best use ar by selling it to another market participant that would utilize the asset in its 

highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available 

to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 
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Ali assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fai r 

value hierarchy. This is described, as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 

as a whole: 

• Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signifícant to the fair value measurement 

is directly or indirectly observable 

• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 

is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company 

determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the 

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

The Company's management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such 

as investment properties and unquoted available-for-sale financial assets, and for nonrecu rring measurement, such as assets 

held for distribution in discontinued operations. 

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and AFS financial assets, and signifícant 

liabilities, such as contingent consideration. 

Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. 

The Company's management decides, after discussions with the Company's external valuers, which valuation techniques 

and inputs to use for each case. 

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required 

to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifíes the 

major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other 

relevant documents. 

The management, in conjunction with the Company's external valuers, also compares the change in the fair value of each 

asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable. 

On an interim basis, the management and the Company's external valuers present the valuation results to the Company's 

independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in the valuations. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the 

nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above. 
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2.2.3 . Revenue recognition 

Application of IFRS 15 

Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. 

The core principie of IFRS 15 is that an entity recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services 

to customers in an a mou nt that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those 

goods or services. Management has assessed that in relation to the products and services of the Company, revenue will 

be recognized for each performance obligations when control over the corresponding goods or services is transferred 

to customer. This is similar to the identification of separate revenue components under IAS 18. 

Requirements to identify a contract with a customer 

A contract with a customer meets its definition when all of the following criteria are met: the parties of the contract have 

approved the contract and are committed to perform their obligations; the Company can identity each party's rights 

regarding goods or services to be transferred; the Company can identity the payment terms for the goods or services to be 

transferred; the contract has commercial substance and it is probable that the Company will collect the consideration 

to which it will be entitled in exchange for the goods or services that will be transferred to the customer. 

ldentification of performance obligation 

At contract inception the Company assesses the goods or services promised in the contract with a customer and identifies 

as a performance obligation each promíse to transfer to the customer: goods or services (or a bundle of goods or services) 

that can be separated or groups of separate goods or services which are basically the same and for which the transfer to the 

customer is of the same nature. 

Determination of transaction price 

The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. 

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for 

transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, 

some sales taxes). The consideration promised in the contract with a customer may include fixed amounts, variable amounts 

or both. 

Allocating the transaction price to individua/ performance obligations 

The Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation (or distinct good or service) at an a mou nt that 

reflects the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised 

goods or services to the customer. 

Recognition of revenue when performance obligations are satisfied 

The Company recognizes revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies performance obligations by transferring a promised 

good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer (the customer obtains control of that asset). Revenue is recognized as amounts 

equal to the transaction price that has been allocated to a given performance obligation. 

The Company transfers control of good or service over time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes 

revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met: 

- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits from performance as the Company performs; 

- The asset is created or enhanced as a result of the performance, and the customer controls the asset as it is created 

or enhanced; 

- As a result of the performance of the service, an alternative component for the Company is not created, and the Company 

has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. 

Specific revenue categories are treated by the Company as follows: 

Revenue from s ale of therma/ energy and electricity 
Revenue from the sale of thermal energy and electricity (hereinafter referred as 'the energles') 1s recognized upon their 

delivery. Tota I revenue from the sale of energies consists of billed a mou nt of the energies supplied based on the reading 

of the measuring device as at the balance sheet date in the case of thermal and electrical energy or through unbilled revenue 

if the reading is not available as at the balance sheet date); the sales revenue is presented net of discounts and value added 

tax. 
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Sole of goods 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed 

to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sa le of goods is measured at the fair value of the 

consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. 

lnterest income 
For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest bearing financial assets classified as available-for-sale, 

interest income or expense is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) . The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the 

estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, 

to the net carrying a mou nt of the financial asset. lnterest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit 

or loss. 

2.2.4. Foreign currencies 
The Company's financial statements are presented in Czech crowns (CZK), which is also the Company's functional currency. 

Tronsactions and ba/ances 
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by at the functional currency spot rate at the date the transaction 

first qualifies for recognition . 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency spot rate 

of exchange ruling at the reporting date. 

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss with the exception 

of monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Company's net investment of a foreign operation. These 

are recognized in OCI until the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the cumulative amount is classified to profit 

or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCI. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 

rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 

translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation 

of non-monetary measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value in the 

item (i.e., the translation differences on ítems whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also 

recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively). 

2.2.5. Government grants 
Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and alf attached 

conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis 

over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to an asset, 

it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset. 

When the Company receives non-monetary grants, the asset and the grant are recorded gross at fair value and released 

to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the asset, based on the pattern of consumption of the benefits of the 

underlying asset by equal annual instalments. When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related 

institutions with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favorable interest is regarded 

as a government grant. 

For more details on accounting policy related to emission rights refer to Note 2.2.10. 

2.2 .6. Taxes 

Current income tax 
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be rec:overed from 

or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, 

or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit 

or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable 

tax regulations are subject to interpretation, and it establ ishes provisions where appropriate. 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 

and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

• When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that 

is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit 

or loss; 

• ln respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint 

arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that 

the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for: i) all deductible temporary differences and ii) the carry forward of unused tax credits 

and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 

temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except: 

• When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition 

of an asset ar liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects 

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit ar loss; 

• ln respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests 

in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary 

differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary 

differences can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 

probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all ar part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. 

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become 

probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered . 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset 

is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the 

reporting date. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit ar loss is recognized outside profit ar loss. Deferred tax items are 

recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in ether comprehensive income ar directly in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 

against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxation authority. 

Value added tax 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of value added tax, except: 

• Where the value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets ar services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, 

in which case, the value added tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense 

item, as applicable 

• Receivables and payables are stated with the a mou nt of value added tax included 

The net amount of value added tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables 

ar payables in the statement of financial position. 

2.2 .7. Property, plant and equipment 
Construction in progress, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated 

impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing 

costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of property, plant and 

equipment are required to be rcpl;iccd ;it intcrv;ils, thc Company recognizes such parts as individua! assets with speciíiL 

useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized 

in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied . Ali ether repair 

and maintenance costs are recognized in the profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost 

for the decommissioning of the asset after its use, is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria 

for a provision are met. 
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Depreciation is calculated based on the acquisition costs and the estimated useful life of the related asset. The useful 

economic lives are as follows : 

Construction 
Machinery 
Vehicles 
Furniture and fixtures 

Years 
30-45 
15-30 
8-15 
4-8 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 

from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net 

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset 

is derecognized. 

The residua I values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial 

year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

2.2 .8. Leases 
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the 

inception date. The arrangement is assessed for whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific 

asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified 

in an arrangement. 

Company os a lessee 

Finance leases that transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased 

item, are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present 

value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and a reduction in the 

lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are 

recognized in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. 

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company 

will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life 

of the asset and the lease term. 

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense 

in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

2.2.9. Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes 

a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. 

Ali other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs 

that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 

Borrowing costs incurred on or after the date of transition (1 January 2016) for all eligible qualifying assets are capitalized . 

The borrowing costs capitalized under Local GAAP on qualifying assets to the date of transition to IFRS are included 

in the carrying amount of assets at that date. 

2.2.10. lntangible assets 
lntangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible 

assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if ;rny. lntPrn;illy gPnPrilted 

intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is recognized in the 

statement of profit or loss when it is incurred. 

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. 

lntanglble assets with finite lives are amortized over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever 

there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for 

an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected 

useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted 

for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. 
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The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the expense 

category consistent with the function of the intangible assets. 

lntangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually 

orat the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether 

the indefinite life continues to be supportable. lf not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made 

on a prospective basis. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal 

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the asset 

is derecognized. 

The Company assessed all intangibles having finite useful lives and are amortized over period not exceeding five years . 

Emission rights (emission allowances) 

Emission rights held under national and international emission-rights systems for the settlement of obligations are reported 

as intangible assets. Because emission rights are not depleted as part of the production process, they are reported 

as intangible assets not subject to amortization. Emission rights are capitalized at cost at the time of acquisition orat fair 

value in case of emission rights provided for free. 

A provision is recognized for emissions produced. The provision is measured at the carrying a mou nt of the emission rights 

held or, in the case of a shortfall, at the current fair value of the emission rights needed. The expenses incurred 

for the recognition of the provision, if any, are reported under other ope rating expenses. 

2.2 .11. Financia\ instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement 
A fínancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 

instrument of another entity. 

i) Financia/ assets 

lnitial recognition and measurement 

From 1 January 2018, the Company classifies financial assets into one of the following categories: 

- Measured at amortized cost; 

- Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income; 

- Measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

Debt financial assets are classified into the appropriate category based on the business model used fo r the management 

of fínancial assets and on the characteristics of contractual cash flows for a given fínancial asset. 

Tra de receivables, loans granted, other financial receivables and cash and cash equivalents are classified as assets measured 

at amortized cest. 

Except for investments in subsidiaries, all financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of assets not 

at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisit ion of the financial asset. 

The table below presents the effects of the implementation of IFRS 9 on the classification and measurement 

of the Company's financial assets as at 1 January 2018: 

Financial instrument by type 

Loans 

Trc1t.le érnt.l other recelvables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Classification under JAS 39 

Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables 

Classification under IFRS 9 

Assets measured at amortized cost 

Assets measured at amort1zed cost 

Assets measured at amortized cest 

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation 

or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the tra de date, i.e., the date on wh ich the Company 

commits to purchase or sell the asset 
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Subsequent measurement 

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as described below: 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with net 

changes in fair value presented as finance income (positive net changes in fair value) or finance costs (negative net changes 

in fair value) in the statement of profit or loss. 

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives if their economic characteristics and risks 

are not dosely related to these of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held-for-trading or designated at fair 

value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized 

in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly 

modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through 

profit or loss. 

Assets measured at amortized cost 

This category is the most relevant to the Company. Assets measured at amortized cest include loans and trade receivables. 

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After 

initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cest using the effective interest rate (EIR) 

method, less impairment, if any. Amortized cest is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition 

and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the statement 

of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans 

and in cest of sales or other operating expenses for receivables. This category generally applies to trade and ether 

receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 11. 

Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized 

when : 

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

• The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay 

the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through arrangement, and either 

(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither 

transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through 

arrangement, it evaluates if and, to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither 

transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of it, the asset 

is recognized to the extent of its continuing involvement in it. ln that case, the Company also recognizes an associated 

liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that 

the Company has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original 

carrying a mou nt of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay. 

ii) lmpairment aj financial assets 

Disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets are summarized in the following notes: 

• Accounting pollcy disclosures Note 2.3.12 

• Disclosures for significant assumptions Note 3 . Financial assets Note 9 

• Trade receivables Note 11 

IFRS 9 introduces a new approach to estimating the impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cest orat fair 

value through ether comprehensive income (with the exception of investments in capital assets and contract assets). 

The impairment model is based on the expected loss calculation as opposed to the currently applied model resulting from 

IAS 39, which was based on the concept of incurred loss. The most important items of financial assets in the Company's 

financial statements, whích are subject to the new princi ples of calculating expected credit losses, are trade receivables. 
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The Company uses the simplified model for determining impairment allowances of trade receivables. ln the model, 

the Company does not monitor changes in the credit risk level du ring the life of the instrument and estimates the expected 

credit loss in the horizon up to maturity of the instrument. For the purpose of estimating the expected credit loss, 

the Company uses a provision matrix estimated on the basis of historical levels of repayment and recoveries of receivables 

from customers. The Company includes prospective information in the parameters used in the expected loss estimation 

model, through the management adjustment of the basic insolvency probability parameters. To calculate the expected credit 

loss, the Company determines the probability parameter of receivables defaults estimated on the basis of the analysis of the 

number of unpaid invoices in the last five years, and the liabilities default rate estimated on the basis of the value of unpaid 

invoices in the last five years. The expected credit loss is calculated when the receivable is recognized in the statement 

of financial position and is updated at the end of every subsequent reporting period, depending on the number of days 

to maturity. 

lnvestments in subsidiaries 

lnvestments in subsidiaries are carried at cost. lmpaired investments are provided for or written off. 

iii) Financial /iabilities 

lnitial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, financial 

liabilities measured at amortized cost, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, 

as appropriate. 

Ali financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value, in the case of financial liabilities measured at amortized cost, 

net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, bonds, bank overdrafts, financial 

guarantee contracts, and derivative financial instruments. 

Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows: 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for-trading and financial liabilities 

designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. This 

category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging 

instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held-for­

trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held-for-trading are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date 

of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Company has not designated any financial liabilities as at fair 

value through profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, financial liabilities measured at amortized 

cost are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized 

in the statement ot profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate method 

(EIR) amortization process. 

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are 

an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. 

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings and bonds. 

Financial guarantee contracts 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse 

the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms 
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of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction 

costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher 

of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date and the amount 

recognized less cumulative amortization. 

Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged ar cancelled ar expires. When 

an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an 

existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange ar modification is treated as a derecognition of the original 

liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement 

of profit ar loss. 

iv) Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset with the net amount reported in the statement of financial position only 

if there is a current enforceable lega I right to offsetthe recognized amounts and an intent to settle on a net basis, or to realize 

the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

2.2 .12. Derivative financia\ instruments and hedge accounting 
lnitial recognition and subsequent measurement 

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps and forward 

commodity contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and commodity price risks, respectively. Such 

derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered 

into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive 

and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

The fair value of commodity contracts that meet the definition of a derivative as defined by IFRS 9 are recognized in the 

statement of profit or loss as cost of sales. Commodity contracts that are entered into and continue to be held for the purpose 

of the receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in accordance with the Company's expected purchase, sale or usage 

requirements are held at cost. 

Any gains ar losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit ar loss, 

except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognized in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when 

the hedged item affects profit or loss. 

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as: 

• Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability 

ar an unrecognized firm commitment (except for foreign currency risk) 

• Cash flow hedges when hedging exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk 

associated with a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk 

in an unrecognized firm commitment 

• Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation 

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which 

the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. 

The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk 

being hedged and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrumenťs fair value in offsetting 

the exposure to changes in the hedged item's fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are 

expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value ar cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing 

basls to determlne that they actually have been h1ghly effect1ve throughout the financial reporting periods tor which Lhey 

were designated. 

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as described below: 

Fair value hedges 

The change in the fair value of an interest rate hedging derivative is recognized in the statement of profit or loss in finance 

costs. The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value 

of the hedged item and is also recognized in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs. 
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For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortized cost, the adjustment to carrying value is amortized through the 

statement of profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge using the EIR method. Effective interest rate amortization 

may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its 

fair value attributable to the risk being hedged. 

lf the hedge item is derecognized, the unamortized fair value is recognized immediately in the statement of profit or loss. 

When an unrecognized firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value 

of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognized as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss 

recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Cash flow hedges 

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognized in OCI in the cash flow hedge reserve, while 

any ineffective portion is recognized immediately in the statement of profit or loss as other operating expenses. 

Amounts recognized as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when 

the hedged financial income or financial expense is recognized or when a forecast sale occurs. When the hedged item is the 

cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial lia bility, the amounts recognized as other comprehensive income are transferred 

to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability. 

lf the forecast transaction or firm commitment is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss previously 

recognized in equity is transferred to profit or loss. lf the hedging instrument expires or is sald, terminated or exercised 

without replacement or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the 

hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other 

comprehensive income remains separately in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm 

commitment affects profit or loss. 

Hedges of a net investment 

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation, including a hedge of a monetary item that is accounted for as part of the 

net investment, are accounted similarto cash flow hedges. Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relatingto the effective 

portion of the hedge are recognized as other comprehensive income while any gains or losses relating to the ineffective 

portion are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. On disposal of the foreign operation, the cumulative value of any 

such gains or losses recorded in equity is transferred to the statement of profit or loss. 

2.2 .13. lnventories 
lnventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The inventories are stated at actual costs being 

determined using the weighted average method. Costs of purchased inventory include acquisition-related costs (mainly 

freight, customs, etc.). Coal and biomass inventories are stated at actual costs being determined using the standard casting 

and price variances; price variances, including the related costs, are calculated on a monthly basis. 

lnitial cost of raw materials includes the transfer of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges, recognized in other 

comprehensive income, if any. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and 

the estimated costs to sel!. 

2.2.14. lmpairment of non-financial assets 
Disclosures relating to impairment of non-financial assets are summarized in the following notes; 

• Accounting policy disclosures Note 2.2.14 

• Dlsclosures for significant assumptions Note 3 . Property, plant and equipment Note 7 

• lntangible assets Note 8 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. lf any indication 

exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asseťs recoverable amount. 

An asseťs recoverable a mou nt is the higher of an asseťs or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. 

lt is determined for an individua I asset, unless the a s set does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those 

from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, 

the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 
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ln assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 

that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. ln determining fair 

value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. lf no such transactions can be identified, 

an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for 

publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators. 

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are prepared separately for each 

of the Company's CGU to which the individua I assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally 

covering a period of five years. A long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth 

year. 

lmpairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in those expense categories 

consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for a property previously revalued where the revaluation was 

taken to OCI. ln this case, the impairment is also recognized in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation. 

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized 

impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. lf such indication exists, the Company estimates the asseťs 

or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the 

assumptions used to determine the asseťs recoverable a mou nt since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal 

is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount 

that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. 

Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case 

the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. 

The following criteria are also applied in assessing impairment of specific assets: 

lntangible assets 

lntangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at 31 December either individually 

orat the CGU level, as appropriate and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. 

2.2.15. Cash and short-term deposits 
Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term 

deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of the statement cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as defined 

above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management. 

2.2.16. Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to owners of equity 
The Company recognizes a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to owners of equity when the distribution 

is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the business corporation law 

applicable in the Czech Republic, a distribution is authorized when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding 

amount is recognized directly in equity. 

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measurement 

recognized directly in equity. 

Upon settlement of the distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the 

carrying a mou nt of the assets distributed is recognized in profit or loss. 

2.2.17. Provisions 
1-'ruvtstuns are recognlzed wl1en Lhe Cur11µd11y hds d µresent ubllgatlon (IPgal or constructlve) as a result of a past event, rt rs 

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be 

reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when 

the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net 

of any reimbursement. 

ff the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when 

appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage 

of time is recognized as a finance cost. 

19 



Financial Statements for t he year ended 31 December 2018 Teplárna Otrokov.ice a.s. 

Greenhouse gas emissions (emission rights) 

The Company receives free emission rights in the Czech Republic as a result of the European Emission Trading Schemes. 

The rights are received on an annual basis and in return the Company is required to remit rights equal to its actual emissions. 

A provision is recognized for emissions produced. The provision is measured at the carrying a mou nt of the emission rights 

held or, in the case of a shortfall, at the current fair value of the emission rights needed. The expenses incurred for the 

recognition of the provision, if any, are reported under other operating expenses. 

2.2.18. Pensions and other long-term employment benefits 
The Company provides long-term employment benefits, where employees are entitled to benefits dependent on the number 

of years of employment, jubilee bonuses and bonuses paid upon retirement of an employee. There is no liability to the 

Company after the employee is retired or employment ceased. 

The cost of providing the benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method and the long-term employment 

benefit costs are recognized in the profit and loss as a personnel expense. 

2.2.19. New standards adopted in 2018 

IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments 

in July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments that replaces IAS 39 Financial lnstruments: 

Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 brings together all three aspects of the accounting 

for financial instruments project: classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for 

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Except for hedge accounting, retrospective application is required but 

providing comparative information is not compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requirements are generally applied 
prospectively, with some limited exceptions. 

The Company adopted the new standard on the required effective date, i.e. on 1 January 2018. Considering the nature 

of the Company's business, its customer mix and means of financing, no significant effects on the Company's balance sheet 

and equity are expected. 

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with 

customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects 

to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. 

The new revenue standard supersedes all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. The standard is effective 

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Either a full retrospective application or a modified retrospective 

application is required. Early adoption is permitted. The Company adopted the new standard on the required effective date 

using the full retrospective method. The Company performed a detailed impact assessment and concluded that IFRS 15 

would not have a material effect on the Company's financial statements. This is because the Company is engaged 

in the production and sale of heat and electricity, with sales effected on the basis of separate identified contracts with 

customers. The Company recognizes revenues based on the energy actually delivered, i.e. over time, and therefore the new 

standard does not have a significant impact on its balance sheet, reported revenue and profit or loss. 

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 

11ssumptions that affect the reported arnou11b uf 1eve11ues, exµe11ses, dssels a11u lial.Jililies, c111t1 Lhe acwrnpanylng 

disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result 

in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of asset or liability affected in future periods. 
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Judgements 

ln the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have 

the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements: 

Products 

The management monitors the company's performance in two principal products: 

• Thermal energy 

• Electricity 

Dueto the nature of the production the costs (comprising na mely fixed assets depreciation and raw materials consumption) 

used to produce the energies are shared and largely indistinguishable and any allocation of the costs related to the two main 

products would be arbitrary and unreliable. Due to this fact the management concluded that there are no separate 

reportable segments. 

Deemed costs 

The Company applied certain exemptions from IFRS. The exemption that has the most significant impact on the financial 

statements is the usage of deemed costs for property, plant and equipment based on fair values established in 2013. 

Embedded derivatives in purchase contracts 

The Company entered into long-term contracts to purchase of coal it uses in production. The Company analysed the contracts 

and concluded they are not in scope of IFRS 9 and has not separated the embedded derivatives as the embedded derivative 

is clearly and dosely related to the host commodity contract. 

Estimates and assumptions 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have 

a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 

year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial 

statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due 

to market changes ar circurnstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the 

assumptions when they occur. 

lmpairment of non-financial assets 

An irnpairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its 

fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data 

frorn binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental 

costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from 

the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed 

to or significant future investments that will enhance the asseťs performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable 

amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the 

growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. The Company performs impairment tests at least annually or if indicators 

of impairment exists. 

Long-term emp/oyment benefits 

The cost of long-term employment benefits and the present value of the related obligation are determined using actuarial 

valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions which may differ from actual developments 

in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate and attrition rates. Dueto the complexity of the valuation, 

the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, an obligation from the long-term employment benefits is sensitive 

to changes in these assumptions. Ali assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter most subject to change 

is the discount rate. ln determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of corporate 

bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the benefit obligation with at least an 'AA' rating or above, as set by an 

internationally acknowledged rating agency, and extrapolated as needed along the yield curve to correspond with the 

expected term of the long-term employment benefits. The attrition rate is based on historical figures. Further details about 

long-term employment benefit obligations are provided in Note 15. 

21 



Financia l Statements forthe year ended 31 December 2018 Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. 

4. Revenue and segment information 

As discussed in Note 3, dueto the nature of the production the Company has no separate reportable segments i.e. the whole 

Company is one segment. 

Revenue from external customers by product and services 

Sales of thermal energy 

Sales of electricity and related services 

Other 

Tatai Revenue 

2018 
CZKOOO 

566,656 

678,233 

14,082 

1,258,971 

Geographical information about non-current assets and revenues 

2017 
CZKOOO 

586,249 

629,115 

15,512 

1,230,876 

Ali Company's non-current assets are located in the Czech Republic. Ali revenues are from customers based in the Czech 

Republic. 

lnformation about major customers 

The revenue from each of the two largest customers a mou nt to more than 10% individually. The revenue in the respective 

years from these customers were as follows: 

2018 2017 2018 2017 
Revenue Revenue Share on total 

Company's revenue 

CZKOOO CZKOOO % % 

Customer 1 738,075 678,473 59% 55% 

Customer 2 155,273 162,094 12% 13% 

5. Other income and expenses 

5.1. Other operating income 
2018 2017 

CZKOOO CZKOOO 

Granted emission rights 35,414 19,584 

Other income 4,655 1,220 

Tatai Other operating income 40,069 20,804 

For more details on the Company's accounting policy on accounting for emission rights please refer to Note 2.2.10. 

5.2. Other operating expenses 

Provision for emission allowances 

Other expenses 

Tatai Other operating expenses 

2018 
CZKOOO 

153,371 

10,725 

164,096 

2017 
CZKOOO 

62,452 

11,916 

74,368 
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5.3. lnterest expense 
2018 2017 

CZKOOO CZKOOO 

lnterest income 732 

lnterest expense 51,050 65,339 

lnterest expense, net 50,318 65,339 

5.4 . Other financial items 
2018 2017 

CZKOOO CZKOOO 

Foreign exchange gains (losses), net (8) (40) 

Fair value gain (loss) on financial 
instruments at fair value through 
profit or loss, net (6,433) 20,868 

Bank and similar fees (211) (587) 

Other 234 

Tota I Other financial items, net (6,418) 20,241 

5.5. Personnel expenses 
2018 2017 

CZKOOO CZKOOO 

Wages and salaries including 76,992 89,680 
management remuneration 

Social security costs 25,715 28,689 

Other personnel expenses 2,929 4,057 

Employment benefits 2,753 330 

Total Personnel expenses 108,389 122,756 

Bonuses to members of statutory and supervisory bodies in CZK 000: 

Body 2018 2017 

Board of Directors 6,890 7,580 

Supervisory Board 1,140 1,140 

Audit Committee 476 -
Tatai 8,506 8,720 

6. lncome tax 

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 are: 

Statement of profit or loss 

Current income tax: 

Current income tax charge 

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year 

Deferred tax: 

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 

lncome tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 

2018 
CZKOOO 

21,079 

7 

(25,586) 

(4,500) 

2017 
CZKOOO 

31,701 

(2) 

(15,224) 

16,47S 
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Statement of other comprehensive income 

Deferred tax related to items recognized in other 
comprehensive income during the year: 

lncome tax recognized in other comprehensive income 

2018 

CZKOOO 

Teplá rna Ot rokovice a.s. 

2017 

CZKOOO 

A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by Czech domestic tax rate for 
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 is as follows: 

Accounting profit before income tax 

At Czech statutory income tax rate of 19% 

Adjustments in respect to current income tax of previous years 

Non-deductible expense, non-taxable income for tax purposes 

lncome tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 

Effective tax rate 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax relates to the following: 

Statement 
of Financial Position 

Difference in net book value of 
non-current assets for tax purposes 
Provisions and valuation 
allowances 
Financials leases 
Amortization of loans using 
effective interest rate 
Employment benefits 
Deferred tax (expense)/income 

2018 
CZKOOO 

(266,298) 

32,653 

(2,397) 

1,406 

2017 
CZKOOO 

(273,774) 

15,726 

1 
(2,880) 

705 

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) --'-----'----'-----'-----'---'--­(234,636) (260,222) 
Reflected in the statement of 
financial position as follows: 

Deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax liabilities 

Deferred tax liabilities net 

(234,636) 

(234,636) 

Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities, net 

Opening balance as at 1 January 

(260,222) 

(260,222) 

Tax income/(cxpcn~c) du ring thc period rccognizcd in profit or loss 
Tax inr.omP./(P.XflPn.~P) rluring thP prriod rc:-roenizc:-d in othcr 
comprehensive income 

Closing balance as at 31 December 

2018 2017 

CZKOOO CZKOOO 

(25,148) 84,758 

(4,778) 16,104 

7 (2) 

271 373 

(4,500) 16,475 

17.9% 19.4% 

Statement of Profit or Loss 

2018 2017 
CZKOOO CZKOOO 

7,476 15,405 

16,927 2,004 

(1) (3) 

483 (2,200) 

701 18 

25,586 15,224 

2018 2017 

CZKOOO 

(260,222) 

25,586 

(234,636) 

CZKOOO 

(275,446) 

15,22'1 

(260,222) 

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and 

current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax 

authority. 
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7. Property, plant and equipment 

Advances 
Movable assets Leased Tangible granted for 

and sets of movable fixed assets tangible 
Land Structures movable assets assets in progress fixed assets Total 

Cost CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO 

At 31 December 2016 159,823 1,144,325 1,035,224 1,638 57,653 1,135 2,399,798 

Additions 70,731 16,508 87,239 

Transfers 49,510 44,337 (92,741) (1,106) 

Oisposals (85) (12,046) (12,131) 

At 31 December 2017 159,823 1,193,750 1,067,515 1,638 35,643 16,537 2,474,906 
Additions 271,249 641 271,890 

Transfers 16,839 97,333 (114,172) 

Disposals (110) (21,775) (21,885) 

At 31 December 2018 159,823 1,210,479 1,143,073 1,638 192,720 17,178 2,724,911 

Accumulated Depreciation 

At 31 December 2016 199,977 384,837 1,387 586,201 
Oepreciation charge for 49,947 70,444 214 120,605 
the year 

Disposals (85) (7,359) (7,444) 

At 31 December 2017 249,839 447,922 1,601 699,362 
Depreciation charge for the 60,883 82,947 37 143,867 
year 

Disposals (110) (21,775) (21,885) 

At 31 December 2018 310,612 509,094 1,638 821,344 

Net book value 

At 31 December 2017 159,823 943,911 619,593 37 35,643 16,537 1,775,544 

At 31 December 2018 159,823 899,867 633,979 192,720 17,178 1,903,567 

Capitalized borrowing costs 

The amount of borrowing costs capitalized during the year ended 31 December 2018 was CZK O thousand (2017: CZK 

O thousand). 

Finance leases 

The net book value of plant and equipment held under finance leases at 31 December 2018 was CZK O thousand 
(2017: CZK 37 thousand) . 

Land and buildings 

Land and buildings were subject to a first charge to secure the Company's bank loans (Note 9.2) . The Company refinanced 

and fully repaid its long-term bank loans by issuing bonds in December 2017 and the pledge was removed in January 2018. 

Assets under construction and advances granted for tangible fixed assets 

Thc bolonccs of assets under construction es et Jl December 2018 and 2017 include, i11 pa1ticular, expenditures 

on enhancing efficiency and environmental compliance of existing boilers and on building infrastructure to connect 

customers. 

lmpairment 

ln 2018 and 2017 the Company performed impairment test of Property, Plant and Equipment. The impairment test involves 
determining the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU. An asseťs recoverable amount is the higher of an asseťs or CGU's 
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be 
derived from an asset or a cash-generating unit. Value in use is determined on the basis of an enterprise valuation model 
and is assessed from a Company interna I perspective. 
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Values in use are determined based on the medium-term budget for a period of s years and on the anticipated development 
of the expected cash flows in the long-term, which is valid when the impairment test is performed. These budgets are based 
on the past experience, as well as on the anticipated future market trends and on the macroeconomic development. 

The development of commodity prices, namely coal prices, the development of emission right prices and the anticipated 
demand from key customers are the key assumptions used for the valuation model. 

The calculations of value in use are most sensitive to the following assumptions: 

Prices of key inputs - Overal! profitability is affected especially by the coal prices and prices of emission rights. Forecast 
figures are used if data is available, otherwise past actual raw material price movements have been used as an indicator 
of future price movements. 

Discount rate - Discount rate reflects the managemenťs estimate of the risk specific to the business. The basis used 
to determine the value assigned is weighted average cost of capital (WACC) of the business. 

Estimated growth rate -The basis used to determine the value assigned to estimated growth rate is the anticipated future 
development of the market and interest rates, changes in strategy of the Company and LAMA Group, and the forecast of the 
regulatory environment, where the Company conduct the business. 

As a results of impairment tests performed, no impairment has been recognized in 2018 and 2017 financial statements. 
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8. lntangible assets 

Software 

CZK000 

Cost 

At 31 December 2016 8,468 

Additions 

Transfers 374 

Disposals (44) 

At 31 December 2017 8,798 

Additions 

Transfers 388 

Disposals (298) 

At 31 December 2018 8,888 

Accumulated Depreciation 

At 31 December 2016 6,412 

Amortization charge for the year 1,219 

Disposals (43) 

At 31 December 2017 7,588 

Amortization charge for the year 613 

Disposals (298) 

At 31 December 2018 7,903 

Net book value 

At 31 December 2016 2,056 

At 31 December 2017 1,210 

At 31 December 2018 985 

Other intangible assets 

Teplá rna Otrokovice a.s. 

lntanglble assets 
Other intangible in progress and 

assets advances granted 

CZK 000 CZK 000 

87,664 

19,584 

(59,060) 

48,188 

92,814 

(58,540) 

82,462 

13 

(2) 

11 

11 

87,651 
48,177 

82,451 

34,958 

{19,958) 

15,000 

78,202 

(93,202) 

15,000 

Total 

CZK000 

96,132 
34,958 

(59,104) 

71,986 

78,202 

(58,838) 

91,350 

6,425 
1,219 

(45) 

7,599 

613 

(298) 

7,914 

89,707 
64,387 

83,436 

lncluded in the other intangible assets are emission rights. The balances measured at cost were as follows: 

At 31 December 2016 

At 31 December 2017 

At 31 December 2018 

Purchased 
emission rights 

CZK000 

87,651 

48,177 

82,450 

For details on the accounting policy adopted by the Company for measuring the emission rights please refer to Note 2.2.10. 
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9. Financial assets and financial liabilities 

9.1. Financial assets 

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments: 
lnterest rate swaps 

Total financial instruments at fair value 
Financial assets at amortized cost: 

Trade receivables and other assets 
Total financial assets 

Ofwhich: 
Total current 
Total non-current 

2018 
CZKOOO 

184,399 
184,399 

156,082 
28,317 

2017 
CZKOOO 
10,328 
10,328 

132,882 
143,210 

142,187 
1,023 

Teplárna Ot rokovice a.s. 

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments reflect the positive change in fair value of interest rate swap contracts 

that are not designated in hedge relationships, but are nevertheless intended to reduce the level of interest rate risk 

of floating interest-bearing loans and bonds. 

9.2 . Financial liabilities 

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments: 

lnterest rate swaps 
Total financial liabilities at fair value 
Other financial liabilities at amortized cost, other than 
interest-bearing loans, borrowings and bonds: 

Trade and ether payables 
Total other financial liabilities 

Ofwhich: 
Total current 
Total non-current 

2018 2017 
CZKOOO CZKOOO 

2,097 271 
2,097 271 

224,000 98,204 
226,097 98,47S 

222,097 97,570 
4,000 905 

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments reflect the positive change in fair value of interest rate swap contracts 

that are not designated in hedge relationships, but are nevertheless intended to reduce the level of interest rate risk 

of floating interest-bearing loans and bonds. 
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lnterest-bearing loans and borrowings, including bonds 

lnterest rate Maturity 2018 2017 

CZKOOO CZKOOO 

Current interest-bearing laans and 
barrawings 

Obligations under finance leases 3.5% 2018 40 

Bank loan 
Other loans for financing non-current assets 
(short-term portion) 3.1%-3.6% 2024 3,156 3,054 

Loan from shareholders PRIBOR +9% 2020 
Total current interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings 3,156 3,094 

Nan-current interest-bearing loans and 
barrowings 

Obligations under finance leases 3.5% 2018 

Bank loan 
PRIBOR + 1,238,287 1,235,744 

Bonds 2.8% 2023 

Other loans for financing non-current assets 3.1%-3.6% 2024 16,174 19,507 

Loan from shareholders 
Tatai non-current interest-bearing loans and 1,254,461 1,255,251 
borrowings 

Tatai interest-bearing loans and barrawlngs 1,257,617 1,258,345 

The loan agreement with a financing bank included certain covenants, including Net Debt/EBITDA ratio. The Company was 

in compliance with the covenants in 2017. As at 31 December 2018, the Company was no longer required to monitor 

the covenants as the loan had been redeemed. 

On 15 December 2018, the Company entered into a revolving loan agreement up to the limit of CZK 200,000 thousand with 

the pa rent company LAMA ENERGY GROUP a. s. The agreement has the following covenants: The Company, as a borrower, 

is entitled to a partial and repeated drawdown up to the above limit, provided the restrictions stipulated by Art. 4.2. 

of the issuing conditions of bonds maintained under ISIN CZ0003517732 and title "TEPL. OTR. VAR/23 Bonds" are met. 

The interest rate is set at 3.20% p. a. The loan will mature in on 15 December 2020. lnterest on the outstanding amount will 

be calculated annually at the end of a calendaryear and will be due on 15 January of the subsequent year. The revolving loan 

has been granted for the period of two years from the date the agreement is entered into. The Company did not use the 

loan in 2018. 

Reconciliatian af liabilities fram financing activities 

Other long- Tatai liabilities 
Bankloans term from financing 
and bonds liabilities activities 

CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO 

Amount presented on balance sheet 
as at 1 January 2018 1,235,744 22,601 1,258,345 
Net cash flows {3,271) {3,271) 
Foreign exchange r11uveme11l 
Changes in fair values 
Other 2,543 2,543 

Amount presented on balance sheet 
as at 31 December 2018 1,238,287 19,330 1,257,617 
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Bonds 

On 21 December 2017 the Company issued bonds TEPL. OTR. VAR/23 (ISIN CZ0003517732) that were accepted for trading 

on Prague Stock Exchange. Nominal amount of one bond is CZK 3,000 thousand. The bonds were subscribed in total nominal 

a mou nt of CZK 1,251,000 thousand. The bonds VAR/23 bear interest of 6M PRIBOR + 2.8%, which is payable semi-annually 

on 21 June and 21 December each year. The ultimate maturity of the bonds is 21 December 2023. The bonds could be repaid 

up to one year before its ultimate maturity, subject to meeting certain conditions . The proceeds from the bonds were 

predominantly used to repay bank loans and borrowings. 

Assets pledged as a security for bank loans 

The liabilities to credit institutions were secured by a right of pledge established on the real estate (constructions, land), 

recorded in the Land Register for the Zlín region, which was in possession of the Company as at 31 December 2017. 

ln addition, the loan was secured by a pledge agreement for certain movable items and groups of movable items possessed 

by the Company and also by receivables. As at 31 December 2017, the total value of pledged assets (buildings, constructions, 

movable items and land) was CZK 1,568,979 thousand and CZK 1,079,615 thousand at cost and at net book value, 

respectively. Following the redemption of the bank loan, no real estate of the Company was secured by a right of pledge 

as at 31 December 2018. 

As at 31 December 2017, pledged rece ivables amounted to CZK 131,501 thousand. As at 31 December 2018, no movable 

items or groups of movable items held by the Company or receivables were secured by a right of pledge. The above pledges 

related to the bank loan that was repaid in full as at 31 December 2017 by the proceeds from the issued publicly traded 

bonds. 

9.3. Hedging activities and derivatives 

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments 

The Company uses interest rate swaps to manage interest rate risk. These contracts are not designated as cash flow, fair 

value or net investment hedges and are entered into for periods broadly consistent with the maturity of the underlying 

interest-bearing borrowings. 

The Company has not designated any other derivative as a hedging instrument. 

9.4 . Fair values 

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's financial instruments, other 

than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values: 

Carrying amount Fair value 

2018 2017 2018 2017 

Financial assets CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO 

lnterest rate swaps 10,328 10,328 

Loans and receivables 472 748 418 678 

Total financial assets 472 11,076 418 11,006 

Financial liabilities 

Obligations underfinance leases 40 41 

Bank loan 

Bonds 1,238,287 1,235,744 1,251,000 1,251,000 

Other loans for financing non-
current assets 19,330 22,561 18,568 22,246 

Loan from shareholders 

lnterest rate swaps 2,097 271 2,097 271 

Total financial liabilities 1,259,714 1,258,616 1,271,665 1,273,558 
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The management assessed that cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, trade payables and other current liabilities 

approximate their carrying amounts largely dueto the short-term maturities of these instruments. 

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged 

in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and 

assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 

• Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters 

such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, individua! creditworthiness of the customer and the risk 

characteristics of the financed item. 

• The fair values of the quoted notes and bonds are based on price quotations at the reporting date. The fair value 

of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities, obligations under finance leases, as well 

as other non-current financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for 

debt on similarterms, credit risk and remaining maturities. ln addition to being sensitive to a reasonably possible change 

in the forecast cash flows or the discount rate, the fair value of the equity instruments is also sensitive to a reasonably 

possible change in the growth rates. The valuation requires management to use unobservable inputs in the model, 

of which the significant unobservable inputs are disclosed in the tables below. Management regularly assesses a range 

of reasonably possible alternatives for those significant unobservable inputs and determines their impact on the total 

fair value. 

• The Company enters into derivative financial instruments principally with financial institutions with investment grade 

credit ratings. lnterest rate swaps are valued using valuation techniques, which employ the use of market observable 

inputs. The most frequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing and swap models, using present value 

calculations. The models incorporate various inputs including the credit quality of counterparties, yield curves of the 

respective currencies and interest rate curves. As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 the marked-to market 

values of derivative asset positions are net of a credit valuation adjustment attributable to derivative counterparty 

default risk. The changes in counterparty credit risk had no material effect on the financial instruments recognized at fair 

value . 

• The fair values of the Company's interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using DCF method using 

discount rate that reflects the issuer's borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance 

risk as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 was assessed to be insignificant. 

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation 

technique: 

Leve! 1: 

Leve! 2: 

Leve! 3: 

quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, 

either directly or indirectly 

techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based 

on observable market data 

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy and quantitative disclosures of the Company's financial 

assets and liabilities 31 December 2018: · 
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Date of valuation Tota/ Levell Level2 

CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO 

Financ/al assets measured at fair value: 
lnterest rate swaps 31 December 2018 

Financial assets for which fair values are 
disclased: 

Loans and receivables 31 December 2018 418 

Financial /iabilities measured atfair value: 2,097 2,097 

lnterest rate swaps 31 December 2018 

Financial liabilities for which fair values are 
disclosed: 

Obligations under finance leases 31 December 2018 

Bonds 31 December 2018 1,251,000 1,251,000 

Other loans for financing non-current assets 31 December 2018 18,568 18,568 

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy and quantitative disclosures of the Company's financial 

assets and liabilities 31 December 2017: 

Financial assets measured atfair va/ue: 
lnterest rate swaps 

Financial assets for which fair values are 
disc/osed: 

Loans and receivables 

Financia/ liabilities measured atfair value: 
lnterest rate swaps 

Financial liabilities for which fair values are 
disclosed: 

Obligations under f inance leases 

Bank loan 

Other loans for financing non-current assets 

Date of valuation 

31 December 2017 

31 December 2017 

31 December 2017 

31 December 2017 

31 December 2017 

31 December 2017 

There were no transfers between the levels du ring 2018 and 2017. 

Total 

CZKOOO 

10,328 

678 

271 

41 

1,251,000 

22,246 

Level 1 

CZKOOO 

9.5 . Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies 

Level2 

CZKOOO 

10,328 

271 

41 

1,251,000 

22,246 

The Company's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, including bonds, trade 

and other payables, and financial guarantee contracts. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the 

Company's operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company's principal financial assets include 

loan and other receivables, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that arrive directly from 

its operations. The Company also enters into derivative transactions. 

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the 

management of these risks . The Company's senior management is supported by senior management team of the ultimate 

parent that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. 

The involvement of the ultimate parenťs senior management provides additional assurance to the Company's senior 

management that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that 

financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with Company's policies and Company's risk appetite. 

Ali derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have the appropriate skills, 
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experience and supervision. lt is the Company's policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may 

be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarized 

below. 

Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 

in market prices. Market prices comprise three ty pes of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equity 

price risk and commodity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include : loans and borrowings, including 

bonds, deposits and derivative financial instruments. 

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 December in 2018 and 31 December 2017. 

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the a mou nt of net debt, the ratio of fixed-to floating interest 

rates of the debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant and 

on the basis of the hedge designations in place at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017. 

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying value of employment long-term benefit 

obligations and provisions. 

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses: 

• The sensitivity of the relevant statement of profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective 

market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 December 2018 and 

31 December 2017 including the effect of hedge accounting. 

lnterest rate risk 
lnterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 

in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the 

Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans. The Company enters into 

interest rate swaps, in which it agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and variable rate 

interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal a mou nt. At 31 December 2018, after taking 

into account the effect of interest rate swaps, approximately 44% of the Company's borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest 

(2017: 59%). 

lnterest rate sensitivity 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on loans and borrowings, 

including bonds, after the impact of interest rate swaps. With all other variables held constant, the Company's profit before 

tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows : 

lncrease/ decrease Effect on profit 
in basis points before tax 

CZKOOO 

2018 50 (3,503) 

(25) 1,752 

2017 50 (2,607) 

(25) 1,304 

Ali loans and bonds are denominated in CZK. 

Foreign currency risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates is nominal 

as vast majority of activities are denominated in Company's functional currency CZK. The Company's management uses 

economic hedging - concluding purchase contracts in the same currency as the sales contracts - i.e. CZK. The Company 

is exposed indirectly to fluctuations in foreign currencies as the CZK price of purchased fuel and emission allowances 

is broadly responsive to development on prices on international markets, denominated in USD and EUR. 
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Foreign currency sensitivity 

With all other variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax is not sensitive to reasonably possible changes 
in foreign exchange rates as the Company's exposure to foreign currency changes is not material as at 31 December 2018 
and 31 December 2017. 

Commodity price risk and emission right risk 

The Company is affected by the volatility of certain commodities and emission rights. lts operating activities involve 

predominantly the ongoing purchase of coal used in production, purchase and sale of electricity and purchases of emission 

rights. The Company manages the commodity price risk by deploying economic hedging, where the purchase prices 

of commodities are set for a period of time that is responsive to the duration of sales contracts and also the changes 

of commodity prices are to certain extent passed to the customers, which reduces the Company's profit sensitivity to changes 

in commodity prices. The risk of changes in the price of emission rights is managed by purchasing emission rights 

for electricity generation when selling the energy; emission rights for heat production are managed by monitoring the price 

on the stock exchange and buying by instalments when the price goes down. The price of emission rights is partly borne 
by end customers. 

Commodity price sensitivity 

As the Company has no financial assets and liabilities linked to commodity prices, with all other variables held constant, 
the Company's profit before tax is not sensitive to reasonably possible changes in their prices. 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, 

leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (prima rity for trade receivables) 

and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, loans and other financial 
instruments. 

Trade receivables 

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit 

risk management. Credit quality of the customer requesting product or services above a defined threshold is assessed based 

on a credit rating analysis and individua I credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer 

receivables and exposure to credit risk are regularly monitored and the Company limits credit risk by credibility analysis 

and monitoring of repayment morale of existing customers. At 31 December 2018, the Company had 9 customers (2017: 

9 customers) that owed the Company more than CZK 1 million each and accounted for approximately 89% (2017: 89%) of all 

outstanding receivables . 

The requirement for an impairment is analyzed at each reporting date on an individua I basis for major clients. Additionally, 

a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed 

in Note 9.1. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect 

to trade receivables as adequate given the nature of business it operates as its princi pal customers are located in one 
geographical area. 

Financial instruments and cash deposits 

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed in accordance with the Company's policy. 

lnvestments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each 

counterparty. The limits are set to minimize the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through potential 

counterparty's failure to make payments. The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk tar the components of the 

statement of financial position is the carrying amounts as illustrated in 9.1. except for derivative financial i11~lrume11ls. 

The Company's maximum exposure for financial derivative instruments are noted in the liquidity table below, respectively. 

Liquidity risk 

The Company monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tools. 

The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of long-term 

bank loans or bonds, finance leases and hire purchase contracts. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with 

respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. Access to sources of funding is sufficiently available and debt 

matu ring within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders. 
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The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted 

payments: 

Year ended 31 December 2018 <1 year 2-5 years Over 5 years Total 

CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO 

Obligations under finance leases 

Bankloans 

Bonds 61,727 1,488,520 1,550,247 

Other loans for financing non-current assets 3,741 14,969 2,496 21,206 

Trade payables and other liabilities 241,281 241,281 

Derivatives (interest rate swaps) 6,036 18,108 24,144 

Total 312,785 1,521,597 2,496 1,836,878 

Over 5 
Year ended 31 December 2017 <1 year 2-5 years years Total 

CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO 

Obligations under finance leases 41 41 

Bank loans 

Other loans for financing non-current assets 45,662 221,177 1,306,294 1,573,133 

Loan from shareholders 3,921 28,204 14,146 46,271 

Trade payables and other liabilities 

Derivatives (interest rate swaps) 98,204 98,204 

Total 4,753 5,280 10,033 

The disclosed financial derivative instruments in the above table are the gross undiscounted cash flows. However, those 
amounts may be settled gross or net. The following table shows the corresponding reconciliation of those amounts to their 
carrying amounts: 

Year ended 31 December 2018 

lnflows 

Outflows 

Net 

Discounted at the applicable interbank rates 

Year ended 31 December 2017 

lnflows 

Outflows 

Net 

Discounted at the applicable interbank rates 

Capital management 

<1 year 

CZKOOO 
12,619 

(12,073) 

546 

538 

<1 year 

CZKOOO 
5,716 

(4,753) 

963 

958 

Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent. 

2-5 years 

CZKOOO 
33,433 

(36,218) 

(2,785) 

(2,635) 

2-5 years 

CZKOOO 
14,816 

(5,280) 

9,536 

9,099 

Over5 
years Total 

CZKOOO CZKOOO 
46,052 

(48,291) 

(2,239) 

(2,097) 

Over5 
years Total 

CZKOOO CZKOOO 
20,532 

(10,033) 

10,499 

10,057 

The primary objective of the Company's capital mana~ement is to ensure that it maintains a .~trnng í'.rPr1it ratine ;rnr1 healthy 

capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value. 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and 

the requirements of the financial covenants. The Company monitors ca pita I using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided 

by total ca pita I plus net debt. 

The Company's policy is to keep the gearing ratio around 70%. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans 

and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash deposits, excluding discontinued operations, if any. 
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2018 2017 

CZKOOO CZKOOO 

lnterest-bearing loans and borrowings, including bonds 1,257,617 1,258,345 

Trade payables and ether liabilities 243,378 126,730 

Less: cash and short-term deposits (100,704) (261,627) 

Net debt 1,400,291 1,123,448 

Equity 467,917 623,565 

Capital and net debt 1,868,208 1,747,013 

Gearing ratio 75% 64% 

No significant changes were made in the overal I objectives, policies or processes for managing capital du ring the years ended 

31 December 2018 and 2017, respectively . 

Excessive risk concentration 
Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same 

geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly 

affected by changes in economic, political or ether conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the 

Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry. ln order to avoid unnecessary concentrations 

of risk, the Company's policies and procedures include guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio, 

despite the inherent limitations given the business the company is involved in. ldentified concentrations of credit risks are 

controlled and managed accordingly. 

9.6. lnvestments 

The Company had equity interest in the following subsidiary: 

Name Principal activities 

TO Servisní s.r.o. Service organization to the Company 

Country of 
incorporation 

Czech Republic 

The Company's investment in the subsidiary carried at cost is as follows: 

Financial lnvestments 

lnvestments in subsidiaries 

2018 2017 

CZKOOO CZKOOO 

2,700 2,700 

31 December 2018 31 December 2017 

100% 100% 

The investments in subsidiaries were not impaired as at 31 December 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

10. I nventories 

Fossil fuel and ether materials 

Work in progress 

Goods 

Advances provided for inventories 

Total inventories at the lower of cost and net realizable value 

2018 

CZKOOO 

87,773 

14 

1,994 

89,781 

2017 

CZKOOO 

96,065 

2,066 

98,131 

During 2018, CZK 350,661 thousand (2017: CZK 310,424 thousand) was recognized as an expense for inventories and 

recorded as Consumption of material and energy. lnventories are measured at costs reduced by valuation allowances to their 
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net realizable value, if lower. The valuation allowance as at 31 December 2018 amounted to CZK 4,673 thousand (2017: 

CZK 4,565 thousand) . 

11. Trade receivables and other assets 

2018 2017 

CZK000 CZK000 

Short-term trade receivables 153,778 131,225 

Short-term advances granted 815 871 

Unbilled revenue 644 634 

VAT receivable 

Derivatives 10,328 

Other receivables 845 819 

Total Trade receivables and other assets 156,082 143,877 

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 14-30 days. 

As at 31 December 2018, trade receivables with an initial carrying value of CZK 1,604 thousand (2017: CZK 276 thousand) 

were impaired and fully provided for. See below for the movements in the allowance for impairment of receivables: 

lndividually 
impaired Total 

CZK000 CZK000 

At 31 December 2017 276 276 
At 31 December 2018 1,604 1,604 

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the ageing analysis of trade receivables was as follows : 

Neither past Past due but 
due nor not impalred: 

Total impaired <30 days 30-60 days 60-120 days > 120 days 

CZK000 CZK000 CZK000 CZK000 CZK 000 CZK 000 

31 December 2018 153,778 151,620 2,141 17 

31 Oecember 2017 131,225 128,347 2,817 50 5 6 

12. Cash and deposits 

2018 2017 

CZK000 CZK000 

Cash in hand 39 37 

Cash at bank 100,665 261,590 

Total Cash 100,704 261,627 

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. 

13. lssued capital and reserves 

The basic capital of the Company consists of 100 registered shares in a certificate form fully subscribed and paid, with 

a nominal value of CZK 100 thousand 

At 31 December 2017 

At 31 December 2018 

units CZK 000 

100 

100 

10,000 

10,000 
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The company created separate reserve from profit that may be used to cover the future losses. The balance of the reserve 

as at 31 December 2018 amounted to CZK 2,000 thousand (2017: CZK 2,000 thousand). 

14. Distributions made and proposed 

The Company paid dividends of CZK 135,000 thousand and CZK O thousand in 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

15. Provisions 
Employment Emission Total 

benefits rights provisions 

CZKOOO CZKOOO CZKOOO 

At 31 December 2016 3,615 59,058 62,673 

Arising du ring the year 378 62,452 62,830 

Util ized (285) (59,058) (59,343) 

At 31 December 2017 3,708 62,452 66,160 

Aris ing during the year 4,131 157,283 161,414 

Utilízed (440) (62,452) (62,892) 

At 31 December 2018 7,399 157,283 164,682 

Long-term employment benefits 

The Company provides long-term employment benefits, where employees are entitled to benefits dependent on the number 

of years of employment, jubilee bonuses and bonuses paid upon retirement of an employee. The provision represents 

the obligation from the benefits calculated using the projected unit credit method. The costs of providing the long-term 

employment benefits are recorded in the profit or loss. 

Emission rights 

A provision is recognized for emissions produced; the significant increase recognized in 2018 can be attributed to the year­

on-year price hike. For details on the accounting policy adopted by the Company for measuring the emission rights provision 

please refer to Note 2.2.10. 

16. Accruals and deferred income 

2018 

CZKOOO 

Accruals 4,980 

Deferred income 183 

Accruals and deferred income 5,163 

17. Trade payables and other liabilities 

Trade payables 

Liabilities to employees 

Other Jiabilities 

Liabilities arising from social security and health insurance 

Short-term advances received 

VAT payable 

Liabilities from derivative instruments 

Other 

Subtotal Other liabil ities 

Total trade payables and other liabilities 

2018 

CZKOOO 
220,705 

12,170 

5,111 

918 

1,295 

2,097 

1,082 

10,503 

243,378 

2017 

CZKOOO 
5,341 

197 

5,538 

2017 

CZKOOO 
94,520 

20,059 

8,467 

41 

778 

271 

2,594 

12,151 

126,730 
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Trade payables and ether liabilities are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-60 days basis. 

18. Commitments and contingencies 

Operating lease commitments - Company as lessee 

The Company has entered into commercial leases for technological equipment, office premises and several motor vehicles. 

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancetlable operating leases are as follows: 

Within one year 

After one year but not more than five years 

More than five years 

Finance lease - Company as lessee 

2018 
CZKOOO 

7,790 

9,485 

17,275 

2017 
CZKOOO 

7,748 

6,897 

25 

14,670 

The Company has finance leases for cars. The Company's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's title 

to the leased assets. Future minimum lease payments under finance leases together with the present value of the net 

min imum lease payments are as follows : 

2018 

Within one year 
After one year but not more than five 
years 

More than five years 

Total minimum lease payments 
Less amounts representing finance 
charges 
Present value of minimum lease 
payments 

19. Government grants 

Grants received during the year: 

Emission rights 

Minimum 
lease 

payments 

CZKDDO 

Grants for purchase of property, plant and equipment 

Grants received during the year related to income 

Present 
value of 

payments 

CZKOOD 

2017 

Minimum 
lease 

payments 

CZKOOO 

41 

41 

(1) 

40 

2018 
CZKOOO 

35,414 

6,082 

Present 
value of 

payments 

CZKOOO 

40 

40 

40 

2017 
CZKOOO 

19,584 

5,290 

Grants are initially measured at fair value. Grants related to income and emission rights are reported under Other income 

in the lncome statement. Grants related to purchase of property, plant and equipment decrease its cost. 

There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to these grants at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017. 
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20. Related party disclosures 

The holding company 

The next senior and the ultimate holding company of Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. is LAMA ENERGY GROUP a.s., a privately 

owned joint-stock company based the Czech Republic, holding 100% interest in the Company. 

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related partles 

for the relevant financial year: 

Subsidiaries 
TO Servisní s.r.o. 

Entities controlled by the parent company 
(members of LAMA ENERGY GROUP a.s.): 
LAMA energy a.s. 

MANLOMKA s.r.o. 

Teplárna Kyjov, a.s. 

Energo český Krumlov s.r.o. 

DIGI CZ s.r.o. 

LAMA eco s.r.o . 

Key management personnel of the Company: 

2018 
2017 

2018 
2017 

2018 
2017 

2018 
2017 

2018 
2017 

2018 
2017 

2018 
2017 

Members of statutory and supervisory bodies 2018 
2017 

Loans from related parties 

LAMA ENERGY GROUP a.s. 
(Note 9.2) 

2018 
2017 

lnterest 
expense 
CZKOOO 

36,817 

Amounts 
Salesto Purchases owed by 
related from related related 
parties 

CZKOOO 

1,619 
1,882 

155,298 
162,115 

51 
96 

21 
22 

parties 
CZKOOO 

440,352 
264,800 

380,746 
279,733 

1,834 
1,939 

19,986 
20,666 

10 
7 

505 
443 

11 
434 

487 
487 

Principal owed to 
related parties 

CZKOOO 

parties 
CZKOOO 

45,606 
16,700 

16,685 
29,635 

243 
4 

10 

5 

Accrued interest 
owed to related 

parties 
CZKOOO 

Amounts 
owed to 
related 
parties 
CZKOOO 

86,320 
32,989 

64,235 
17,447 

118 
158 

2,125 
2,125 

43 
39 

49 
49 
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Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 

The Company se lis electricity and renders services to related parties in the ordinary course of business. The company receives 

services, purchases electricity, and emission allowances from related parties in the ordinary course of business. 

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on the ba sis of contracts entered into by and between the Company 

and a related party; for the list of the contracts, refer to the Report on Relations. Outstanding balances at the year-end are 

unsecured, interest free (except loans) and settled in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any 

related party receivables or payables. Forthe year ended 31 December 2018, the Company did not recognize any impairment 

of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (2017: CZK O thousand). This assessment is undertaken each 

financial year by examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates. 

Compensation of key management personnel of the Company 

Short-term employment benefits, including payroll 

Long-term employment benefits 

Total compensation paid to key management personnel 

2018 
CZKOOO 

20,924 

20,924 

2017 
CZKOOO 
25,049 

25,049 

The amounts disclosed in the table above represe nt the remuneration of the members of statutory and supervisory bodies 

and of key management personnel (i.e. of executives who receive contractual salaries), and excludes mandatory social and 

health insurance paid by the Company. 

The members of statutory and supervisory bodies, directors and executive officers were granted no loans, guarantees, 

advances or other similar benefits in 2018 and 2017 and they do not hold any shares of the Company. 

21. Standards issued but not yet effective 
The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company's financial 

statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective. 

IFRS 16 Leases 

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces \AS 17 Leases, \FRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains 

a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-lncentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions lnvolving the Legal Form 

of a Lease. IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and 

requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases 

under \AS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of 'low-value' assets (e.g., personal 

computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) . At the commencement date of a lease, 

a lessee will recognize a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use 

the underlying asset du ring the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognize the 

interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. 

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e .g., a change in the 

lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine these payments). 

The lessee will generally recognize the a mou nt of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of­

use asset. 

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today's accounting under \AS 17. Lessors will continue 

to classify all lP.nsP.s using thP 5;imp r\;i55ification principie as in \AS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operatins 

and finance leases. 

IFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under \AS 17. 

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted, but not before 

an entity applies IFRS 15. A lessee can chaose to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified 

retrospective approach. The standarďs transition provisions permit certain reliefs. 

The Company performed an assessment of the impact that the standard would have on the Company's financial statements 

as at 1 January 2019. Based on the preliminary analysis, property, plant and equipment and lease liabilities would increase 

by CZK 17,277 thousand and CZK 17,277 thousand, respectively, because of the adoption of IFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019. 
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ln addition, the Company expects the reclassification of the following profit and loss items in 2019, following the adoption 

of IFRS 16: i) a portion of approximately CZK 7,800 thousand of annual rent will be reclassified from services and presented 

as depreciation of CZK 7,200 thousand and interest expense of CZK 850 thousand. The Company believes that the effects 

of the adoption of the new standard on profit or loss both before and after taxation will not be significant. 

The effects of the adoption of IFRS 16 will be described in detail in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 

2019. 

IFRS 17 lnsurance Contracts 

ln May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 lnsurance Contracts (IFRS 17), a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance 

contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, IFRS 17 will replace IFRS 4 

lnsurance Contracts (IFRS 4) that was issued in 2005. IFRS 17 applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e ., life, non-life, 

direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and 

financial instruments with discretionary participation features. A few scope exceptions will apply. The overall objective 

of IFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that is more useful and consistent for insurers. 

ln contrast to the requirements in IFRS 4, which are largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, 

IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The care 

of IFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by: 

A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach) A simplified approach 

(the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts. IFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning 

on or after 1 January 2021, with comparative figures required. Early application is permitted, provided the entity also applies 

IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or before the date it first applies IFRS 17. This standard is not applicable to the Company. 

Amendments of IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and /AS 28 lnvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures: Sa/e 

or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Ven ture 

The amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in IAS 28, in 

dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The main consequence 

of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves a business (whether it is housed 

in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business, 

even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. ln December 2015 the IASB postponed the effective date of this amendment 

indefinitely pending the outcome of its research project on the equity method of accounting. The amendments have not yet 

been endorsed by the EU. The Company has assessed the impact of the amendments and expects that the amendments, 

when applied, will not have a significant impact on its financial statements. 

IFRS 9: Prepaymentfeatures with negative compensation (Amendments) 

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with earlier application 

permitted. The amendments allow financial assets with prepayment features that permit or require a party to a contract 

either to pay or receive reasonable compensation for the early termination of the contract (so that, from the perspective 

of the holder of the asset there may be 'negative compensation'), to be measured at amortized cost orat fair value through 

other comprehensive income. The Company does not intend to early adopt the amendments and does not expects that 

the amendments will have a significant impact on its financial statements. 

/AS 28: Long-term lnterests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments) 

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with earlier application 

permitted. The amendments relate to whether the measurement, in particular impairment requirements, of long term 

interests in associates and joint ventures that, in substance, form part of the 'net investmenť in the associate or joint venture 

should be governed by IFRS 9, IAS 28 or a combination of both. The amendments cla rify that an entity applies IFRS 9 Financial 

lnstruments, before lt applles IAS 28, to such long-term interests for which thc cquity mcthod is not applied. ln applying lrRS 

9, the entity does not take account of any adjustments to the carrying a mou nt of long-term interests that arise from applying 

IAS 28. These amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Company has assessed the impact of the amendments 

and expects that the amendments, when applied, will not have a significant impact on its financial statements. 
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/FRIC lnterpretation 23 Uncertainty over lncome Tax Treatment 

The lnterpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the 

application of IAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include 

requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The lnterpretation specifically 

addresses the following: 

• Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately 
• The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities 
• How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates 
• How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances 

An entity must determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other 

uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty should be followed . 

The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, but certain transition reliefs 

are available. The Company will apply interpretation from its effective date and expects it will have no significant impact 

on its reported tax position. 

/AS 19: Pian Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments) 

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with earlier application permitted. 

The amendments require entities to use updated actuarial assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest 

for the remainder of the annual reporting period after a pian amendment, curtailment or settlement has occurred. 

The amendments also cla rify how the accounting for a pian amendment, curtailment or settlement affects applying the asset 

ceiling requirements. These amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Company has assessed the impact 

of the amendments and expects that the amendments, when applied, will not have a significant impact on its financial 
statements. 

IFRS 3: Business Combinations (Amendments) 

The IASB issued amendments in Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3) aimed at resolving the difficulties that arise 

when an entity determines whether it has acquired a business or a group of assets. The amendments are effective for 

business combinations for which the acquisition date is in the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 

2020 and to asset acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that period, with earlier application permitted. 

The amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Company has assessed the impact of the amendments and 

expects that the amendments, when applied, will not have a significant impact on its financial statements. 

/AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and JAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: 

Definition of 'material' (Amendments) 

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 with earlier application permitted. 

The amendments clarify the definition of "material" and how it should be applied. The new definition states that, 

"lnformation is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the 

primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide 

financial information about a specific reporting entity" . ln addition, the explanations accompanying the definition have been 

improved. The amendments also ensure that the definition of "material" is consistent across all IFRS Standards. These 

amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Company has assessed the impact of the amendments and expects 

that the amendments, when applied, will not have a significant impact on its financial statements. 

Annual lmprovements to JFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle 

The IASB has issued the Annual lmprovements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which is a collection of amendments to IFRSs. 

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with earlier application permittPrl. 

These annual improvements have not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Company has assessed the impact of the annual 

improvements and expects that the annual improvements will not have a significant impact on its financial statements: 

IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements : The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that when an 

entity obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, it remeasures previously held interests in that business. 

The amendments to IFRS 11 clarify that when an entity obtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation, 

the entity does not remeasure previously held interests in that business. 

IAS 12 lncome Taxes: The amendments cla rify that the income tax consequences of payments on financial 

instruments classified as equity should be recognized according to where the past transactions or events that 
generated distributable profits has been recognized . 
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IAS 23 Borrowing Costs: The amendments cla rify paragraph 14 of the standard that, when a qualifying asset is ready 

for its intended use or sale, and some of the specific borrowing related to that qualifying asset remains outstanding 

at that point, that borrowing is to be included in the funds that an entity borrows generally. 

22. Other information for disclosure 
The fees dueto Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o., for statutory audits performed in 2018 and 2017 totaled CZK 675,000 and 

CZK 1,000,000, respectively. Out-of-pocket expenses relating to the statutory audit performed in 2018 and 2017 totaled 

CZK 65,000 and CZK 60,000, respectively. The cost of other assurance services in 2018 and 2017 amounted to CZK O and 

CZK 1,166,000, respectively. Other assurance services received in 2017 related primarily to bond issues. 

The costs of non-audit services in 2018 and 2017 amounted to CZK 69,000 and CZK 161,000, respectively. Non-audit services 

received related to lega I advisory. Non-audit services for 2017 and 2016 were not disclosed in the fina ncial statements for the 

year ended 31 December 2017. 

23. Events after the reporting period 
No events occurred after the balance sheet date that would have a material effect on the financial statements for the year 

ended 31 December 2018. 

Otrokovice, 16 Apríl 2019 

Ing. P tr Jeník 
Chairm n of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of irectors 

44 



REPORT ON RELATED P ARTIES 

prepared pursuant to Section 82 of Act No. 90/2012 Coll., on Business 
Corporations and Cooperatives (the "Business Corporations Act"). 

for the reporting period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 

Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. 



Report on Related Parties Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 82 of the Business Corporations Act, the Board of Directors 
of Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. (hereinafter the "Company") prepared this Report on Related Parties 
of Teplárna Otrokovice a.s., with its registered office at Objízdná 1777, Otrokovice, postal code 
765 02, for the reporting period, i.e. from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 (hereinafter 
the "Report"). 

a) Structure of relations between parties pursuant to Section 82 (1) of the Business 
Corporations Act: 

• Controlled Person 
Teplárna Otrokovice a.s., with its registered office at Objízdná 1777, Otrokovice, postal code 
765 02, business registration number 292 90 171, entered in the Commercial Register maintained 
by the Regional Court in Brno, Section B, File 6437. 

• Controlling Person 
From 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 - LAMA ENERGY GROUP a.s. 

• Other related parties pursuant to Section 82 (1) of the Business Corporations Act 
From 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018: 

LAMA energy a.s. 
DIGI CZ s.r.o. 
TO Servisní s.r.o. 
Ing. Jeník Petr 
Teplárna Kyjov, a.s. 
MANLOMKA s.r.o. 
LAMA eco s.r.o. 

b) Role of the Controlled Person in the Group 

From 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2018, Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. was a subsidiary of LAMA 
ENERGY GROUP a.s., which held a 100% equity interest as at 31 December 2018. 

LAMA ENERGY GROUP a.s. is controlled by natural person Petr Lamich, born 21 November 1962, 
resident at Gudrichova 762, 747 41 Hradec nad Moravicí. 

Teplárna Otrokovice a.s. is a production company dealing in production and distribution of heat and 
generation and sale of electricity. 

c) Method and means of control executed through 

• General Meeting 
• Board of Directors 
• Supervisory Board 
• Financial and investment plans 
• Control resulting from the shareholder's exclusive position in the Company 
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d) An overview of actions carried out in the reporting period at the request or in the interest 
of the controlling person or persons controlled by the same controlling person if such 
actions concerned assets, the volume of which exceeded 10% of the controlled person's 
equity determined according to the last financial statements. 

ln the reporting period, the controlled person in relation to the controlling person or any person 
controlled thereof adopted no measures for the benefit of the controlling person or persons controlled 
by the same controlling person outside the scope of ordinary measures adopted under the provisions 
of generally binding regulations (e.g. measures adopted for shareholders of the controlled person). 

Performance and counter-performance arising from the foregoing contracts was effected on an arm's­
length basis and under generally binding regulations. 

The amounts of performance are included in the Company's financial statements in Chapter 21 
lnformation about related parties. 

e) Contracts entered into by and between the controlled person and the controlling person 
or between controlled persons 

Suppller Contract/ Agreement Contract number Performance Contract date 

LAMA energy a.s. buyer Advertising agreement 
Provision of advertising for the 

30/8/2013 
Company 

Contract for bundled Electricity supply to the exchanger 
12/11/2013 electricitv suoolv services station 

Amendment No. 1 Adjustment of advance payments 20/5/2014 

Amendment No. 2 Adjustment of advance payments 13/10/2014 

Amendment No. 3 
Addition of new power meter reading 

18/5/2016 ooint 

Amendment No. 4 Addition of new power meter reading 
24/8/2016 point 

LAMA energy a.s. trader 
Amendment No. 5 

2130000194 
Remova! of meter reading points 27/10/2016 

Amendment No. 6 Addition of new power meter reading 
8/12/2016 point 

Amendment No. 7 Addition of new power meter reading 
30/12/2016 point 

Amendment No. 8 Addition of new power meter reading 
1/6/2017 point 

Amendment No. 9 Addilion of new power meter reading 
18/7/2017 point 

Amendment No. 10 Disassembly of two power meter 
23/4/2018 

readina ooints 
Contract for electricity 
supply (incl. Amendments Supply of electricity to TOT 11/12/2013 
No. 1- 6) 

LAMA energy a.s. supplier Amendment No. 1 S11300008 Change in pricing terms 18/12/2015 

Amendment No. 2 Transferred tax liability 18/1/2016 

Amendment No. 3 
Price adjustment and contract 

23/5/2017 
extension 

Pu rchase contract for 
eleclr icily suµµly, 
assuming the obligation to 

11/12/2013 
supply electricity to the 
power system (incl. 

LAMA energy a.s. buyer/supplier Amendments No. 1- 6) S11300009 
Amendment No. 1 Change in payment terms 18/12/2015 

Amendment No. 2 Transferred tax liability 18/1/2016 

Amendment No. 3 Change in payment terms 25/1/2016 

Amendment No. 4 Contract extension 1/11/2016 
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Amendment No. 5 Contract extension 3/10/2017 

Amendment No. 6 Change in payment terms 15/11/2018 

Centraci for bundled gas 
4/12/2014 suoolv services Gas suoolv to the boiler room 

Amendment No. 1 Change to Amendment No. 3 30/4/2015 

Amendment No. 2 Change to Amendment No. 3 23/9/2015 

Amendment No. 3 Contract extension 25/11/2015 

LAMA energy a.s. trader Amendment No. 4 
1030000848 Chanae to Amendment No. 3 27/4/2016 

Amendment No. 5 Contract extension 29/11/2016 

Amendment No. 6 Chanae to Amendment No. 3 28/4/2017 

Amendment No. 7 Contract extension 30/10/2017 

Amendment No. 8 Change to Amendment No. 3 25/4/2018 

Amendment No. 9 Contract extension 24/10/2018 

Contract for bundled Electricity supply to the compressor 
4/12/2014 electricitv suoolv services room 

Amendment No. 1 Price adjustment, contract extension 18/12/2015 

LAMA energy a.s. tra der Amendment No. 2 2130000207 /2015 Price adjustment, contract extension 23/11/2016 

Amendment No. 3 Price adjustment, contract extension 14/12/2017 

Amendment No. 4 Price adjustment, contract extension 5/12/2018 

LAMA energy a.s. lessor Lease agreement 2/1/2015 
Lease of office space 

LAMA energy a.s. trader 
Contract for bundled 

2130000558 Electricity supply 18/12/2015 electricity supply services 

LAMA energy a.s. trader 
Centraci for bundled 

2130000632 Electricity supply 27/10/2016 electricitv suoolv services 
Centraci for bundled gas 

Gas supply 18/7/2017 supply services 

LAMA energy a.s. trader Amendment No. 1 103501260 Change in validity and effectiveness 21/8/2017 
of contract 

Amendment No. 2 
Change in validity and effectiveness 

10/5/2018 of contract 

LAMA energy a.s. trader 
Centraci for bundled gas 

1030001212 Gas supply for CNG station 13/11/2018 supply services 

LAMA energy a.s. seller 
Contract for a one-time 

Sale of allowances 12/12/2018 
allowance transaction 
Contract for provision of 

DIGI CZ s.r.o. provider electronic communication Electronic communication 5/8/2014 
services 

Purchase contract 0514007 Brown coal supply 30/5/2014 

Amendment No. 1 Change in volume 13/10/2014 

TO Servisní s.r.o. supplier Amendment No. 2 Chanae in contractina terms 22/12/2014 

Amendment No. 3 Change in contractina terms 30/12/2015 

Amendmenl No. 4 Change in payment terms ':,/1/2017 

Amendment No. 5 Change in payment terms 15/1/2018 

Service Agreement Provision of accounting services 30/3/2014 
TO Servisní s.r.o. buyer 0514006 

Amendment No. 1 Work extension (OHS, PaM) 30/9/2014 

Purchase contract Black coal supply 1/8/2014 

TO Servisní s.r.o. supplier 0514011 
Amendment No. 1 Chanae in contractina terms 22/12/2014 

Amendment No. 2 Change in contractina terms 30/12/2015 
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Amendment No. 3 Change in contractino terms 5/1/2017 

Amendment No. 4 Chanoe in conlraclino terms 17/8/2017 

TO Servisní s.r.o. provider 
Framework service 

OS14019 Provision of inveslment services 30/9/2014 
agreement 

TO Servisní s.r.o. lessee Lease agreement OS16002 Lease of office space 31/3/2016 

TO Servisní s.r.o. lessee 
Passenger car lease 

OS16004 Passenger car lease 13/7/2016 
agreement 

Centraci for work Greening of boilers K3 , K4 10/7/2017 

TO Servisní s.r.o. supplier Amendmenl No. 1 OS17006 Change in payment terms 10/8/2018 

Amendment No. 2 Extension of work 21/11/2018 

Centraci for work 
Refurbishmenl of flue gas 

21/10/2017 
TO Servisní s.r.o. supplier OS17010 desulohurization 

Amendmenl No. 1 Change in payment terms, HMG 13/9/2018 

TO Servisní s.r.o. lessee 
Passenger car lease 

OS17011 Passenger car lease 31/8/2017 
agreement 

TO Servisní s.r.o. future buyer Fulure purchase agreemenl OS17012 
Electricity supply for backup source 

15/8/2017 wilh gas engines 

TO Servisní s.r.o . future buyer Future purchase agreemenl OS17013 Heat supply for backup source 15/8/2017 

TO Servisní s.r.o. future lessee Lease agreement OS17014 Lease of land for backup source 1/9/2017 

TO Servisní s.r.o. future buyer Fulure purchase agreement OS17015 Water supply for backup source 30/8/2017 

TO Servisní s.r.o. future buyer 
Future conlracl for wasle 

0517016 
Wasle waler discharge from backup 

30/8/2017 water discharge source 

TO Servisní s.r.o. supplier 
Framework purchase 
agreement 

OS18001 Thermal coal supply 1/2/2018 

TO Servisní s.r.o. debtor Loan agreement OS18005 Cashloan 15/2/2018 

TO Servisní s.r.o. supplier Purchase contract OS18006 Brown coal supply (SU) 1/3/2018 

TO Servisní s.r.o. builder 
Contract establishing the 

OS18007 
Consent to the backup source 

14/3/2018 
right to build construction site 

TO Servisní s.r.o. controller 
Contract for persona I data 

OS18012 Persona! data processing 24/5/2018 
processing 

TO Servisní s.r.o. supplier Contract for work OS18014 Construction of boiler K8 29/6/2018 

Ing. Petr Jeník lessor 
Contract for lease of 

Lease of telephone , ultra-book 27/2/2013 movables 

Ing. Petr Jeník lessor Vehicle lease agreement Lease of vehicle 12/12/2016 

MANLOMKA s.r.o. provider Contracl for fuel supply Fuel supply 1/9/2015 

Teplárna Kyjov, a.s. buyer Service Agreemenl Chemical analysis of samples 9/3/2016 

Amendmenl No. 1 Price adjuslment, contract extension 28/12/2017 

Centraci for lechnical Transfer of performance of technical 
Teplárna Kyjov, a.s. buyer compensalion for provision 7/9/2017 

of support services 
compensation 

Amendmenl No. 1 Change in contracting terms 25/9/2018 

LAMA ENERGY GROUP a.s. 
Loan agreement Revolving loan agreement 15/12/2018 

lender 
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f) Assessment of detriment, if any, to the controlled person and its compensation pursuant 
to Sections 71 and 72 of the Corporations Act 

The controlled person suffered no detriment arising from the foregoing contracts, other legal actions, 
other measures, performance provided and counter-performance received. 

Within the group, confidential information is deemed information and facts that are part of trade secret 
of the controlling and controlled person s and other parties defined under Section 82 ( 1) of the 
Business Corporations Act, as well as information described as confidential by any party defined under 
Section 82 (1) of the Business Corporations Act. ln addition, all business-related information that could 
by itself or in connection with other information or facts result in detriment to any party defined under 
Section 82 (1) of the Business Corporations Act is deemed confidential. 

To avoid any detriment to the controlled person, with regard to the provisions of Section 2985 of Act 
No. 89/2012 Coll. , the Civil Code, as amended, this Report does not contain confidential information. 

g) ln the Report on Related Parties the statutory body shall assess the advantages and 
disadvantages arising from relations between parties pursuant to Paragraph 1 and shall 
state whether advantages or disadvantages prevail and what are the related risks for the 
controlled person. The statutory body shall also state whether, in what manner and in 
what period any detriment has been or will be compensated pursuant to Section 71 or 72. 

Advantages arising from relations between the parties under Paragraph 1 (integration into a group): 
• Benefits of a background of a stable Czech company, 
• Synergistic effects; 
• Centra! management; 
• Group-wide financial stability; 
• Facilitated mutual communication; 
• Links to new business partners 

Disadvantages: 
• No disadvantages or risks arise from relations between the parties. 

Overall group effects on the existence and operations of the controlled person Teplárna Otrokovice 
a.s.: 
• lntegration in the Group brings rather advantages 

As the controlled person suffered no detriment arising from the aforementioned contracts, other legal 
actions, other measures, performance provided and counter-performance received between 
the parties pursuant to Paragraph 1, this Report contains no information on the method or timeframe 
of compensation . 
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h) Conclusion 

This Report was prepared by the Board of Directors of the controlled person, Teplárna Otrokovice a.s., 
on 21 February 2019. 

ln Otrokovice, on 21 February 2019 

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the controlled person Teplárna Otrokovice a.s.: 

Uu'2 
ln tr Jeník 
C an of the Board of Directors of Directors 
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